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therimpact of interest of exchange rates, the availability of financing 1o the Group, anticipated cost savings or synergies and the
complation of 1he Group's STategic ransactions, ane lorward-locking statements, By their narure, these statements and Toracasts
invole risk ardd uncertainty bacause they relate 10 events ark deperyd on Gircumstances that may o may not occur in the future
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Business review

Introduction

Rolis-Royce is a global business providing and supporting integrated
power systems for use on land, at sea and in the air. The Group has a
balanced business portfolic with leading market positions.

2008 2007 Change 2006 2005 2004

Order book - firm and announced (£bn)

Profit before financing (£m)
Underlying profit before tax (£m)**
Underlying EBITDA (£m}

555 459 1% %1 244 N3

Underlying revenue (£m)* 9,147 7817 7% 7353 6458 5947

862 512 68% 700 B55 417
883 845 4% 851 579 384

1,244 1065  17% 986 911 27

£4.5bn

Underlying revenue

£1.7bn

Underlying revenue

£2.2bn

Underying revenue

£0.8bn

Underlying revenue

Civit aerospace

We are one of the world's largest civil
aerg-engine providers, with more than 12,000
Rolls-Royce jet engines in service. We power
over 30 civil aircraft types, from small executive
jets through to large passenger aircraft.

Defence aerospace

Rolls-Royce is the world's second largest
defence aerc-engine manufacturer,

providing around 25 per cent of the world's
military engines. Qur portfolic covers all major
sectors, including transport, helicopters,
combat, trainers and tactical aircraft.

Marine

We are a global leader in marine propulsion
for cruise, fast vesse), naval and offshare markets
and a world leader in ship design for the
offshore sector. We support 2,000 commercial
marine customers and 70 navies use our
propulsion systems and marine equipment,

Energy

Rolls-Royce is a world leader in power for the
ail and gas industry and our gas turbines have
a growing presence in the elecirical power
generation market, Qur skills and technology
will also address the growing global market
for nuclear power.

52%

e Group sales

Our skills, technologies and systerms
integration capabilities give us strength
in global markets.

Services

The Group seeks to be the customer's first
chaice for services by developing long-term
relationships. Qur comprehensive supporg
contracts enable us 10 add vatue for our
custemers by using our technology,

skills and data management expertise.

**Reconatialion of undertyig 12sults 1§ provadied in note 2 on page 46,
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Business review continued

Chief Executive's review
Sir John Rose

Rolls-Royce performed strongly in 2008 in the face
of increasingly challenging conditions.

Our results demonstrate the value of our consistent strategy. The
strength of our technology, the breadth of our product and service
portfolio, our knowledge of the customer and the capabilities of our
people continue to increase our resilience and enable us to develop
the business for the longer term.

Qur financial results reflect the strength of cur business model.
in 2008, Group sales increased to £9,082 milllon (2007 £7,435million),
with underlying sales growth of 17 per cent. The published loss before
tax was £1,889 million (2007 profit £778 million). This ioss was caused
primarily by the effects of the marking to market of various financial
instruments, as is explained further in the Finance Director’s review on
page 26, and the reported eamings do not reflact the underlying
trading performance of the Group in 2008. Underlying profit before
tax rose by four per cent to £883 million {2007 £845 million}.

We ended the year with a net cash balance of £1,456 million
(2007 £887 miillion) and a record order book of £55.5 billion
(2007 £45.9 billion).

As | write, the glohal economic ¢risis continues to intensify and it
is impossible to be precise about its ultirate severity and duration.
What is certain is that all companies will be affected to varying
degrees and it is dlear that Rolls-Royce, its custorners and suppliers will
not be immune from this global crisis. However, as a strong power
systerns company, Rolls-Royce has a numiber of characterisiics which
give me confidence that we will be able to deal effectively with the
very considerable challenges and uncertainties that lie ahead,

A very different company
Itis worth recalling at Lthe outset that the current ciisis is not the first to which
Rolis-Royce has had to respond,

In recent years our markets have been impacted by the events of
Septernber 11,2001, the Guif War in 2002 and the SARS epideric in 2003,

As a business, we have also had to desl with a wide range of negative
developments such as a weakening US dollar, high il ard commodity prices and
delays in major new airframe programmes. All these challenges have been
effectively managed by the Group.

The drivers of the current global econemic crisis clearly differ significantly
fram previous downturns, However, Rolis-Royce itself is also a very different
company.

Qur turnover in 2001 was arourxd £6 billion, with only 38 per cent of cur
revenues derived from services We had a geared talanced sheet with average net
debt of around £1 billion and a large and volatile pensions deficit. Qur order book
of £16.7 billion was congentrated on traditional Western markets such as the UK
and the US. As a result, in the downturn that started in 2000 but was exacerbated
by the tragedy of 9/11, the Group was less resitient than today:

Rolls-Royce is now well diversified by product, custormer and geography. Our
revenues have increased Lo over £9 billion with over 50 per cent now denved from
services. Our order book has increased more than threefold to over £55 bilfion and
is broadly spread across all the world's principal markets. Most significantly of all,
we have a strong balance sheet with no net debt. Our long-term strategy of
hedging currency risk has served us well, allowing a manageable and predictable
deterioration in the sterling/US dollar achieved rate over the past five years.

Qur large installed base of over 54,000 engines supports a growing services
business. The scale of this services activity, together with the size of the order bock
and the longevity of cur programines, gives us much cearer visibility of future
revenues. All these characteristics increase the Groupss resilience and despite the
uncerain autlook, give us confidence for the future.

In this more challenging erwvironment, operational performance, cost
reduction and matching capacity to load will be particularly important,

In January 2008, we tock early action 10 reduce costs by taking the difficult
decision to reduce staffing in support functions by 2,300 peopie. This programme
has been completed at no net cost to the Group and in 2009 will reduce our costs
by £100 million, A further proposed reduction of 1,500-2,000 jobs in 2009 1s
expected to be cost neutral in the year, while delivering simifar savings in 2010.
These programmes demonstrate our commitment to achieving and sustaining
world-class levels of operational efficiency and improving our competitiveness.

Developing the business

Itis clearly impossible 1o provide a forecast of the precise impact that the global
crisis will have on Rolls-Rayce. However, it is clear that the Group's pavwer systerns
portfolic - whether for use on land, al sea or in the air - provides products and
services for which there will be a strong, global demand for the foreseeable future.
Importantly, the sectars in which the Group operates are characterised by high
barriers to entry because of the advanced technologies required and routes to
market which have 1© be established and maintained. Rolls-Royce will be able to
exploit these advanlages over many years as the globa! economy recovers and
resumes growsh,

A long-term business

The longevity of our programimies, the scale of our order bock and 1he increasing
importance of our services activity suggest that over the next ten years the Group
can double in size through organic growth alone. In civil aerospace, for example,
based on our understanding of the order book and the long-term programmes in
which we are involved, we see a market potential for around 8,000 wide-bodied
aircraft over (he next 20 years, a very significant opportunity for our Trent engine
famnity.
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Investing for growth

Ralls-Royce has a strong track record of developing businesses by investing in
arganic growth, pannerships and acquisitions. Qur civil aerospace business is a
case in point. Qur acquisition of the Allison Engine Company in 1995 helped
Rolls-Royce build up a streng position in the corporate and regional jet market
through the highly successful AE 3007 programme. Our joint venture with BMW in
1990 enabled us io establish a new centre of excellence in Germany for two shalt
engines, an important strategic development which culminated in the Group
buying out BMW' share of the joint venture in 1999, Collaboration also played a
key role in the development of the Trent programme, with Rolls-Royce agreeing
animportant series of risk and revenue sharing partnerships with a wide range of
global comganics,

A consistent approach

We are aking the same approach 1o develop our marine business which was
transformed by the acquisition of Vickers in 1999, We gained access to new
capabilities including design and integration systerns, propulsion and control
equipment, 2 glohal sales and services network and routes to market for the
cffshore and rmerchary sectors. This cormbination of a strong ship dasign capability
and the provision of high technology equipment and systerns has enabled
marine te improve its market access and broaden its product offering,

Defence agrospace has similarly been rransformed frorm a narrowly focused
business which was overly dependent on the UK to one which provides engines
and service support on a global basis and across a wide range of sectors including
fast jets, transport aircraft, unmanned vehicles, trainers and helicopters, We have
micre than 160 customers in 103 countries, with the USA now accounting for
around 45 per cent of defence aerospace revenues.

Exploring new opportunities as a power systems company
Looking ahead, the Group can take full advantage of its strong systems integration
capability based on its knowledge of technology, its close understanding of
custorners’ needs and its ability as & power systems company to apply these
integration skills in support of the customer. This will enable the Group to exploit
its technological strengths in adjacent markets and to develop its existing
businesses through partnerships and acquisitions.

A good example of this is civil nuclear, In 2008, we established a new
business unit to address the rapidly expanding global market for nuclear power
generation which we estimate could be worth around £50 billion per year within
15 years. The civil nuclear opportunity plays to our strengths.

It requires technological expertise, systems integration capabilities and a
global supply chain, all of which we have developed during the 50 years we have
designed, manufactured and supported nuclear reactors for the Roya! Navys
subrnaring fleet,

We will also use this approach to take advantage of cther opportunities
address distributed power and altermnative encrgy.

World-class people
In responding te the short-term challenges we are currently facing and in
developing the business for the longer term, our peopie are our strongeast asset.
Rolls-Royce is a power systerns company, powered by Lthe knowledge,
experience and imagination of all our employees across the world. Qur
advantages are dependent on the contributions they make and in this
increasingly challenging period | am particularly indebted to all of our people for
everything they doin support of the business.

Future prospects

The Group expects that in 2009 its global markets will be affected by reducing
demand and the impact of financing constraints, We will continue to manage the
consequences of airframe programme slippages.

Cash generation will be affected by the reduction in new orders and
associated deposit intake and the impact on inventory of any delays or
cancellations. There are afso likely to be requests for customer and suppier
financial support which will be considered by the Group on a case by case basis. In
the current environment it is expected that in 2009 despite a cash outflow, the
average net cash balance of the Group will increase. The Group's current view is
that underlying revenues will continue to grow and underlying profics for the year
will be broadly similar to these achieved in 2008,

Sir John Rose
Chief Executive
February11, 2009




Business review continued

Our strategy

As a power systems company, Rolls-Royce focuses
on supplying its customers with integrated
systems to meet their power and propulsicn
needs, Our consistent strategy has five elements:

Address four global markets
We are a leading integrated power systems company operating in the
civil and defence aerospace, marine and energy markets.

Invest in technology, infrastructure and capability

Over the past five years, we have invested £3.7 billion in research and
development We invest approximately £30 million annually in
training and over £300 million a year on capital projects.

Develop a competitive portfolio of products and services

We have more than 50 current product programmes and we are
involved in many of the future projects in the markets we serve. These
key projects will define the power systenis market for many years.

Grow market share and installed product base
Across the Group, the instalted base of engines in service is expected
to generate attractive returns gver many decades.

Add value for our customers through the provision of
product-related services

We seek to add value for our customers with aftermarket services that
will enhance the performance and reliability of our products.

The core characteristics which define our business and underpin
the delivery of this strategy are:

Closeness to our customers

We develop close relationships with our customers aver many years. This allows us
1o offer solutions, often in partnership with our customers, to meet their specific
requirernents.

Domain knowledge

Underpinning cur sales of equipment and related services is a deep knowledge of
the averall environrment in which our eguipment is used. This allows us to provide
the aptirmum level of service and focus our activities to meet our customers needs
and grow our business.

Integrated systems

We suipply our customers with products, related services and whole systems, Our
ability to integrate and optirnise systerms enatyles us to create value for custorners
in alf our main markets.

Technelogicat superiority
Our investments in technaology and capability provide Rolls-Royce and our
cuslorners with competitive advantage.

Operational excellence

We aim (o operate at the highest standards, to ensure that we continue to meet
our customers' requirements in the quality, performance, durability and delivery of
our products, systems and services.

Organisational capability

Because we are a global company we have the ability 10 recruit and retain capable
people in many locations. Qur investrnent in training and the varied career
opportunities are key to our success in retaining high-quality people.

Brand

We have an exceptionally strong brand which is recognised globally and
embedies qualities that create a common focus for all our people,
wherever they are located
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Business review continued
Our business

Market outlook

The Group operates in four long-term global markets — civil and

defence aerospace, marine and enerqy. These markets create a total

opportunity worth some twao trillion US dollars over the next 20 years

and:

~  have very high barriers to entry;

- offer the opportunity for organic growth;

- feature extraordinarlty long programme lives, usually measured in
decades;

- canonly be addressed through sigrificant investments in
technology, infrastructure and capability; and

- create a significant opportunity for extended customer
relationships, with revenues from aftermarket services similar in
size to original equipment revenues.

The size of these markets is generally related 1o world Gross Domestic

Product (GDP) growth, or in the case of the defence markets, global

security and the scale of defence budgets.

Civil aerospace

The Group publishes a 20 year global market outlook, which covers passenger
and carge jets, corporate and regional aircraft. We predict that over the next

20 years 131,000 engines, worth over USS700 billion, will be required for more
than 60,000 commercial alicraft and business jets. The forecast predicts faster
growth rates for long-haul markets and those markets to, from and within Asia.
These markets will continue to benefit from more liberal air service agrecments,
which boost demand. Factors affecting demand include GOP growah, aircraft
productivity, operating ¢osts, environrnental issues and the number of aircraft
retirarnents, While the market can be temporarily disrupted by external events,
such as war, acts of terrorism, or econamic downturns, it has, in the past, always
returned to its long-term growth trend. In addition 1o the demand for engines, Lhe
Group forecasts a market opportunity werth US$550 billion for the provision of
product-related aftermarket services.

Defence aerospace

The Group forecasts that demand for new military engines and throughr-life
support will be worth US$450 billion over the next 20 years, The largest single
rmarket is expected 10 be the US, followed by Europe and the Far East. Within Asia,
demand will be dominated by Japan, South Korea and India. Trends are driven

by the scale of defence budgets and geopolitical developments around the world.

As in the Group's other business sectors, prograrmme lives are long and there s a
significant opportunity 1o support equipment with aftermarket services.
Customers' budget constraints and their need 1o increase the value they derive
from their assels have accelerated the move in this direction.

Marine
The Group forecasts demand for marine power and propulsion systems of
US$200 billion aver the next 20 years. Demand will be greatest in the commercial
sector, whera the merchant market represents 40 per cent of the total and the
offshare market, a further 40 per cent. Cornmerdial shipping plays a crucial role in
the world economy. The need o transport raw materials, finishexd goods, people,
and oil and gas requires a farge fleet which has to be renewed progressively. The
expansion of trade and technological advances means more ship construction for
growth and for replacement as older designs become ebsolete. Finding and
extracting oil and gas offshore requires a large number of floating drilling and
production units which, in turn, are supported by a variety of service craft.

Merchart and offshore markets are rarely at the same stage of the business
cycle, which helps to reduce overall volatility. In naval markets, the Group expects
surface vessels to represent 15 per cent of the Lotal demangd, and submarines five
per cent,

Naval markets are driven by different considerations, with customers looking
Lo get more for their budgets, leading o increasing demand for integrated
systerns and through-life servicing arrangemenits. As in the Group's other markets,
rarine aftermarket services are expected 1o generate significant demand, forecast
at US$120 billion over the next 20 vears.

Energy

The International Energy Agency has forecast that over the next 20 years, the
worldwide dermand for cil will grow by 40 per cent, for gas by more than 50 per
cent and for power generation by nearly 60 per cent. To satisfy this demand, there
will be a growing requirernent for aerc-derivative gas turbines,

The Group's 20 year forecast vatues the 1otal aero-derivative gas wrbine sales
in the cil and gas and power generation sectors at US570 billion. Over this period,
demand for associated altermarket services is expected to be around
US$50 billion,

While the oil and gas market is farge and growing, demand for aero-
derivative gas tuibines in the power generation segmenyt is four times that of ol
and gas.

Note: A long-term conversion rate has been used where necessary in order 1o
present all figures in USS,




Key performance indicators

The Board uses a range of financial and non-finandial indicators to
monitor Group and segmental performance in line with the straiegy
described on page 5. These indicators are chosen to monitor both
current performance and the success of investments that will sustain and
enhance future performance. Key performance indicators are included in
the appropriate sections of the business review and are as follows:

Underlying revenue
im

Underlying profit

before financing
£m

Cash flow

£m

Monitoring of revenues provides a measure of business growth. Underlying
revenues are wsed in order to eliminate the effect of the dedision net 1o adopt
hedge accounting and to provide a clearer year-on-year measure. The Group
measures foreign currency sales at the actual exchange rate achieved as a
result of settling foreign exchange contracts from forward cover.

Underlying profit before financing is presented on a basis that shows the
cconomic substance of the Group's hedging strategies in respect of the
transactional exchange rate and commadity price maverments. In particufar,
{a} revenues and costs denominated inUS dollars and eures are presented on
the basis of the exchange rates achieved during the year,

(o) similar adjustments are rade in respect of commaodity derivatives, and

(¢} consequential adjustments are made 13 reflect the impact of exchange
rates on trading assets and liabilities and long-term contracts on a consistent
basis. The derivation of underlying profit before financing is shown in note 2
on page 46 of the consolidated financial staternents.

In @ business requiring significant investment, the Board monitors cash flow
1o ensure that profitabiiity is converted into cash generation, both for future
investmeni and as a reward for sharehalders. The Group measures cash flow
as the movement in net funds/debt duing the year, after taking into account
the value of derivatives held 10 hedge the value of balances denominated in
foreign currencies. The figure in 2007 is shown after reflecting a £500 million
spedial contribution to the Groug's UK pensions schemes, as jpart of the
restructuring of its pensions schernes.
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Business review continued
Our business continued

Return on capital employed
%

£m

Gross research and

development expenditure
£m

2006 | 2007 | 2008

Net research and development
expenditure as a proportion of

underlying revenue
%

Return on capital employed is calculated as the after-tax underlying profit,
divided by the average net assets during the year, adjusted for net cash, the
net post-retirement deficis and goodwill previcusly written off, It represents a
measure of the return the Group is making on its investments,

investment in research and development underpins all the elements of the
Group's strategy. Prograrnme expenditure is ronitored in conjunction with a
gated review process on each programme and progress is reviewed at key
milestones.

The Groug’s research and developrment activities cormprise both self-funded
and customer-funded programmes, Gross expendilune measures the 1otal
research and development activity and is an indicator of the effectiveness of
the actions taken to continucusly improve the Group’s intellectual property.

Research and development is measured as the selffunded expenditure
hefore both amounts capitalised in the year and amertisation of previously
capitalised balances. The Group expects to spend approximately five per cent
of revenues on research and development atthough this proportion will
fluctuate annually depending on the stage of developrment of current
programimes. This measure reflects the need o generate current returns as
well a5 to invest for the future,




Capital expenditure
£m

Order book
fhn

2007 | 2008

Training and development

£30m

Annual investment

Employee engagement

39,000

Employees in 2008

To deliver on its commitments 10 customers, the Group invests significant
amounts in its infrastructure, All investrments are subject to rigorous review 1o
ensure that they are consistent with forecast activity and will provide value for
money. Annual capital expenditure is measured as the cost of property, plant
and equipment acquired during the period.

The arder book provides an indicator of future business. It is measured at
constant exchange rates and Fist prices and incdludes bath firm and
announced orders. In civil aerospace, it is common for a custormner to take
aptions for future orders in addition to firm arders placed, Such aptions are
exchuded from the order book. In defence aerospace, long-term programimes
are often ordered for only one year at a time. In such circumnstances, even
though thete may be no aliernative engine choice available to the customer,
only the contracted business is included in the order book. Only the first
seven years'revenue of long-term aftermarket contracts is included,

Training is a core elerment of the Group's investment in its capability and is
mieasured as the expenditure on the training and development of employess,
customers and suppiers. Effectiveness is ensured by using a mnge of external
and internal sources, and by gathering user feedback.

Regular surveys are undertaken to identify and address emerging issues. A full
empioyee engagerment survey is run every two years with smaller pulse
surveys in between. Training and employee engagement surveys are
discussed further in the carperate responsibility section of this review,
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Business review continued 10
Our business continued

I A measure of personnel productivity, this indicater measures published
?0?)0 es per employee revenue generaied per employes.,

2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007 | 2008

. Uniit costs are a key determinant of the Groug's ability to deliver its
Product cost index comynitrnents on a profitable basis, The Group rmonitors the year-on-year
Year-on-year increase/(decrease) % change in the actual average unit product ¢ost of its gas turbine operations
and seeks aver time 1o improve productivity in all owned facilities and those
of its suppliers,

Increase

[ecrease

. . . The Group’s installed engine base represents an opportunity to generate
Eng'ne deliveries future altermarket busingss. This is rneasured as the number of Group
products delivered during the year within each business except for marine, as
its products do not lend themselves to this measure due o their diversity.

[ lled th ivil Installed thrust is the indicator of the armount of product in use by cur
nSt‘a. ed thrust - civs customers and therefore the scale of opportunity Lhis presents for our services
Ibs million business.

200 i 2006 | 2007 | 2008




Percentage of civil fleet

under management
%

2005 | 2006 | 2007

Underlying services revenue
m

2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007 | 2008 |

Emissions

11

Long-term coniracts are an important way of generating value for custorners,
The percentage of fleet under management gives a reasure of the
proportion of the installed base where the future aftermarket arrangements
are agreed under long-term contracts, This is measured as the percentage of
gas turbines and subrmarine progpuision units where the Group has
contracied a long-term service arrangement. In civil aerospace, mavine and
energy, the percentage is weighted (o refleci the value of the eguipment
under management.

Underlying services revenue shows the amount of business during the year
that has been generated from the inslalled engine base. This is measured as
the revenue derived from spare parts, overhaul services and long-ierm service
arrangerments.

Much of the research and developrnert expenditure is focused on reducing
ernissions of the Group's products. The Group measures both the ernissions of
its products and the ernissions of its manufacturing operations. These
measures are described in detall in the environment report, Powering a better
world, which is available on the Group's websile, wwavrolls-roycecom.
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Business review continued
Our business continued

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group continues to be exposed 1o a number of risks and has an
established, structured approach to identifying, assessing and
managing those risks. The risk committee has accountability for the
system of risk management and reports regularly to the Board on the
key risks facing the business and the mitigating actions put in place to
deal with them. The Group's consistent strategy and leng-term
pregrammes require that key sources of risk are identified in advance
and are maintained under continuous review.

The risks described below are among those that the Group
considers might have an impact on the Group’s performance. This is
notwithstanding other risks and uncertainties that are currently
unknown to the Group or which the Group does not presently
cansider to be material. The principal risks reflect the global growth of
the business, and the competitive and challenging business
envirconment in which it operates. Risks, including those to the Groups
reputation, are considered under four broad headings:

—  Business enviranment risks
Strategic risks

Financial risks

Operational risks

Business environment risks

Cyclical downturn — global recession

The current challenging economic environment is 3 source of some uncertainty
for the Group. The length and depth of the current recession and constraints
caused by reduced liquidity from global capital markets may hinder the ability of
custorners and suppliers 1o make planned investrmants in all sectors. The Group's
fargest market, civil agrospace, is cyclical by nature, althaugh services activity and
revenues, Now representing more than 80 per cent of the civit aciospace business
annual revenug, have histerically been less volatile in economic slowdowns and
are considered more predictable and robust than the sales of engines for

new aircraft.

The contribution from the Group’s global activity in other non-civil serospace
markets is becoming more significant. It now represenis around 50 per cent of
Group revenues, and these markets are iso tess cyclical in nature,

The Group’s broadly balanced power systems activities, access to global
rarkets with greater diversification by sector, customer and geography and an
improved balance between original equipment and services revenugs arg
expected w help mitigate the effects of the slowing global economy.

The Group has a robust balance sheet wilh positive net cash. The changes
made 1o the UK defined benefit pension schemes should ensure a less volalile,
more predictable funding requirement in the future,

External events or factors affecting alr travel

The civil aerospace business remaing an important contiibutor to the Group’s
revenues and profits. The willingness of passengers 1o travel by air is influenced by
a range of factors, including economic conditions, health and security issues. Any
prolonged reduction in air iravel would impact aidines' revenues and cash flows,
and potentially reduce their need for new engines, spare parts or aftermarket
SUPPOIT Services.

Exposure to this risk is mitigated by the Group’s business strategy, which has
driven it to become a global operation with a broader business base, with 50 per
cent of revenues and 40 per cent of earnings now generated outside the civil
aerospace business from its defence aerospace, maring and engrgy businesses.

The Group's crisis management plan and framework would be instrumental
in responding to, and recovering from, wider external events such as the impact of
terrorist activity or an inflluenza pandermic.
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Environmental impact of products and operations

The Group recognises that its products and business operations have an imipact
on the environment, particularly related to dimate change. Rolls-Royce is
determined 10 be part of the solution to these environmental challenges and
continues to make significant investrnent ininnovative solutions for

the aviation, marine and energy markets. The challenge is being addressed
through the enhancernent of current product ranges and affordable research
and development into complementary technclogies such as nuctear power,
fuel cells and tidal energy. The Group continues to work closely with its
customers, industey partners and other stakeholders to implernent these
development opporiunities.

A robust governance structure headed by the Erviranment Coundl directs
and menitors improvernents in the environmental performance of the Group’s
products, and the Environmental Advisory Board reviews and makes
recommendations on the environmental aspects of the Group's products and
business operations (see pages 21 to 25),

Strategic risks

Deltvery of aftermarket

The Group's revenues are balanced between onginal equipment delivery and
altermarket services. The growth in praduct sates provides a large installed base, of
which 2 high proportion has successfully been contracted under long-term post-
sale support arrangements, so that aftermarket revenues now constituie a
majority of forecast revenue. A significant failure te deliver the aftermarket
commiuments made to ts customers and meet anticipated contractual
profitability could have an adverse impact on the Group’s financial results and
reputation.

The Group places great importance on working closely in partnership with
its customers to understard their operations and align the Groups senvice
capability to meet their needs. Within the dedicated services organisation,
rmanagement intiatives have developed rebust processes, strugtures and
netwaorks to ensure required support levels ¢an be delivered effectively and
economically. Nevertheless, economic pressures on commercial aviation,
as well as changes in reguilations, could lead e reductions in utilisation rates
and cperational budgets, representing a continuing threat to the realisation of
future revenues.

Competitive pressures

The rmarkets in which Rolls-Royce operates are highly competitive. The majority of
its programmes are fong term in nature and access to key platforms is critical
the success of the business. This requires sustained investrnent in technology,
capability and infrastructure, all crealing high barriers to eniry. However,

these factors alone do not protect the Group from competition, including

pricing and technical advances rade by competitors.

The Group has developed a balancad business portfolic and maintained a
steady focus on improvernent in cperational performance, for example through
the modernisaticn of its facilities. This, together with the establishrment of long-
term customer relationships and sustained investrment in technology acquisition,
allows the Group to respond to competitive pressures.




Expaort controls

Rotls-Royce designs and supplies a number of gas turbine products and services
for the defence aercspace market. Many countries in which the Group conducts
its business operate legislation controlling the export of specified goods and
technology intended or adaptable for military application. The Grougpis
committed to complying with the requirements from nationat govermments in all
jurisdictions when exporting goods, parts, technolagies or inforrnation, although
globalisation of the Groups operations brings with it complexities of concurrent
but differing national export control legislation. Non-compliance with expart
contiols is recognised as a pringipal risk 1o both programme performance and the
Group’s reputation,

The exporis committee, chaired by the Chief Operating Olficer, directs the
Group’s strategy and policy on exparis. Export conirol managers are embedded
throughout the business and the Group will continue to implemnent any necessary
changes Lo ensure that it maintains the capability necessary to imenitor and
comply with requirements,

Financial risks

These are risks that arise a5 a result of rnovements in financial markets. Principal
risks are:

- movernents in foreign currency exchange rates;

- intgrest rates;

- commodity prices; and

- counterparty credit risk,

A description of these risks and details of the Groups risk mitigation actions in this
area are provided in the Finance Director's review,

Operational risks

Performance of supply chain

The Group’s prodducts and services are delivered through the effective operation of
its facilities and key capabilities, inctuding its supply chain, The Group's success in
strengthening its market position places increased reliance on the performance of
the supply chain. The Group manufactures approximately 30 per cent by value of
its gas turbine producis, the remainder being provided through external suppliers,
including risk and revenue sharing partners. Meeting delivery commitments on
schedule, cost and quality are critical to the achievernent of business goals. The
Group has a consistent focus on cost reduction and performance improverment
and it continues 1o medernise its production facilities Lo imnprove productivity and
reduce costs. Investrent in developing world-class manufacturing processes is
continuing in Asia, North America and Europea, This also drives clevelepment of the
external supply chain through sourcing of parts from mary rew countries,

Ghobat supply ¢hains are inevitably complex with numerous inter-
relationships with a wide varety of organisations. While the Group's strategy is to
improve integration and simplify the internal and external elements of its supply
chain by building strategic links with fewer, stronger suppliers, it is siill prone to
disruption from financial or physical causes. A major disruption in any of these
elernents would adversely affect the Groups's ability to defiver ils operational
commitments and would have the potential to affect financial returns.

The planning for, and management of, any such interruption is addressed
through the Group’s business continuity managerment process, Substantial
progress has been made in the deployment of business continuity rmanagement
systerns and struclures to assess the likelihood and potential impacis of 2
catastrophic disruption 10 the Group's key facilities. In addition o the Group’s
comprehensive programme of business interruption insurance, significant
investment is being undertaken Lo establish, where possible, dual sourcing of key
companents. Increased focus is also being applied to understanding and
addressing sources of risk arising in the external supply chain, particularly those
associated with financial instability. Procedures are in place to monitor, assess and
respond in such circumstances.
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IT security

The continuing globalisation of the business and advances in technalogy have
resulted in mare data being transmitted across international communication finks,
posing an increased security risk. There is also the possibility of unintenitional loss
of controlled data by authorised users. In either case, adverse impacts upon
operational effectiveness, the value of intellectual property, legislative compliance
or the reputation of the Group might arise. The active sharing of information
through indusiry and govermniment forurms and the continual upgrading of
security equipment and software mitigate these risks.

Ethics

The Graup recognises the benefit thal is derived from conducting business in an
ethical and socially responsible manner. This approach extends from the sourcing
of raw materials and components to the manufacture and delivery of products
and services. It applies to the provision of a safe and heallthy place of work

ankd investment in technologies to reduce the environmentat impact of the
Group’s products and operations, Shortcomings in any of these areas could
darmage the Group's reputation and disrupt its business,

The Group is cormmitted to maintaining high ethical standards. A glabal
code of business ethics has been issued to employees and a face-to-face training
and engagement programme is in place in order to strengthen employee
awareness of the Group's values. The Groug's ethical standards are also
communicated o the Groups first-tier supply base through a supplier code of
conduct. Concerns regarding potentially unethical behaviours can be reported in
confidence via dedicated global telephene and internet channels. All such reparts
are followed up and will be monitored by the recently formed ethics commnittee.

Programme risk

The Group manages complex product programmes with demanding technicat
requirements against stringent, and sometimes fluctuating, custorner schedules.
This requires the co-ardination of the engineering function, manufacturing
operations, the external supply chain and other partners, Fallure to achieve
programme goals would have significant inancial and reputational implications
far the Group.

The Group seeks continuous irprovernent of all its processes and emplays
project management controls on a routine basis. All major programimes are
subject 16 Board approval and are reviewed regulasly by the Board with a
particular focus on the nature and polential impact of emerging risks and the
effective mitigation of previously identifiad threats.
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Business review continued
Review of operations

Key businesses and activities
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We focus on investing in technology and capabilities that can be successfully applied to our advanced products and services. We then market
and sell these through our four main customer facing businesses: civil agrospace, defence aeraspace, marine and energy.

Cur manufacturing base is becoming increasingly global, as is our supply chain, as we seek te bring our products to market in the most
efficient way. We have established a global service organisation with maore than 50 locations around the world to bring us closer to our

customers.

This section of the report reviews the year for each of the customer facing businesses, including our services activity, and the key functions

of engineering and operations.

Civil aerospace

- Agreements signed with risk and
sevenue sharing partners for 40 per cent
of Trent XWB programime

- Trent 1000 ready for first flight of
Boeing 787

- Successful entry into service of
Trent 900 with Singapore Airlines and
Qantas on the Ajrbus A380

- Successful entry into service of
IAE V2500 SelectOne™

- Successful first run of BR725 for the new
Gulfstream G650

The civil aerospace business powers over 30 types of
commercial aircraft from business jets to the largest
widebody airfiners. A fleet of over 12,000 engines is in
service with 600 airline customers and 4000
corporate operators.

The business centinued e perform strongly in
2008 despite the impact of worsening ecenomic
conditions on customers and on the air travel market
in general. Underlying revenue grew by 11 per cent.
This result was driven by increases in new engine
deliveries, which approached 1,000 units, and by
continued growth of senvices revenues which
accourited for over 60 per cent of total sales. The first
half of 2008 continued 10 see strong order intake and,
while arder activity slowed in the second half of the
year, the total arder book for ¢ivil aerospace grew to
£435 billion. Underlying profit was flat year-on-year,

In the corporate and regional market, the
3.000th AE 3007 engine was delivered, Meanwhile,
the newest member of the Group's corporie engine
family, the BR725 for the new Gulfstrearn G650
corporate aircraft, achieved first engine run on time in
April. The G&50 has enjoyed unprecedented market
interest, reinforcing the Group's teading position in
the coporate market.

V2500 SelectOne, the latest successful Y2500
engine standard, produced by the International Aero
Engines (IAE} cansortium, in which Rolls-Royce is a
major shareholder, entered service with IndiGo
Airlines of India.

Key financial data 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Underiying revenue £m 4,502 4038 3907 3406 3072
+11% 3% +15% +11% +13%
Underlying profit before financing £m 566 564 523 44 208
1 0% +E% +19% +112% 1249
Net assets £m 246 2,260 1889 1315 1357
Other key performance indicators
Order book £bn 43.5 359 200 190 16.2
+21% +80% +5% 7% 3%
Engine deliveries 987 851 856 881 824
Underlying services revenues £m 2,726 2,554 2310 206 1838
Underlying services revenues % 61 63 59 59 60
9% of fleet under management 57 55 48 45 45
Underlying revenue Market opportunity over 20 years
£4.5bn US$1,250bn

The Trent family continues 1o enjoy significant
success. The Trant 900-powered Airbus A380
completed a year of service and demonstrated
excellent reliability with Singapore Airlines (SI4) and
Qantas.

Further ordess for the engine were received
from SIA and Thai Airways International, The Trent 900
has now been selected by ten of the 13 operators
that have ordered the A380 and made an engine
decision,

The Trent 700 continued 1o win over 7 per cent
of orders placed for the Airbus A330, Significant
additional orders were alsc placed for the Trent 1000
for the Bocing 787, which has now been selected by
about 50 per cent of operators, and for the
Trent XWB, which is currently the only engine offered
for the Airbus A350 XWB.

Enitry into service of the Boeing 787 has been
defayed until 2010, Bul maturity testing of the
Trent 1000 has continued with successful
dernonstration of endurance programmes equivalent
1o two years of service. The Trent XWB prograrme
attracted considerable interest from risk and revenue
sharing partners with agreements signed by the end
of 2008 for around 40 per cent of the programme,
with major partners including KiHl and MHI of Japan,
TP of Spain, Volvo of Sweden, Hispane-Suiza of
France and Parker Hannifin of the US.

We continued to secure services contracts, achieving
arecord year for CorporateCare™ sales and selling
TotalCaie™ with approximately 90 per cent of new
Trent engine orders. A larger Cperations and Data
Centre was apened in September to support the
growing farge-engine floet under Rolls-Royce service
contracts, now totalling 5,300 engines.

We are actively exploring technologies and
prograrmmes that address environmental and
sustainability issues relevant to our business. Through
our Option 15-50 progiamme we continue to pursue
acomprehensive range of ieading technologies and
engine architectures to meet these challenges.

Global air travel and air freight is atrcady being
affected by the economic downtum. The scale of the
future impactis unclear, with airframe detays and
concerns about custormer financing adding to the
uncertainties surrounding engine volumes,

The Group expects engine deliveries to fall in
2009 with an increasing risk of deferrals and
cancellations, weaker volumes in the narrowbody
and the corporate and regional sectors, and stable
Trent deliveries for widehody aircrafi,

Growth in senvices revenues will be modest
in 2009, held back by lower uiilisation levels, the
impact of parked aircraft and some softening of
uncontracted Tirne and Material' services revenues,
As a consequence, underlying profits will be lower
in 2009,




Defence aerospace

- £700 million contract secured for UK
strategic tanker aircraft

- US%915 million contract for AE 2100
engines signed with Alenia

- Development of the F136 engine for the
F-35 funded for 2009

~ US$131 million F-35 Rolls-Royce
LiftSystemn® contract awarded

—  £258 miillion service and support
contract for Gnome helicopter engines

- £198 million contract to support UK
Pegasus engine fleet

Rolls-Royce is Europess largest defence aero-engine
company, serving 160 customers in 103 countries
and with 18000 engines in service.

We have a product range of 25 engings that
povver aircralit across the key market sectors of
combat, transport, helicopters, trainers, patral,
maritime and reconnaissance,

During 2008, the business continued o
strengthen its market position, winning key contracts
2Cr0ss its product and service range, particularly in
the growing transport aircraft and military support
sectors. This inchsded the development of our
innovative range of aftermarket services, known as
MissionCare®, which enables Rolls-Royce 1o tailor
support services solutions to customers' individual
recjuirerments.

The new operations facility in Bristol, UK,
opened in the first guarter of 2008. It delivers a step
change in engine assembly, developrnent and
logistics and, in combination with more flexible
working practices, brings greater efficiencies to the
marufacturing process.

In the combat aircraft macket, the £J200
powerplant for the Typhoaon aircraft achieved several
landmarks, with the 500th engine delivery and
100,000 flying hours in operationa! service.

We also made progress on both engine
prograrmmes for the Joint Strike Fighter. First flight of
the F-35 STOWL (short take off and vertical landing)
version, fitted with the Rolls-Royce LiftSystem?®, took
place in May and the first LiftSystem production
contract was secured in December at a value of
U55131 million.

The F136 engine, jointly developed with GE for
all£-35 variants, achieved US Government funding for
2009 and passed its test rilestones prior to delivery
of the first production standard engine in early 2009,
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Key financial data 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Underlying revenue £m 1,686 1673 1,601 1420 1,374

+1% 149 +13% + 3% <2

Underlying profit before financing £m 223 199 195 175 179

+12% 12% +11% -2 H2 5%

Net assets £m (228) {247) {83) (56) {48}
Other key performance indicators

Order book £bn 5.5 44 32 33 33

+25% +33% -3% % 2%

Engine deliveries 517 495 514 565 548

Underlying services revenues £m 947 877 853 787 768

Underlying services revenues % 56 52 53 55 56

% of fleet under management 12 1 1 8 5

Underlying revenue

£1.7bn

Market opportunity over 20 years

US$450bn

We also consolidated our market lead in the transport
aircraft rmarket, signing a US$915 rillion agreement
with Alenia Aeronautica for the AE 2100 engine in the
C-27) military transport aircraft, This engine also won
further orders for its application in the C-130).

Defence aerospace’s other major collaborative
programme — the TP400 engine for the A400M
military transport aircraft — made progress in the year.
it has completed rmere than 2,000 hours of ground
testing and has successfully undertaken its first flights
on the flying testbed.

As a shareholder and sub-contracior of the
AirTanker cansortium, we secured a 27-year engine
and support contract worth over £200 million from
the UK Ministry of Defenge (MoD) for the UK Future
Strategic Tanker Aircraft under an innovative private
finance scherne, This Airbus A330M airceaft is
powered by the civil Trent 700, representing new
aftermarket apportunities for this engine in a defence
environment,

Orders for our innovative aftermarket solutions
included a L5490 million engine availability contract
for the 745 Goshawk trainer with the US Nawy, and
the UK Mobs first full avaitability contract to suppont
its Gnome-pawered Sea King helicopter fleet at a
value of £258 rnillion,

In the helicopter secter, the RR300 was certified
ahead of schedule and the first Rolls-Royce
Honeywell LHTEC 7800 engine was defivered to
AgustawWestland for the UK Future Lynx Battlefield
Reconnaissance prograrmme.

Looking to the future, we are working on two
important research and technology program mes for
the US Air Force, Adaptive Versatile Engine
Technology (ADVENT) and the Highly Efficient
Embecided Turbine Engine (HEETE).

In the unmanned vehicle sector, we have been
selected 10 provide the Integrated Power System for
the UK’ Mantis demonstrator, while we continue to
work on the MoD Taranis unmanned combat vehicle
demonstiator. The Rolls-Royce AE 3007 engine, which
powvers the Global Hawk high altitude unmanned
aerial reconnaissance system, was selected for the
naw US Broad Area Maritime Surveillance
prograrmme.

Significant opportunities exist in the global
defence market, particularly in the combat, transpor,
unmanned and helicopter sectors.

The business also continues to develop
innovative aftermarket solutions, with services now
generaling over 50 per cent of sales.

Further strong growth in engine deliveries for
the military transport sector is expected to support
another year of profit growth in 2000,
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Business review continued
Review of operations continued

Marine

- £901 million of sales in the cffshore
sector

- £96 million contract 10 power new
Royal Navy aircraft carriers

- Order book grown to £5.2 billion

- Major global services expansion now
under way

Marine is now the second largest Rolls-Royce
business in revenue terms, with a world-class range
of capabilities and expertise in naval surface ships,
submarines, offshore oif and gas and rmerchant
vessels, It has equipment installed on aver 30,000
vessels, including those of 70 navies, representing a
major opportunity for services gromih,

The marine business has enjoyed a year of very
strong growth. Our revenues since 2005 have
doubled and increased by 42 per cent on 2007,
driven by continuing growth in our offshore business
which itsell grew by 38 per cent in 2008, Marine profit
has also increased by 62 per cent in 2008,

As our installed base of equipment grows, we
are expanding our services capability and investing in
new service centres globally 1o realise the significant
opportunily thal Lhis represents. In addition, the
expertise established in our acrospace businesses,
including equipment health menitoring and
long-term service agreements, is being applied to
further increase Marine’s service revenues,

The offshare sector has been central to our 2008
performance, based on the success of our spedialist
UT-Design and integrated systems capability which is
the industry benchmark. Driven by significant
investrnent in deep waler exploration and
production by Lhe ol and gas industry, the sector has
generated record sales of £901 miillion in 2008,

We have been particutarly successful in the
Asian offshore market, winning orders valued at
£666 milliony in 2008 including contracts worth
£84 million to supply propulsion equipment for
offshore vessels being built in China and Korea.

Two further landmark orders were received from
China: a £58 million contract with China Oilfiekd
Services Ltd and a £13 million contract wilth BGP
Marine China to design and equip an advanced
seismic research vessel.
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Key financial data 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Underlying revenue £m 2,204 1,548 1,299 1,087 963
+12% F19% +18% +14% -1%h
Underlying profit before financing £m 183 13 102 87 78
2% +11% +17% +H2% 0%
Net assets £m 453 508 543 585 523
Other key performance indicators
Order bogk £bn 5.2 4.7 24 17 14
1% 1% 14 19% +21% 1179
Underlying services revenues £m 2 545 487 435 167
Undertying services revenues % 32 35 37 40 4]
% of fleet under management 35 33 3 3 0

Underlying revenue

£2.2bn

Market opportunity over 20 years

US$320bn

During 2008, we acquired Scandinavian Electric
Holding, which has further increased cur capability in
the design and supply of power electric systems. This
enhances our ability Lo provide systems for offshore
vessels, thereby increasing our overall market size,

Qur proven offshore system capabilities are also
being utifised in the developrnent of specialist
merchant ships, such as the contract 1 design and
power two vessels for Sea-Cargo AS which will be
equipped with innovative gas-ucllad Bergen
engines.

Our naval business also won a milestone order
in 2008: & £56 millier contract to provide power and
propulsion equipment, including four MT30 gas
turbines, for the UK’ new aircraflt carriers. As part of
the Carrier Alliance, Rolls-Royee is supplying an
integrated systermn which inciudes the propeliers and
propeller shafts as well as rudders, stabilisers and
sorme clectrical systems.

2008 was the 50ih anniversary of our
relationship with the UK Government on the design,
produciion and support of nuclear plant for the Royal
Nawy's submarine fleet. The submarines business is
prirmarily focused on service and support,
underpinned by an innovative £1 billion service
contract with the MoD signed in 2007,

in 2009, marine will establish a global
headquarters in Singapore which will enhance aur
global position and bring us closer 1o key customers
in Asia.

There were some modest cancellations in 2008 but 2
record order book, market leading positions in the
offshore sector and dermand for high specification
vessels provide good visibility of revenues in 2009
and support continuing strong growth in profilability
over the year,




Energy

~  Industrial Trent achieved record sates of
over US$380 million

—  Services business had record year with
over 200 gas turbine packages now
under TotalCare contracts

- Ciwvil nuclear business established to
address the growing global market

- Significant investrment in production
and test facilities

The energy business is a world-eading supplier of
power systems for onshore ang effshore oil and gas
applications, and has a growing presence in the
electric power generation sector. It supplies products
Lo custormers in over 120 countries.

Order intake remained strong in 2008, with
services once again pasting a record year and
continuing o account for nearly 50 per cent of total
energy sales.

African and Asian oil and gas markets were
particularty active in 2008, with eight RB21t packages
ardered for instattation off the shores of West Africa,
and six new cornpression sets for pipeline service in
India. Other oil and gas RB211 patkages were
ardered for customers in China, Malaysia and Algeria.

Of particular significance was a year-end order,
for eight Rolls-Royce driven compression sets from a
unit of the Russian naiural gas company, Gazprom,
The new packages will be installed on the Nord
Stream pipeline project running under Lhe Baltic Sea
frorm Russia to Germany. They are scheduled for
delivery in 2010, with service expecied ta startin
late 2011,

Market acceptance of the industrial Trent
drove another record year in the global power
generation sector, with orders received in excess of
U55270 million. These included 13 Trents for power
generation service in Ausiralia, Belgium, the Czech
Republic, Germany, Hungary, New Caledonia and
Slovakia,

1n North America, we continued 1o establish the
Trent's grawing footprint in the high-demand north
east US power generation market. Successful start-up
and commissioning was completed for a Trent
genset package at Lowell, Massachusetts, while
construction continues for two Trent units at
Braintree, Massachusetts for which start-up is
scheduled in the second quarter of 2009.
Reservations for an additional 18 Trent units in North
America were also received.
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Key financial data 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Underlying revenue £m 755 558 546 535 538
+35% +2% +2% 1% +Hb
Underlying profir before financing £m 2) 5 (18) m )
~1408%h +126% -1700% 186% +61%
Net assets £m 77 346 355 353 395
Other key performance indicators
Qrder book £bn 1.3 0% 05 04 04
4% 808 +25% ) 0%
Engine deliveries 64 32 44 61 47
Underlying services revenues £m 370 289 251 219 248
Underlying services revenues % 49 52 46 41 46
% of fleet under management 9 7 6 5 5

Underlying revenue

£0.8bn

Market opportunity over 20 years

US$120bn

The aftermarket business experienced another record
year in 2008 with sales of £370 million. Over 200
Rolls-Ravce gas turbine packages were covered by
TotalCare agrecments by year-end; this number is
expected to increase 1o over 250 by mid-2009. Our
product upgrades business also defivered ancther
strong year, enhancing customer value by applying
new gas turbine technology to increase the efficiency
and power of in-service units. Over 40 Avon 200 gas
turbine upgrades have been delivered over the past
two years to increase the power and efficiency of
these highly retiable machines, white demand for
control system and centrifugal compressor upgrades
also continues 1o grow as a result of enhanced
product performance benefits.

As part of our strategy to accommodate
growing proguction volume efficiently, we
consolidated packaging operations into our Mount
Vernon, Ohio lacility and ceased operations at our
Liverpoal, UK facility. Two new lean assermnbsly flow
lines, dedicated 1o Trent and RB211 packages, were
opaned in 2008, and construction began on seven
new gas turbine test beds which will become
operational in the second quarter of 2009.

In 2009, funther growth in original equipment
revenues, particularly in the power generation sector,
combined with increased services activity and lower
investment in fuel cells, is expected to deliver a
modest level of profit for the business.

While our energy business currently centres on
the gas turbineg, the skills and technical knowledge
within the Group allow us wo identify and explore
new growth epportunitics in the energy market.

The most significant of these in the near term s civil
nuclear, where, through our experience of
manufacturing and supporting nuclear reactors for
the Royal Navy's subrmarine feet, we have a strong
and unique capability. In 2008, we established a new
business o address the market arising from renewed
global demand for nuclzar power,
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Business review continued
Review of operations continued

Engineering and Technology
- Global research network expanded

- Further research work in US secured

- Eurcprop Intesnational TP400 flew for
the first time

- WR-21, the world's most efficient marine
gas turbine, entered service

- Trent 60 WLE dual fuel started service
operation

The Group's engineering and technology activity
includes our research and technology, product
developrnent and product upgrade operations
across our four customer-facing businesses,

We have 9600 people in our worldwide
engineering network, with major centres in the UK,
USA, Canada, Germany, Scandinavia, India and
Singapere. In addition, the Group leverages resources
through its global network of 29 University
Technology Centres (UTC) in seven countries, which
develop and acquire technologies for tomormow’s
Rolis-Rayte products. This network further expanded
in 2008 with the opening of a UTC in Pusan, Kerea,
develop high efficiency heat exchangers,

In 2008, we have continued to invest in a broad
range of lechinology development and
demonstration programmes, Research and
developrment expendilure was £885 rillion, of which
£490 million was funded frarm Group resources.

The net charge to the income staternent was

£403 million. A significart proportion of this
technology provides the foundation for products
with reduced environmental impact while delivering
increased value to our customers.

Butlding on our past research successes we filed
425 patent applications i 2008, a record year for the
Group.

We have made good progress on twa US Air
Force premier technology programmes, ADVENT and
HEETE, and won a further award for the Integrated
Vehicle Energy Technology Program (INVENT).

In Eurcpe, we successfully ran the Power
Optimised Aircraft (POA) engine dermonstrator,
integrating electrically driven engine cornponents
which traditionally are powered mechanically. We
alse achieved encouraging noise level results from a
rig test demonstrating the open rotor agro engine,
which has the potential to defiver a step reduction in
fuel consurmption.
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Key performance indicators 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Gross research and developrnent

axpenditure £m 885 824 747 663 601
Net rasearch and development

expenditure £m 490 454 395 339 282
Net research and development

charge £m 403 KH] 370 282 288
Net research and development

expenditure % of underlying revenue 5.4 58 sS4 52 47

We continued, with partners, to develop two low-
carbon energy technologies, The consiruction of the
500kW underwater tidal power turbing prototype has
started and we also began system testing our solid
oxide fuel cells. However, we have taken the decision
10 focus future fuel cells activity on the development
of the technology rather than production and
rnanufacturing verification in order to match product
readiness with market demand.

Qur focus on modern manufacturing continues
with the opening of the Factory of the Future, the
latest development of the Advanced Manufaciuring
Research Centre in Sheffield, UK. We are alse making
goad progress on the Advanced Forming Research
Centre in Glasgow, UK and three other
manulacluring research centres globally.

In defence aerospace, the Rolls-Royce Lifttan
flew on Lthe Joirn Stike Fighter in conventional mode,
ahead of full systern testing in 2009, The TP400,
developed by the Eurcprop International consortium,
for the A40OM military transport aircraft, flew for the
first ime on the flying testbed.

In civil acrospace, the Trent 900 dermonstrated
excellent reliability during its first full year in service
with Singapore Airlines and is alsa in operation
wilh Qantas. The Trent. 1000 centinues to bulld its
maturity on the test bench, awaiting first flight of the
Boeing 787. The first BR7 25 for the Gulfstream G650
ran on time and the engine is making good
progress towards certification. The Trent XW8 for the
Alrbus A350 XWB has now largely cornpleted its
preliminary design stage.

Our drive far improved inservice engine reliability
continues, with engine health monitoring data and
analysis technicjues delivering globally competitive
and improving levels of fleet reliability.

HMS Daring, the first of the WR-21 powered
Royal Navy Type 45 destroyers, was handed over o
the Royal Navy in 2008 The engine, with its
intercooled and recuperated cycle, is the world's
most efficient marine gas turbine.

The Littoral Combat Ship USS Freedom was
commissioned for US Navy service, demonstrating
successful integration of two MT30s, the most
powerful marine gas turbine in the world, derived
from the Trent 800 aero engine, The MTI30s together
with four Rolls-Royce Kamewa 153 $11 waterjets
drive this 3,000 tonne ship at speeds in excess of
40 knots.

The long life nudear core was successlully
instafled in the first Astute class submarine for the
Rayal Navy. With this reactor core the submarine can
operate for its whole lifespan without refuelling.




Operations

- Increased demand from all businesses
managed effectively by the supply chain

~  New product introductions included the
BR725, MT30 and JSF LiftSystem

- Successfully rephased production on
Trent 900 and Trent 1000 prograrmmes

- Underlying revenues per employee up
18 per cent

- New joint ventures signed with both
GKN plc and Gogdrich Corporation

Qur supply chain provides parts for both the original
equipment and aftermarket areas of our business, It
responded extremely positively to a significant
increase in dernand fror all secors, supporting a
growth in underlying revenue of 17 per cent in 2008.
New product introductions and the impact of
programme slippages were alse managed effectively,

Through cur make/buy strategy, we continued
Le focus on making only those parts which are rich in
intellectual property in order to rmaximise value. The
strategy was underpinned by engeing supply chain
rationalisation and the development of strategic
supplier relationships, exemplified by the agreement
of risk and revenue sharing partherships for 40 per
cent of the Trent XWB programme.

Business process improvements and the
ongoing rell out of new process systems like SAP and
PLM continued to drive operaticnal efficiency, for
exarnple enabling the reduction of 2,300 jobs in
support functions. As a result, productivity measured
as underlying revenues per employee, improved by
18 per cent on 2007. Qur modern domestic factories
continued to improve their productivity. However,
commodity prices resuited in a product cost index
rise of four per cent,

A range of new procluct introductions was
managed during the year, with the first run of the
BR725 engine for the Gulfstream G650, first flight of
the F-35 STOVL variant for the Joint Strike Fighter (JSF)
and plans established to deliver arders for the MT30
naval gas turbine and the JSF LiftSystern. We alse
successfully rephased our production programmes
for the Tremt 1000 and 900 engines in response (o
programme slippages on the Boeing 787 and
Airbus A380.
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Key performance indicators 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Capital expenditure £m 283 304 302 232 191
Product cost index - year-on-year

{increase)/decrease % (4) ) (9) ¢ 3
Sales per employee £'000 233 193 1692 186 169

In the medium to long term, our record order book
will drive a significant increase in the load on our
supply chain, though the timing of this increased
activity will be affected by programmie slippages and
the economic downturn, We are phasing the
development of our new manufacturing facifities in
Singapore and Crosspainte, US, to take account of
these impacts in order to meet demand in a timely
fashion.

In November 2008, we announced proposed
global job reductions for 2009 of around 1,502-2,000,
as & result of economic uncertzinties and individual
programme developments. We will continue to
recruit gracluates, apprentices and other employees
in order to support areas of particutar growth.

Our Business Process Improvernent programine
continued to direct spend on infermation
technology. We continued (o intraduce our design
and data management tool, PLM, and our planning
and scheduling tool, SAP notably ime Hong Kong
Aero Engine Services Limited (HAESL), our Hong
Kong repair and overhaul Joint veriture, Our services
processes will be further enhanced in 2009 with the
application of the Maximo planning tool.

We expanded owr capability during the year,
establishing strategic joint veniures with GKN plc, 1o
develop composite materials for fan blades, and
Goodrich Corperation, to develop and manufacture
engine controls.

Qur success is based on operationa! excelience,
strong partnerships and technological superiority.
We would like 1o thank all aur employees, suppliers
and partners for their commitment to these core
principles and for their hard work during the year.
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Business review continued
Review of operations continued

~ Services

- Service revenues increased by 11 per
cent to £4.8 billion

— 57 per cent of the civil aerospace flest
now under TotalCare suppert

~  More than 8,000 engines and auxiliary
power units covered by in-service
monitoring

- Expansion of joint ventures in Hong
Kong and Singapore

- Global repair services created, increasing
focus on repair technology

- Expanded capability of glabal Operation
Centres, including satellite sitas with twe
mMajar customers

The Group's services business includes field services,
the sale of spare parts, cquiprment overhaul services,
parts repair, data rmanagement, equipment leasing
and invertory management services, These services
are typically sold as a package under our TolalCare
banner.

Group senvice revenues increased by 14 per
cent in 2008, driven by good progress across all
sectors. Services represented 52 per cent of Group
revenues. The strongest growth was recorded in
maring, demonstrating the value of expanding our
service network in this sector. Our latest service
centre in Mumbal was openad in May and later in the
year we entered into an agreement with Abu Dhabi
Shipbuilders 1o provide waterjet services in the
Micldle East.

During 2008, we continued to investin our civil
aerospace service network, with extensions 10 both
Singapore Aero Engine Services Limited (SAESL) and
Horg Kong Aero Engine Services Limited (HAESL)
under construction.

This capacity will come on stream in 2009 and
2011 respectively and is being funded without
recourse 1o the joint venture shareholders. in its first
fuli year of operation, the overhaul facility we have
established with Lufthansa, N3, has made steadly
progress, successfully introducing Trent 700 capability
and expanding its customer base. Our figld support
capabllity has also been enhanced with the opening
of our eighth On-Wing Care centre, in Brazil, and we
are developing capability In the UAE in conjunction
with Mubadafa Development Corporation. On-Wing
Care services were provided for over 3,000 engines
across the year.

We have continued to expand our services
provision with the successiul deployment of our
Electronic Flight Bag (£FB), now inits third year. The
EFB provides, among other applications, a key data
acquisition capability to optirnise overall aircraft and
fleet fuel usage.
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Key performance indicators 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Underlying services revenue £m 4,755 4,265 3.901 3457 3,251
Underlying services as percentage

of Group revenue 52 55 53 54 55

The TotalCare model encourages an integrated
approach, which means we work closely with our
customers to optimise the operation of their assets
while carefully managing costs. We conduct
in-service monitoring for over 8,300 engines
worldwide, providing engine health monitering and
data analysis services in conjunction with our
expanded Operations Centres, This enables real-time
data acquisition and analysis to maximise operational
performance for our customers in parallel with
Gptimising support Costs.

We are alsc increasing the focus on overhaul
Costs, rearganising our compoenent repair activities
during the year to establish Global Repair Services.
This crganisation Lakes a strategic approach o repair
development and is investing in advanced repair
Processes.

Contract hightights for the year included
agreements with US Airways to support its
RB211-535 feet with a TotalCare package and &
similar contract with IAE for its V2500 fleet. TotalCare
sUpport arrengements now cover 57 per cent of the
civil aerospace Nleet, In defence aerospace we
competed for and successfully retained the F405
LS Navy contract, which we have been executing for
the past five years, the new cartract being for a
further year with four one year extension options.
Alsa notable were a number of helicopter contracts
including a £258 million award from the UKMaD to
support Gnome engines. In the energy business, ten
long-term service agreements were won with a 1otal
value of £ 160 million, We expect to agree afurther
ten energy contracts covering 50 new gas wibine
units that will be installed during 2009, taking the
number of packages under long-term service
agreerments (o over 250, or around 20 per cent of
thefleet.

The upgrade and standardisation of our T systerns to
support the services business continued and
underpinned our expanded-capability Operations
Centre, opened in the UK during 2008, We have also
defined a suite of integrated Service Lile Cycle
Management processes and supperting IT tocls that
we are rolfing out Groug-wide in a multi-year
prograrmme. The highlight for the year was a flawless
implementation of SAP at HAESL where the site
achieved near recard output in the rmonth the
systern went live.

We rernain confident that our service model is
aligned with our custormers'intarests, encowaging us
10 focus on maxirmising the effectiveness of their
assets. This alignrment and focus drive the invesiment
in capability and improved delivery that is the
hallmark of our services business.




Business review continued

Corporate responsibility

The business case for corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility is a fundarnental part of the Group's business

strategy. It is not conducted as a separate and self-contained activity,

but is integral to the business. This s because we see corporate

responsibility as making a key contribution to the success of

Rolls-Royce in the markets in which we cperate. We believe that

conducting business in an ethical and responsible manner creates

competitive advantage through:

- attracting and retaining the best people;

- building goodwill and maintaining successful working
relaticnships with customers, suppliers and governments; and

- supporting the global communities in which cur employees ive
and work.

The Group's values of reliahility, integrity and innovation are
embedded in our Global Code of Business Ethics. This provides a
framewaork for our stakeholder relationships worldwide, the strength
of which helps 10 shape the Group's reputation.

With around 39000 emplayees in more than 50 countries, our
strongest contribution to society is the wealth generated by the
thousands of highly skitled jobs we provide worldwide.

Governance

Each area of corporate responsibility has its own governance process

or managing committee, and each is ted by a member of the Board

or Group Executive. These include:

- the ethics committee, consisting exclusively of independent non-
executive directors;

—  the health, safety and environment committee, chaired by the
Chief Executive;

- the Environment Coundil, chaired by the Director - Engineering
and Technology;

-~ the Environmental Advisory Board, chaired by a senior academic
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology:

- the Global Council, chaired by the Director — Hurnan Resources;

- the Global Diversity Steering Group, chaired by the Chief
Operating Officer; and

~  the Group community investment and sponsorship commiitee,
chaired by the Chief Executive,

Individual subject matter experiise is reviewed by the Corporate Responsibility
Steering Group, which reports to the Board. This group comprises the Directar -
Human Resources, Director - Public Affairs, Director of Risk and the General
Counsel and Company Secretary. in addition, the corperate responsibifity risk
regisier uses the Group risk process to identify the potential risks and
opportunities, as well as mitigation plans to address these risks. Additional
information can be found in the principal nsks and uncertainties section an
pages 12 and 13.
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External recognition
Rolls-Royce is ranked in a number of external indices which
benchmark corporate responsibility performance, see below:

BitC BIE Index

In the 2008 Business in the Envirenrment Index, Rolls-Royce was once again
awarded Platinum status and maintained first position in the Aerospace and
Defence sector,

BitC Corporate Responsibility Index
In the 2008 Business in the Community Corporate Responsibility Index,
Ralls-Royee achieved Gold status.

Dow Jones Sustainability (World and European) Indexes

Rolls-Royce has retained its position in the Dow Jones Sustainability {(World and
European) Indexes for the seventh consecutive year. Achieving first position in the
Aerospace and Defence sector during 2008 confirms the Group's position amaeng
the best in class for addressing a range of sustainability issues.

Rolls-Royce has a long history of being a responsible business. We are committed
1o building on our track record and our obligation to behave responsibly.

Our approach
Our approach to corporate responsibility is concentrated on four
areas of activity:

Business ethics

High ethical standards are at the heart of the way we do business. Ethical
behaviour preserves and enhances our corporate reputation and we support a
clirmate that empowers all of our employees to do the right thing

Health, safety and the environment (HS&E)

With its heritage of technological and engineering excellence, Rolls-Rayce 1s well
placed to help sodiety address the preblems of climate change and energy
securily. We also believe that good HS&E performance is synenymous with good
ousiness performance and we aim to be recognised widely for the excellence of
our HS&E performance,

Employees

We aim to create an inclusive working envirenrment that attracts and retains the
best people, enhances their flexibility, capability and motivation, and encourages
themn to be involved, continuously irmproving performance. In doing so we deliver
on the comritrnent 1o all of our stakeholders of teing trusted to deliver
excellence.

Society

Rolls-Royce has a firm, long-standing commitment {0 the commwunities in which
we operate around the world. Sustained investrment in communities makes a
positive difference and delivers tangible benefits to our business. Corporaie
responsibility is also a key enabler in delivering our supply chain stiategy globally.
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Business review continued
Corporate responsibility continued

Business ethics

The Board believes strongly that the Groups business should be
conducted in a way that reflects the highest ethical stanctards. During
2008, we formed an ethics committee consisting exclusively of
independent non-executive directors. The committee will provide a
focus for development of the Group's global ethics strategy, our
approach to business ethics and the management of ethical and
reputational risk.

Global code of business ethics

Ralls-Royce has a global code of business ethics which sets out the principles for
employees to follow when conducting business and guidance to achieve the
requited standards, The code is avallable in 16 languages and can be viewed

on the Group's website at wawwirolls-royce.com.

Training and awareness programme

To ensure the code is embedded, we started a tiered trainihg programmie in 2008
that wiltl continue during 2009. The programme includes face-to-face workshaps
that will e delivered 1o around 3,700 rescurce managers across the Group,
including 1,200 vained in 2008 These ses5sions aim to increase awareness

of the importance of ethical behaviour while equipping managers with the
necassary 1ools to enable orward communication to their leams and to deal
appropriately with ethics related issues or questions. Employee briefings will also
be undertaken during 2009.

Confidential reporting line and website

Anindependently operated and confidential ethics reperting facility is available
worldwide so employees can raise issues or concerns regarding business conduct
outside of the normal ranagernent chain, This facility includes telephone
numbers and an external website, Rolls-Royce staff can call any one of

30 telephone nurmbers in countries across the world to report any concerns they
may have with regard 10 business conduct. Calls are made in total confidence and
outside the normal managemenit chaln, being handied independently by the
LRN - EthicsPoint partnership, The ethics cormmittee rmenitors cases reported, the
management of cases and the resuls from any investigations undertaken.
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Health, safety and the environment (HS&E)

The Group believes that good HS&E performance is synonymaous with
good business performance. Our stated vision is to be recognised
widely for the excellence of our HS&E performance and we aim to
have warld-class levels of performance across Rolls-Royce sites. These
aspirations are supported by a cornprehensive strategy and initiatives
endorsed by the Group Executive,

HS&E management

The Group's amangemenits for HS&E governance and management systems

implermentation are detailed in our Policy & Managernent Arrangements booklet

available on wwwralls-roycecom. We believe that all cases of work related ill !
health, injuries and environmental incidents are avoidable.

A full review of the HS&E organisation has been completed during 2008,
Improvernents aim to increase both the efficiency and effectiveness of HS&E and
include the appaintment of regional HS&E directars, the developrment of shared
services and the recruitment of high calibre HS&E professionals.

All the Group's businesses have third-party certification to the environmental
managernent systern standard 15O 14001, and our comprehensive Corporate
HS&E audit programme assesses the implementation of the HS&E management
systern across all businesses on a rolling audit basis. This year, audits took place in
the UK, US, Canada and Brazil across all businesses. In addition, an independent
audit of cormpliance with COSHH Control of Substances Hazardous to Health)
took place at several UK facilities,

The Group has recently committed to a programime of third-party
certification to OHSAS 18001, the standard for Qccupational Health and Safety
rmanagement systerns, across all businesses by 2012, This will provide
independent assessment across all of the elernents of our HS&E management
systerns. Both the 150 14001 and the CGHSAS 18001 international standards are
supported within the Group by a comprehensive range of global standards and
include pertinent areas such as risk management,

Wae operate three sites in the UK which together manulacture, test and
support nuclear reactor cores for Royal Navy submarings. The Cormpany Nuclear
Propulsion Assurance Committee monitors the performance of these sites
regularly to ensuie that the highest standards of health and safety are maintained
and that processes are robust and fit for purpose.

The Group's cantribution to developing best practice through third-party
collaboration continues to grow. We are taking a leading industry role in REACH,
the latest EU chemicals requlation, and continue to work with other companies,
trade bodies, sectors and regulators Lo prepare for implermentation,

Efforts have been focused on raising awareness within our supply chain, such
that appropriate arrangements for compliance and business continuity, including
the targeting of any futuresubstances of very high concern, are introduced well
ahead of deadlines, Within the aviation sector we have helped the development
and launch of international standards for the phased declaration of substances in
‘articles’supplied to us to facilitate future REACH compliance and, where required,
industry-wide substitution programmes,

We continue 1o participate and meet our ongoing commitrments under
various climate change agreements such as the UK Emissions Trading Scheme, the
ELJ Emissions Trading Scheme and the US Chicago Climate Exchange greenhouse
gas ernissions trading scheme.




Operational performance
To achigve our vision we continue to implement robust processes in order to
deliver against a number of key objectives and targets by the end of 2009. These
are detailed in our latest progress repert'Responsible Operations, which is
available on the Group’s websile at wwwerolls-royce com. We are already making
good progress against these targets across afl of our operations and have plans in
place to sustain this improving performance.

Cur data collection and reporting is subject to independent assurance and
recommendations for improvement by Delaitte LLP

In summary, our 2007-2009 objectives and targets are 1o

Protect health -10%
Target: Reduce the incident rate of occupational diseases and other work-related
il health by ten per cent by the end of 2009

Preventinjury -15%
Target: Achieve a 15 per cent reducticn in the lost-time injury rate {over one day)
by the end of 2009

Reduce environmental impact -10%
Target 1 Achieve a ten per cent reduction in energy consumed (normalised by
financial revenues) by the end of 2009

-10%
Target 2: Achigve a ten per cent reduction in sclid waste {normalised by financial
revenues) by the end of 2009

58%
Target 3: Achieve a 58 per cent recyde rate of solid waste by the end of 2009,

There were no fatalities in the Group during 2008, It is with regret that we report
the death of a contractor while working for a construction company ona new
facility at our energy business in Mount Vermon, Ohio. The UK Health & Safety
Executive has prosecuted the Group for two incidents during the year and
preventative actions have already been taken to avoid reoccurrence of similar
incidents in the future. Cne incident related 1o the disabling of an interlock device
by a machine aperator in our Sunderland (UK) manufacturing facility,

The second involved the exposure of agency workers to sand during the
decommmissioning of a foundry in Derby (UK}, The sand contained an additive
which is known to be an irvtant.

Product environmental performance

Rolls-Royce has a heritage of enviconmental innovation which means the Group is
well placed 1o help society ackress the problems of climate change and energy
security, We are determined to play a significant role in avercoming these
challenges.

The priority we attach to the envirconment is reflected in the profile of our
research and development expenditure, investing more than £800 miliion every
year of which at least two-thirds is directed at reducing the ervironmental impact
of our products and operations,

Thanks to our technological expertise, we have significantly reduced the fuel
consurnption of our civil engines since the first jet airiners entered into service
aleng with substantial reductions in smoke and noise, For example, the Trent 1000
enging is 25 per cent more efficient than the first RB211 engine.

The Trent 900 and {000 engines, for the Airbus A380 and Boeing 787
respectively, and In future the Trent XWB for the Airbus A350 XWB, help us make
progress towards meeting our ACARE (Advisary Council for Aeronautics Research
in Europe) goal of a 15-20 per cent reduction in engine fuel bum by 2020
cormpared to 2000 levels.

We are taking 2 leading role In research, including the Environmentally
Friendly Engine (EFE), a joint Government, industry and university programme,
aimed at improving the environmental performance of an aero engine In 2008,
the Eurepean Commission approved the faunch of the Clean Sky, Joint
‘fechnology Initiative, in which Rolls-Royce will lead a €400 million engine research
prograrme over the next seven years,
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Environmental performanice is fundamental across all of our businesses, For
axample, in the marine sector, our rmarket leading Azipull thrusters use 16 par cent
less fuel than conventional thrusters. This means that ships use less energy
resulting in lower erissions.

The Troup is investing in cther renewable erergy sources such as tical
power, working in partnership with the UK Energy Technologies Institute. (n
addition, we are working with fuel cornpanies to ensure that uture biofuels meet
our requirements, with the important caveats that they are sustainable, do not
compete with the growth of food crops and are used in the most effective way to
maximise the reduction in greenhouse gas emissions.

Nuclear power will represent an important component of future low-carbon
electricity generation, sitting alongside renewables and other measures. In 2008,
Rolls-Royce established a new civil nuclear business unit in response to the
opportunities presented by future expansion of civil nuclear power.

The Group believes that technalogy must be applied on an industial scale,
through companies such as Rolls-Royce with its global reach, to achieve significant
reduclions in emissions to address climate change. The Groups report on
ervironmental performance, Powering a better world; is available on the Group's
website at www.rolls-roycecom.
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Business review continued
Corporate responsibility continued

Employees
At the end of 2008, Rolls-Royce employed 38500 permanent staff in
over 50 countries.

The long life cycle of the Group's products makes it imperative
that we have a skilled workforce that is committed to delivering
excellence 10 customers aver the long term. To achieve this, we aim to
create an inclusive working environment that attracts and retains the
best people, enhances their flexibility, capability and motivation, and
ancourages them to be involved, resulting inimproving performance.

Engaging employees

In 2005, we formed a Global Council to improve consuftation and employee
engagement, This meets twice a year and involves aver 40 ermnployee
representatives or delegates from around the world with senier management
from gach business and function. In agdition, an executive committee of eight
alected delegates meets regularly throughout the year to support regular
dizlogue and timely consultation between council meetings. In 2008, full council
meetings were held in Berlin (Germany} and Derty (UK),

In 2008, we conducted the annual Corparate Storyboard, an interactive
Group-wide briefing on corporate direction and performance. Delivered face-to-
face to all employees globally, the storyboard ensures all ermployees acrass the
husiness have a good understanding of the Group's key objectives and the
individual contribution each can make, The initiative builds on the success of the
first Strategy Storyboard, which was widely welcomed by our employees.

During 2008, cur Employee Engagement Survey was redesigned and
incorporated into & two-year rolling global engagerment programime. This wil
improve our ability 10 test, identify necessary actions and better understand
employees level of engagement across the organisation and will be vital in
signalling the areas 10 focus on 10 improve engagement within the organisation.
The naw survay was launched in January 2009,

Rolls-Royce provides competitive pay and benefits in all its locations and
actively encourages share ownership by offering ShareSave plans to all employees.
Our employees have currently committed around £105 million to these plans. In
the UK, statutory anangements enable ermployees to receive part of their annual
benus in shares and to make monthly share purchases from their salary,

Encouraging diversity

The Group is cormmiltted to developing a diverse workforce and equal
opportunitles for all. This inciudes encouraging more women and people from
minarity backgrounds to pursue engineering careers. During 2008, we recruited
graduates for our worldwide graduate programme from 32 nationalities and
spprentices in the UK and Germary for our apprentice programme from nine
nationalities. Our global governance framework for diversity includes a senior
execulive Global Diversity Steering Group that provides leadership and shapes
strategic direction,

In Asia we continue 1o make good progress in attracting the highest quality
leadership talent. Several key managernent roles in Asia have provided the
OpPOrtuNity 10 Fecruit new senior local management. As the demand signal for
early career high potential talent strengthens in the region, we have also engaged
with several universities in Ching, India and Singapore to encourage students to
apply for our graduate recruitment and development programme.

Launched in 2006, our LIKWomen's Network continues to grow, focusing on
personal and professional skills development as well as providing support through
networking and rmentoring frameworks.

Our policy is to provide, wherever possible, employrment training and
development opportunities for disabled people. We are committed to supporting
emplayees who become disabled during employment and 1o helping disabled
omployees make the best possible use of their skills and potential.
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Learning and development

2008 was a year of transformation for Leaming and Development. A new global
Centre of Excellence, staffed by experienced professionals, supports businesses
with the identification of strategic training priorities together with the design and
procurement of new developmient initiatives.

The implementation of My Learning; a glebal customised Leaming
Management Syster, enables us to define behavioural and technical
competencies by role and afign learning and development to competency
profiles resuiting in a more focused, speedier and persenalised training service,

We continue to develop our delivery of face-to-face and online learming lor
our employees, During 2008, we have provided 3400 days of leadership training,
39,000 hours of online learning and 4,600 days of engineering systerns training,
We continue 1o deliver global prograrnmes such as business ethics training,
delivered to 1,200 senior ieaders in 2008, and the Corporate Storyboard rollout te
employees using trained facilitators,

Resourcing and deployment

The creation of a new global Centre of Excellence for Resourcing and Deployment
cansolidates our approach to strategic workforce planning, recruitment and
nerforrnance managerment and the development of employee capability.

We pursug professiona! depth and capability across all of our functions and
the Centre of Excellence spreads best practice globally, primarily through
development cell aciivity.

Development cells are regular forums held with senior leadership teams
through which we manage our leadership succession and individual career
development. Discussions are directly aligned 16 the development of resourcing
plans which identify the need for managerial, MBA, graduate and apprentice
resourcing requirerments.

During 2008, we recruited 141 graduates and 233 apprentices and
technicians worldwide and an additional 278 students were employed on short-
term fraining projects in the UK and North America, We remain in the upper
quartile of The Times Top 100 Graduate Employers'survey and have moved e first
position for engineering companies, Over 400 ermployees have benefited from
financial support and time off work to attend further education programmes &
local colleges and universities, and we provided £460,000 to finance this type of
learning. Overali we have invested £30 million in the education, training and
professional development of employees during the year.

Health and wellbeing

The Group s committed to promating best practice in occupational health and
now provides professional expertise through highly regarded outsourced
oroviders. The primary objective of the Group's occupational health strategy
rernains a culture of prevention rather than cure. The strategy maintains four key
areas of focus:

- screening and survetllance;

- rehabilitaion;

- health promotion; and

-~ education,

We have demonstrated goad progress against our screening and surveillance
targets. These are detailed in our report Responsible Operations, published in
April 2007 whichis available on the Group's website at wwwirolls-royce.com.

791 employees in our operations functions cermpleted the Health Risk
assessment pilot programme. The greatest return from this ool was encouraging
the majority who were at low risk to maintain their health and wellbeing.

AnOwnars Handbook' health manual produced in conjunction with the
Men's Heaith Forum was issued to all employees in 2007 and 2008 This covered all
aspects of general ifestyle and wellbeing for both men and wormen.

A'Know your body metrics health promotion campaign was olled out in
2007 and cartied on into 2008 to raise awareness and undersianding of
cardiovascular risk factors. Over 3,000 employees have boen screened at travelling
wellness booths. This has been our most successful campaign to date during
which 14 per cent were referred onward as the result of cholestercl levels and five
per cent for ghicose levels.




An anonymous onling questionnaire found that the ‘Owners Handbook’and the
‘Knows your body retrics' booklet were rated 25 goed to excellent’ by more than
30 per cent of respondents. Some 45 per cent said they had made beneficial
lifestyle changes as a result of the information.

A pilot programmie in one of our business units is taking place with the
Sainsbury Centre for Mental Health based on the successful Australian prograrmme
entitled beyondblue', designed to help managers to identify depression in the
workplace by involving them in a series of management training and awareness
sessions. A health promotion campaign on sleep and fatigue was also undertaken
in the auturmn of 2008.

Society

Suppliers

The Group sets and manages rigorous performance standards for suppliers
through its quality systern, Supplier Advanced Business Relationships (SABRe), This
includes a supplier code of conduct, which is complemented by the Group’s
purchasing code of conduct that ensures suppliers and ernployees work together
consistently.

The Group continues to foster productive supplier relaticnships which:

~  deliver mutual business benefits;

- minimise the environmenital impact of business operations;

- ancourage the highest standards of ethical behaviour; and

- promote human rights.

The expansion of sourcing in Asia and the Americas continues, along with supplier
training and the sharing of best practice. During 2008, we expanded our supplier
training prograrmme by 25 per cent.

Promotion of 'lean’technigLies and waste elimination continues, such as our
drive to reduce packaging waste. We have also run a pilol programme, engaging
30 suppliers, which has identified sighificant environmental benefits which we will
continue to develop.

Continuing our success in recycling metals within our manufacturing
facilities, including 1,250 tonnes in 2008, we are now working with our suppliers 1o
support them in recycling their waste metals. We have also introduced metal
recycling opportunities as a consideration in our sourcing decision process.

Building on internat success, we have conducted trials with 11 suppliers 1
embed process basics such as HS&E, visual management and workplace
organisation. Self-assessment allows suppliers 1o create programmes to improve
their performance and the feedback has been very encouraging.

Rolls-Royce supports the voluntary MoD Charter on Sustainable
Procurement. The Charter defines sustainable procurement as meeting dermand
for goods, services, works and utilities in & way (hat achicves value for money with
minimal adverse impacts on the environrment and society. We will menitor
progress over the coming years across all elements of the maturity matrix, one of
which is engaging suppliers.

The use of e-business conferencing has doubled during 2008, improving
global co-working particutarly in the area of supply chain management.

Laxal sourcing policies reflect government regulations, such as i the US where
particutar rules towards working with small and disadvantaged businesses apply.

Community investment

The Group has a leng-standing commitrnent to supporting its local communities.

Community investment is an intrinsic part of the way we do business, supporting

the Group's strategy and future success, particulary in the areas of:

- recruitrnent and retention of employees, particularly by investing in the
science skills we need;

- employee engagement, by encouraging a sense of loyalty, pride and
motivation about our organisation;

- development of professicnal and personal skills such as teamwork,
leadership, adaptability and ethical behaviour; and

- reputation, by building proactive and mutually beneficial relationships in the
communities in which we operate.
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During 2008, we conducted our fifth global survey of community contributions,
including cash, crployee tirne and gifts in kind, using the London Benchmarking
Group model The Group's total contributions across all these areas amounted te
approximately [6.8 million.

Donations and sponsorship

The Group's charitable donations policy is to directly suppert causes primarily
relating to educational, engineering and scientific objectives, as well as social
ohjectives connected with the Group’s business and place in the wider
cornmunity. The Group’s charitable donations amounted 10 £1.6 millicn, of which
£1.1 million were made in the UK. These included support for Community
Foundations, The Prince’s Trust and Help for Heroes. Elsewhere, Rolis-Royee made
charitable donations of £300000 in North America, £100,000in Germany and
£100000in other regions. These donations included support for the work of
United Way in North America and for the viclims of the earthguake in China,
among others,

Afurther £2.7 million was contributed in sponsorships and educational
orograrnmes, including the Smithsonian National Air and Space Museum in North
America, the Brandenberg Summer Festival in Germany, and sponsorship of the
Cub Seout Scientist Badge in the UK.

The Group has a stated policy of working closely with governments and
institutions to highlight the many career opportunities that science and
engineering can offer.

Our flagship education programme, the Rolls-Royce Science Prize, recognises
excellent and innovative science teaching in the UK and Northern Ireland, This
year's winner, St Anng’s Primary School in Antrirn, Northern Ireland, received a total
of £20,000 for their project on the treatrnent and uses of water. In all, £120,000 was
awarded 10 59 schools to improve science teaching and learming.

During 2008, the Science Prize programime was extended through the
spansership of Project ENTHUSE. This project will provide free professional
development courses to teachers in the UK through the National Science
Learning Cenire.

Employee time
Employee tirme contributed during 2008 is estimated at a value of at least
£1.7 million, with more than 4,000 ernployees partidpating in activities such as
community projects and team building activities with societal benefits.

A number of employess in the UK, North America and Germany cornpleted
a substantial community project as part of their personal development. Over 150
employees took part in 15 projects during the year, which are recognised at the
Groug’s Annual Leaming and Developrnent Awards,

A UK project with arts partner sinfonia VIVA was awarded the Arts & Business
People Developrment Award 2008, which recognised our innovative approach 1o
managing business change through an arts-based programme for team building.

Employee giving

In addition to the Group's own contributions, Rolls-Royce finances the
adrinistration of a Payroll Giving Scheme for UK employees, enabling thern to
make tax-fiee donations 1o their chosen charities, During 2008, employees gave
almost £444.000 to more then 350 charitable causes of their choice. The schemeis
recognised as Gold Award standard by the UK Government's Payroll Giving Quality
Mark, with approximately 16 per cent of employees participating in the scheme. in
North America, employees have contributed £172,000 directly from payroll to
good causes thiough the United Way scherne, a percentage of which is matched
by the Group.

In-kind support

The Group also supports community and educational organisations with in-kind
donations, including places on Group trairing courses and the loan of engines
and components,
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Business review continued

Finance Director’s review
Andrew Shilston

Introduction

The progress made by the Group in 2008 should be viewed against a rapidly
deteriorating external environment with significant negative pressures starting to
influence many industries and companies.

The Group delivered a strong 17 per cent increase in undedying revenues, &
ten per cent increase in underlying profit before tax to £880 million and a further
£569 mmiillion cash inflow which benefited from retranslation effects. The strong
improvernent in profits was achieved despite some significant beadwinds, notably
a further eight cents deterioration in the GBP/USD achieved rate that cost the
Group £104 millicn in 2008; and there was a four per cent increase in unit Costs.

The published results were heavily influenced by the significant adjustments
in foreign exchange rates in 2008, especially the GBPAJSD and the GBP/EUR which
are explained below.

The Group benefited from a strang financial positien and cradit rating with
net cash of £1456 million at the year end and with average net cash throughout
the year of £374 rniliion. The changes made to the Group’s UK pension schemes in
2007 mean that the deficit has remained stable and modest and the schemes
ended the year with a net deficit of £142 rrillion, as detailed in note 17 of the
financial statements on page 74. The very unusual circumstances that have
develeped through 2008 in global debt markets have, however, caused a large,
unrecognised surplus [ develop on the UK defined benefit pension schemes.

The redemnptions on the Group's existing bond financing, at around
£10 billion, are well spread with no material malurities in 2009, US$187 rmillion
due in the second haif of 2010 and a €750 million note due in 2011 as shown in
the chart below, The Group had a further £650 million in term funding available to
it that was undrawn al the year end.

Maturity profile of outstanding
Group debt facilities
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0

2013 | 2004 | 2015 |
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Foreign exchange effects on published results

The pace and extent of cunrency movernents have had a significant effect on the
Groups financial reporting in 2008, with the sterling exchange rate with the US
dollar and the euro having the biggest impact. These rmovements have influenced
both the reported income statement and the cash flow and closing net cash
position, (as set out in note 2 and the cash flow statement in the financial
statemnents), in the loilowing ways:

1. Income statement — Lhe most important impact was the end of year mark to
rmarket of outstanding financial instruments {foreign exchange contracts, interest
rate, commadity and jet fuel swaps). The principal adjustments related to the
GBPAJSD hedge book.

The principal movements in 2008 were as follows:

Open Close
GBP - USD —$1.991 -51438
GBP - EUR - €1,362 £1-€1034
Oil - Spot Brent 593/bhl $49/bbl

The impact of this mark to market is included in net financing in the income
staternent and caused a net £25 billion cost, contributing to a published loss
before tax of £1,889 million. These adjustmens are non-cash, accounting
adjustments required under 1AS 39 findncial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, As a result, reported earnings do not reflect the economic
substance of derivatives that have been settled in the linancial year, but do incude
the unrealised gains and losses on derivatives that will only affect cash flows when
they are settled at some point in the future 1o match tading cash flows.

Underlying results are presented on a basis that shows the economic
substanice of the Group's hedging strategies in respect of transactional exchange
rales and commadity price movernents. Further details and information are
included within the section on key performance indicators on page 7 and in
note 2 of the financial statements.

The achieved rate on selling net US dellar incorne will be similar in 2009 to
that in 2008 and will gradually improve thereafter as the Group is able to absarb
the lower vahue of sterling in its hedge baocks into the achieved rate. The
revaluation costs, which are measured at a paint in time, do not, therefore,
represent additional currency headwinds, The improving average rate in the
hedge book will lead to improving achieved rates over time,

2. Cash flow and balance sheet - the Group mainlains a nurnber of currency
cash balances which vary throughout the financial year. Given the significant
mavernents in foreign exchange rates in 2008, a number of these cash balances
were inflated by the effects of retranslation at the year end, causing an incrcase of
£439 miliion in the 2008 cash flow and hence the closing balance sheet cash
position.

Summary

The Group's revenues increased by 22 per cent in 2008 to £3082 million with

84 per cent of revenues from customers outside the UK.

Underlying growth of 11 per cent in divil acrospace revenues was supported
by strong growth from original eguipment with 987 engines delivered in the
year, a 16 per centincrease over 2007, and growth across all sectors -
widebody, narrowbody and corporate and regional. Services revenues
increased by seven per cent aver 2007,

- Underlying defence aerospace revenues were similar to 2007 with new
equipment revenues down seven per cent and services revenues increasing
by eight per cent over 2007.

- The maring business cantinued 1o grow rapidly in 2008 with underlying
revenues increasing 42 per cent from 2007 to £2,204 million, driven by
strong dermand for product and support in the offshore oil and gas sector.
Owerall new equipment revenues increased by 49 per cent o £1,492 million
with services revenues increasing 31 per cent 1o £712 million.

- The energy business made good progress in the year with underying
revenues up 35 per cent, supported by goed growth in both original
equipment and services activities.




QOverall underlying services revenugs increased by 11 per cent in 2008 to
£4,755 million and accounted for 52 per cent of Group revenues lor the year,

Underlying profit margins before financing costs reduced slightly from 106
per cent in 2007 Lo ten per cent in 2008, The reduction in margin was the result of
an increased proportion of original equipment to service revenues, increased unit
costs and further headwingds on foreign exchange. These were partially offset by
the benefits of increased volumes, improving productivity and cast reduction
activity. Undertying financing cosis were £36 million (2007 income £13 million)
including a gain of £3 million {2007 £43 million) on parent cormpany shares held
under trust, Excluding these gains, underlying financing costs remained relatively
stable and principally comprised net interest of £10 million and finance costs
associzled with financial risk and revenue sharing partnerships, The trust holding
the parent company shares was transferred to the parent company during the
year.

Restructuring charges in 2008 increased to £82 million {2007 £52 million) as
the Group continued its focus on operational improvernents, including the
reduction in the number of people working in support functions. These costs are
included within operating costs.

No dividend is proposed.

Order book
The order bock at Decernber 31, 2008, at constant exchange rates, was
£55.5 billkon (2007 £45.9 billion) with strong growth across all divisions.

This included firm business that had been anncunced but for which
contracls had not yet been signed of £6.1 billion (2007 £7.1 billion).

in civil aerospace, it is common for a custormer to take options for future
orders in addition to firm orders placed. Such options are excluded lrorn the order
baook.

in defence acrospace, long-term prograrmimes are often ordered for only one
year at a time. In such circumstances, even though there may be no alternative
engine choice avallable to the custorner, only the contracted business is induded
in the order baok.

Aftennarket services agreaments, induding TotalCare packages, represented
26 per cent of the order bhook, having increased by £1.4 billion in the year. These
are Jong-term contracts where only the first seven years revenue is included in the
order book.

Aftermarket services
The Group continues to be successful in developing its aftermarket services
activities, These grew by 11 per cont en an underlying basis in 2008 and
accounted for 52 per cent of Group revenue,

In particular, TotalCare packages in the civil aerospace sector now cover
57 per cent, by value, of the installed fleet. TotalCare packages cover long-term
management of the maintenance and associated logistics for our engines and
systems, monitoring the equipment in service 1o deliver the system availabiliey our
CuUStomers require with predictable costs, The pricing of such contracts reflects
their long-term nature, Revenues and costs are recognised based on the stage of
completion of the contract, generally measured by reference to flying hours. The
overall net position of assets and liabilities on the balance sheet for TotalCare
packages was an asset of £848 million (2007 £550 miltion).
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Cash

Cash inflow during the year was £569 million (2007 £562 million, before the specia!
injection of £500 million into the UK pension schemes). Continued grawth in
underlying profits and good cash corversion were supported by increases in
customer deposits and progress payments of £400 million and the benefit of
£439 million from year-end currency revaluations,

Working capital increased by £229 million during the year with increased
inventory of £208 mitlion, and increased financial working capital of £21 million.
Inventory increased in the year to support growth across all businesses and to
rminimise disruplion during the transition to new operational facilities. Some
reductions in depasits are expected in 2009.

Cashinvestments of £675 million in property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets represented the major cash outflows in the period. Tax payments
increased in the year to £117 million (2007 £71 milion).

As a consequience average net cash was £374 million (2007 £350 million).
The net cash balance at the year end was £1,456 million (2007 £887 million},

Taxation

The overall tax credit on the loss before tax was £547 million {2007 £133 million
charge), a rate of 300 per cent (2007 17.1 per cent). The tax credit in 2008 mainly
reflects the lass caused by the mark to market of outstanding financial instruments
at the year end.

The Lax chaige on underlying profit was £217 million (2007 £193 million) &
rate of 24.6 per cent (2007 22.8 per cent).

The overall tax credit was increased by £25 million in respect of the expected
benefit of the UK research and development tax credit This reduced the
underlying tax charge by the same amount. In addition, £11 million of provisions
for prior years wax fiabilities were written back following settlernent of a nurnber of
outstanding tax issues. The underlying tax rate is expected 1o increase to around
26 percent,

The: operation of most tax systems, including the availability of specific tax
deductions, means that there is often a delay between the Group tax charge and
the related tax payments, to the benefit of cash flow.

The Group operatas internaticnally and is subject to tax in many differing
jurisdictions. As a consequence, the Group is rautinely subject to tax audits and
examinations which, by their nature, an take a considerable peried to conclude.
Prowvision is made for known issues based on managerment’s interpretation of
country specific legislation and the likely outcorne of negetiation or litigation.

The Group believes that it has a duty to shareholders 10 seek to minimise its
tax burden but 1o do soin a manner which is consistent with its commercial
objectives and meets its legal obligations and ethical standards. While every effort
is made to maximise the 1ax efficiency of its business transactions, the Group does
not use artificial structures in its tax planning, The Group has regard for the
intention of the legislation concerned rather than just the wording itself. The
Group is committed 10 buitding open relationships with 1ax authorities and to
following a policy of full disclasure inorder to effect the timely settlement of its tax
affairs and 10 remove uncertainty in its business transactions. Where appropriate,
the Group enters into consultation with tax authorities to help shape proposed
legislation and future Lax policy.

Transactions between Rolls-Royce subsidiaries and associates in different
jurisdictions are conducted on an arms-ength basis and priced as if the
ransactions were between unrelated entities, in compliance with the CECD
Maodel Tax Convention and the laws of the relevant jurisdictions.

Befare entering into a transaction the Group makes every effort o determine
the tax effect of that transaction with as much certainty as possible, To the extent
that advance rulings andl clearances are available from tax authorities, in areas of
uncertainty, the Group will seek to obtain them and adhere 10 their terms.
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Finance Director's review coniinued

Pensions
The charges for pensions are calculated in accordance with the requitements of
1AS 19 Employee Benefits.

The decision by the trustees of each of the principal UK defined benefit
schernes, in consultation with the Group, to adopt a lower risk investment strategy
during 2007 has served its members and the Group well during 2008. The
carnbination of:

i} reducing the overall UK pensions asset allocation to equities from
approximately 80 per cent to 20 per cent;

iy hedging the majarity of interest rate and inflation risks associated with the
oension fiabilities, using swap contracts backed by shert-term money market
assets; and

it} anincremental £500 million cash contribution from the Group to the main

UK defined benefit schemes in 2007,
has significantly reduced volatility and losses as equity prices and interest rates
have fallen,

Reducing the volatility of the pension schemes is the primary objective of
the revised investment strategy to enable the trustees and the Group to plan a
schedule of more stable contributions with greater confidence of the schemes
bxeing fully funded in the future.

Further information and details of the pensions' charge and the defined
benefit schermes'assets and liabilities are shown In note 17 to the financial
staternents. The net deficit, afler taking account of deferred tax, was £93 milion
{2007 £88 miillicn}. Changes in this net position are affected by the assurmptions
made in valuing the liabilities and the market performance of the assets.

Investments

The Group continues te subject all investments Lo rigorous examination of risks
and future cash flows 1o ensure that they create shareholder value. Al major
investrments require Board approval,

The Group has a portfolio of projects at different stages of their life cycles.
Discounted cash flow analysis of the remaining life of projects is performed on a
regular basis, Sales of engines in production are assessed against criteria in the
original development programme o ensure that overall value is enhanced.

Cross research and development investment amounted to £885 million
(2007 £824 million). Net research and development charged to the income
staternent was £403 million (2007 £381 million). The level of self-funded
invasiment in research and development is expected Lo remain al approximately
five per cent of Group sales in the future The impact of this investrnent on the
incorme statement will reflect the mix and maturity of individual development
programmes and will result in a similar level of net research and development
charged within the income statement in 2009.

The cortinued development and replacerment of operational facilities
contributed to the total investment in property, plant and equipment of
£283 million (2007 £304 million), Investment in 2009 is anticipated to be slightly
reduced from the 2008 level as the investrnents in new facilities in the US and
Singapare are rephased to reflect the timing of major new airframe programmes.

Investment in training was £30 million (2007 £30 million),

Intangible assets
The Group carried forward £2,286 million (2007 £1,761 million) of intangible assets.
This comprised purchased goodwill of £1,008 million, engine certification costs
and participation fees of £403 million, development expenditure of £456 miltion,
recoverable engine costs of £213 million and other intangible assets of
£206 million.

Expenditure on intangible assets is expected to increase modestly in 2009,

Partnerships

The development of effective partnerships continues 1o be a key feature of the
Group's long-term strategy. Major partnerships are of two types: joint ventures and
risk and revenue sharing partnerships.
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Joint ventures

Joint ventures are an Integral part of our business. They are involved in
engineering, manufacturing, repair and overhaul, and financial services. They are
also common business stuctures for companies participating in international,
collaborative defence projects.

They share risk and invesiment, bring expertise and access to markets, and
provide external objectivity. Some of our joint ventures have becorne substantial
busingsses. A major proportion of the debt of the joint ventures is secured on the
assets of the respective companies and is non-recourse to the Group.

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

RRSPs have enabled the Group te build a broad portfctio of engines, thereby
reducing the exposure of the business to individual product risk The primary
financial benefit i a reduction of the burden of research and development (R&D)
expendilure on new pIogrammes.

The related RRL expenditure Is expensed through the income statement
and the initial progranime receipts fror partners, which reimburse the Group for
past R&D expenditure, are also recorded in the income statement, as ather
operating income.

RRSP agreements are a standard form of co-operation in the ¢ivil acio-
engine industry. They bring benefits to the engine manufacturer and the partner.
Spacifically, for the enging manufacturer they bring some or all of the lollowing
bengdits: additional financial and engineering resource; sharing of risk; and initial
prograrnme contribution. As appropriate, the partner also supplies components
and as consideration for these components, receives a share of the long-term
revenues generated by the engine programme in proportion ta its purchased
programme share,

The sharing of risk is lundamental to RRSP agreements, Partners share
financial investment in the programrne, in general they share:
~  market risk as they receive thelr retumn rorn Ruture sales;

- currency risk as Lheir returns are cdenominated in US dollars;

- sales financing obligations;

- warranty Costs; and

~  where they are manufacturing or development pariners, technical and cost
risk,

Partners that do not undenake development work or supgly companents are

referred (o as financial RRSPs and are accounted for as financial instruments as

described in the accounting policies on page 41.

In 2008, the Group feceived other operating income of £79 million
{2007 £50 milfion).

Payrnents to RRSPs are recorded within cost of sales and increase asthe
related programime sales increase, These payments amounted to £268 million
(2007 £199 million),

The classification of financial RRSPs as financial instrurments has resulted in a
liaility of £455 million {2007 £315 million) being recorded in the bafance sheet
and an associated underlying financing cost of £26 million (2007 £26 million)
recorded in the income statement,

In the past, the Group has also received government launch investment in
respect of certain prograrmrnes. The treatrment of this investment is similar to
norrfinancial RRSPs.




Risk management

The Board has an established, structured approach to risk management. The risk
committee has accountability for the system of risk management and reporting
the key risks and associated rmitigating actions. The Director of Risk reports to the
Finance Director, The Groups policy is to preserve the resources upon which its
continuing reputation, vizbility and profitabilicy are built, to enable the corporate
objectives io be achieved through the operaticn of the Ralls-Royee business
processes. Risks are formally identified and recorded in a corporate risk register and
its subsidiary registers within the businesses, which are reviewed and updated on
a regular basis, with risk mitigation plans identified for significant risks.

Financial risk

The Group uses various finandial instruments in order 10 manage the exposures
that arise from its business operations as a result of movemenits in finandial
markets. All treasury activities are focused en the management and hedging of
risk. It is the Group's policy not to trade financial instruments or to engage in
speculative finandal transactions. There have been no significant changes in the
Groups policies in the last year,

The principal economic and market risks continue 1 be movements in
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. The Board
regularly reviews the Group's exposures and financial risk managernent and a
spedalist comenittee also considers these in detail,

All such exposures are managed by the Group Treasury function, which
reports 1o the Finance Director and which operates within written policies
approved by the Board and wilhin the Group's internal control framework.

Counterparty credit risk
The Group has an established policy for managing counterparty credi risk.
A cormmon framework exists to measure, report and control exposures (o
counterparties across the Group using value-at-risk and fairvalue techniques. The
Group assigns an intema’ credit rating to each counterparty, which is assessed
with reference to publicly available credit information, such as that provided by
Moody's, Standard & Poor's, and other recegnised market sources, and is reviewed
regularly.

Financial instruments are only transacled with counterparties that have a
publicly assigned long-term credit rating from Standard & Poor’s of ‘A~ or better
and from Moody’s of ‘A3 or better.

Funding and liquidity

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of shareholders'funds, bank
borrowings, bonds, notes and finance leases. The Group borrows in the major
global markets in a renge of currencies and emplays derivatives where
appropriate to generate the desired currency and interest rate profile.

The Group's objective is to hold financial investiments and maintain undrawn
committed facilities at a fevel suficient e ensure that the Group has available
funds to meet its medium-term capita! and funding obligations and to meet any
unforeseen cbligations and opportunities. The Group holds cash and short-term
investments which, together with the undrawn committed facilities, enable it to
manage its liquidity risk.

Short-termn investments are generally held as bank deposits or inAAA rated
money market funds. The Group operates a conservative investment policy which
limits investments to high quality instruments with a short-term credit rating of
‘A1 from Standard & Poor’s or batter and P-1'from Moody's. Counterparty
diversification is achieved with suitable risk-adjusied concentration limits.
Investment decisions are refined Lhrough a system of monitoring real-time equity
and credit-cefault swap (CDS) price snovenents of potential investrment
counserparties which are compared to other relevant benchmark indices and
then risk-weighted accordingly.

During 2008, the Group did not experience any capital losses relating to its
investments as a result of the credit crisis.
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The Group increased its borfowing facilities during 2008 with the addition of a
new £200 million loan facility from the European Investment Bank (EIB) retaling 1o
research and development. As at Decermber 31, 2008 the Group had total
commilted borrewing fadilities of £1.7 hillion (2007 £1.5 billion). There are no
miaterial debt facility maturities until 2011. The maturity profile of the borrowing
facitities is staggered 1o ensure that refinancing levels are manageable in the
contexi of the business and rmarket conditions.

There are no rating triggers contained in any of the Groupss facilities that
could require the Group 1o accelerate of repay any facility for a given movement in
the Groups credit rating.

The Group's £25 million bank revolving credit facility contains a rating price
grid, which determines the borrowing margin for a given credit rating. The Group's
current borrowing margin would be 20 basic points (bp) over sterling Libor if
drawn, The borrowing margin on this faciity increases by approximately Sbp per
one notch rating downgrade, up 1o a maximum bormowing margin of 55bp, The
facility was not drawn during 2008.

There are no rating price grids contained in the Group's other borrowing
facilitics,

The Group continues to have access to all the major globat debt markets.

Credit rating

The Group's parent company, Rolls-Royee Group ple, subscribes to both Moody's
Investors Service and Standard & Poor's for its official publicised credit ratings. As at
Decernber 31, 2008 the Group's assigned long-term credit ratings were;

fating agency Rating Qutlock Category

Maody's A3 Stable Investment
grade

Standard & Poor’s A- Stable Investment
grade

A5 a long-term business, the Group attaches significant importance fo maintaining
this investrent grade credit rating, which it views as necessary for the business to
operate effectively.

The Groups objective is 1o maintain this A’ category investment grade crecit
rating from both agencies.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed 10 movernents in exchange rates for both forcign currency

transactions and the translation of net assets and income staternents of foreign

subsicliaries.

The Group regards ils interests in overseas subsidiary companies as iong-
term investments and manages its translational exposures through the currency
matching of assets and liabilitics where applicable, The matching is reviewed
reqularly, with appropriate risk mitigation performed where material mismatches
arise,

The Gioup is exposed 1o a nurmber of foreign currencies. The most significant
transactional currency exposures are US dollars to sterling and US dollars to euros,

The Group manages its expasure 1o movements in exchange rates at two
levels:

i} Revenues and costs are currency matched where it is economic 1o do so.
The Group actively secks to source supplicrs with the relevant currency cost
base te avoid the risk or to flow down the risk to those suppliers that are
capable of managing it. Currency risk is akso a prime consideration when
deciding where to Jocate new facilities. LS dollar income converted into
sterling represented 26 per cent of Group revenues in 2008 (2007 25 per
cent), S dollar income converted into ewuros represented four per cent of
Group revenues in 2008 {2007 four per cent).

i) Residual curency exposure is hedged via the financial markets. The Group
operates a hedging policy using a vesdety of financial instruments with the
objective of minimising the impact of fuctuations in exchange rates on
future transactions and cash flows.

1oy
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Business review continued
Finance Director’s review continued

Market exchange rates
2008 2007
USD per GBP
- Year-end spot rate 1438 1991
- Average spol rate 1.854 2001
EUR per GBP
- Year-end spot rate 1.034 1362
- Average spot e 1.258 1461

The permitted range of the amounit of cover taken is determined by the written
policies sat by the Board, based on known and forecast income fewels.

The forward cover is managed within the parameters of these policies in
order 1o achieve the Group's objectives, having regard to the Group's view of long-
term exchange rates. Forward cover is in the form of standard foreign exchange
contracts and instrurments on which the exchange rates achieved are dependent
on future interest rates. The Group may also wrile currency oplions against a
portion of the unhedged doflar income at a rate which is consistent with the
Group’s long-term target rate. Al the end of 2008 the Group had US$17.1 bitlion of
forward cover (2007 US5$94 billion),

The consequence of this policy has been o maintain relatively stable
long-terrm foreign exchange rates. Note 15 to the financial staternents includes
the impact of revaluing forward currency contracts at market values on
December 31, 2008, showing a negative value of £2,181 million {2007 positive
value of £379 million) which will luciuate with exchange rates over time. The
Group has entered into these forward cantracts as part of the hedging policy,
described above, in order to ritigate the impact of volatile exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group uses fixed rate bonds and floaling rate debt as funding sources. The
Group's paticy is 1o maintain a proportion of its debit at fixed rates of interest
having regard to the prevailing interest rate outlock. To implement this policy the
Group may utilise a combination of interest-rate swaps, forward-rate agreements
and interest-rate caps to manage the exposure.

Commeodity risk

The Group has an ongoing exposure Lo the price of jot fuel and base metals
arising from business operations. The Group’s objective is ta minimise the impact
of price fluctuations. The exposure is hedged, on a similar basis to that adopted for
currency risks, in accerdance with parameters contained in written policies set by
the Board.
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Sales financing

It connection with the sale of ils products, the Group will on some occasions,
provide financing support for its customiers, This may involve the Group
quaranteeing financing for customers, providing asset-value guarantees (AYGs) on
alrcraft for a proportion of their expected future value, or entering into leasing
transactions.

The Group ranages and moniters its sales finance related exposures 1o
customers and products within written policies approved by the Board and within
the internal framework described in the corporate governance section. The
contingent liabilities represent the maximurn discounted aggregate gross and net
exposure that the Group has in respect of delivered aircraft, regardless of the point
in time at which such exposures rmay arise.

The Group uses Ascend Worldwide Lirnited as an independent appraiser to
value its security portfolio a1 both the half year and year end. Ascend provides
spedific values (bath current and forecast future values) for each assetin the
security portfolio. These values are then used to assess the Groups net exposure.

The permitted levels of gross and net exposure are limited in aggregate, by
counterparty, by product type and by calendar year, The Group's gross exposures
were divided approximately 55:45 between AVGs and credit guarantees in 2008
{2007 55:45). They are spread over many years and relate to a number of
customers and & broad product portfofio.

The Board reqularly reviews the Group's sales finance refated exposures and
risk management activities. Each financing cornmitment is subject to a credit and
asset review process and prior approval in accordance with Board delegations of
authority.

The Group operates a sophisticated risk-pricing maodel to assess risk and
exposure.

Costs and exposures associated with providing financing suppert are
incorporated in any decision to secure new business.

The Group seeks to minimise the level of exposure from sales finance
commitmenits by:

- the use of third-party non-recourse debt where appropriate;
- the transfer, sale, or reinsurance of risks; and
- ensuring the propeontionate flow down of risk and exposure to relevant

RRSPs,

Each of the above forms an active part of the Groupss exposure rmanagement
RIoCess.

Where exposures arise, the strategy has been, and continues to be, 1o
assurne where pessible liquid forms of financing commitrnent that rmay be sold or
transferred to third parties when the opportunity arises,

Mote 22 to the financial statements describes the Group's contingent
liabilities. There were no material changes to the Group’s gross and net contingent
liabilities during 2008,

Accounting standards
The consolidated financial staiements have been prepared in accordance with
International financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU. No
standards or interpretations that becorne effective during 2008 had a significant
impact on the Groups financial statements.

A summary of other changes, which have not been adopted in 2008, is
included within the accounting poficies in note 1 to the financtal statements.

Andrew Shilston
Fnance Director
February 11, 2009




Other matters

Board of directors
At February 11, 2009

Simon Robertson
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John Neill CBE

Non-executive Chairman

Non-executive director

Chairrnan of the nominations commitree

A member of the audit and nominations commitiee

Appainted 1o the Beard in 2004, he is the founder member of Simon Robertson Associates LLP
aned & non-executive directar of HSBC Holdings ple, Berry Bros & Rudd Ltd, and The Econainist
Newspaper Limited. He 1s a director of The Royal Opera House Covent Garden Limited and a
Trusiee of The Eden Poject and 1he Royal Opera Howse Endowmment Fund. He is the (ormer
President of Goldman Sachs Europe Limited. Age 7.

Sir John Rose

Chief Executive
Amernber of the nominatons committee

Appainted to the Board in 1992, having joined Rolls-Royce in 1984, and has been Chief Executive
since 1996, Heis a Trustes of The Eden Project, Age 56.

Helen Alexander CBE

Non-executive director

Chairrnan of the remuneration commites and a member of the ethics and nominations
<OMmmitees

Appointed to the Board in September 2007, she is a Senior Adviser of Bain Capital and a
non-esecutive director of Centrica plc. She is Chair of tha Advisery Basrd, Sald Business School,
Oxford University, a Trustee of the Tate Gallery and a governot of 51 Paul’s Girls' School, Former CEO of
the Economist Group from 1957 1o 2008, she was awarded a CBE for services to publishing in 2004,
She was Chairman of PPA, the magazine industry trade association, frorn 2006 10 2008, Age 52,

Peter J Byrom BSc, FCA

Non-executive director

Armember of the remuneration, ethics and nominations cormimittees

Appointed to the Board in 1987, he is Chail man of Doring Printing Sciences plc and a
non-executive direcior of AMEC pke. He is a Fellow of the Roval Aeronautical Sociery. He was a
director of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited from 1977 10 1996, Age 64,

lain C Conn

Non-executive director, Senior Independent Director
Amember of the audit and nominations Committees

Appointed 1o the Board in 2005, he is an exeutive diractor of BP plc having held a range of
execuiive positions within the BP Grours worldwide. He is Chalrnan of the Advisory Board of
The tmiperial College Business Schocl. Age 46,

Professor Peter Gregson

Appainted 1o the Board in Navember 2008, he is the Chief Executive of the Unipart Group of
Companies, He is & member of the Coundil and Board of Business in the Community and is a
non-executive director of Charter ple. He is Vice President of the Society of Motor Manufacturers
and Traders, BEN, the automative indusiry charily and The: Instinate of the Motor Industry. Age 61.

John Rishton

Non-executive director
Chairman of the audit comemittee and a member of the ethics and nominations com mittees

Appainted 10 the Board in March 2007, he is Chief Executive Officer of Royal ahold. He bagan his
career in 1979 at Ford Mator Campany and held 3 variety of pasitions both in the UK and in
Furops. In 1994 he joined British Airways Pic wherg he was Chiel Financial Officer irom 2001 to
2005. He is a fermer non-executive director of Allied Domeca. Age 50

Andrew B Shilston MA, ACA, MCT
Finance Director

Appointerd 1o the Board in 2003 having joined Rolls-Royce in 2002, he was a non-executive director
of Caitn Energy PLC umiil May 2008 and he was Finance Director of Enterprise Oil plc from 1993
until 2002. Age 53.

Colin P Smith BSc Hons, FREng, FRAeS, FIMechE

Director - Engineering and Technology

Appointed 10 the Board in 2005 having joined Rolls-Royea in 1524, he has held a variety of key
pesitions within Engineering, including Directar - Research and Technalogy and Cirector of
Engineering and Technology - Civil Acrospace. He is & Fellow of the Reyal Acadeny of
Engineering, the Royal Acronautical Society and the Institution of Mechanical Engineers. Age 53,

lan C Strachan

Non-executive director

Chairman of the ethics corpmiltee and a marnber of the audit and nominations comrmittees

Appaintec 10 the Board in 2003, be is a non-executive director of Johnson Matthey plc, Xsirata plc,
Transocean In¢ and Caithness Petreleurn Limited, He is the fonmer Chief Executive of BIR pk.,
former Deputy Chief Executive (1991 to 19951 and Chicf Finandial Officer 11987 tc 19%1) of Rio Tinta
i, former non-executive Chairman of Instinet Group Inc and former non-executive director of
Cormmrcial Union and Reuters Group ple. Age 63,

Mike J Terrett

Chief Operating Officer

Non-executive director
A member of the remuneration angd Naminations commirtees

Appointed to the Board in March 2007, he is President and Vice-Chancellor of Gueen's University
Belfast und serves on he Nonhetn keland Economic Developrment Fonm, the Council of CAI
Narthern Ireland and the Steering Group of te LS - Irelard Research and Development
Parinership, e is & Feliow and Council Member of the Roval Academy of Engingering, a Member
ofthe Royal Irish Academy, and Deputy Lisutenant of Belfast. He was formerly Professor of
Aerospace Materials and Deputy Vice-Chancellor of the University of Southampton and has served
on the Council for the Central Laboratory of the Research Councils, Age 51,

James M Guyette BSc

President and Chief Executive Officer of Rolls-Royce North America Inc.

Appointed 1o the Board in 1998 having joined Rolls-Rovee in 1997, he is a ditector of the
PrivataRank and Tiust Compiany of Chicage, inols and of pricelinecom inc. Until 1995 he was
Exacutive Vice Presedent, Marketing and Planning of United Aidines, Age 63.

Dr John McAdam

Non-executive director
A mornber of the remuneration and nominations committees

Appointed to the Board in February 2008, he is Chairman of United Utilities PLC and Rentokil
{nitial pic, the Seniof Independent Directorn of ) Sansbury plc and a non-executive director of Sara
1.ee Coporation. He was the Chief Execurtive of 11 ple untl IC13 acqusition by Akzo Nobel Age 60.

Appaointed to the Board in 2007, having joined Ralls-Royce in 1973, he has held a variety of senior
positions In the development of new asro-enging programmas, including Managing Director of
Ailines and President and Chief Executive Officer of International Aero Engines (IAE) basedl in the
United States, Priorn 10 his appontrnent as Chief Qperating Ofticer he was Presidern — Civil
Acrospace. He is a rnember of the Institute of Mechanical Engineers and a Fellow of the Royal
Acronautical Society. Age 52,

Tim Rayner
General Counsel and Company Secretary

He ioined Rolls-Royce in 2007 having previoush been Genearal Counsel and Company Secretary st
Lnited Utilities PLC. Age 38,
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Other matters continued
Other statutory information

Directors
The directors biographical detatls, including their other significant cormmitments,
are set out an page 31, During the year there were a number of Board changes:
Dr John McAdam was appointed as a non-executive directer on February 19,
2008; Carl Symaon retired as a non-executive director on May 7, 2008; and John
Neill CBE joined the Board as a non-executive director an November 13, 2008,
As at Decermber 31, 2008 all the directors were also directors of Rolls-Royce
Group ple, the ultimate parent cormpany. As directors of the ultimate parent
company, there is na requirerment 1o disclose their individual remuneration or
their interests in the shares of cormpanies in the Rolls-Royce group in this report, as
they are disclosed in the Annual report of Rolls-Royce Group plc.

Indemnity

The Cormpany has entered into separate Deeds of Indemnity in favour of its
directors. The deeds provide substantially the same protection as that already
provided to directors under the indemnity in Article 153 of the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Company has also arranged appropriate insurance cover for
any legal action taken against its directors.

Share capital

Thraughout 2008, the Company's authorised share capital was £400 millicn,
comprising 2,000000,000 ordinary shares of 20p. On December 31, 2008, there
were 1,630,996,508 ordinary shares in issue. The ordinary shares are not listed.

Dividends
No dividends were paid or declared during 2008,

Political donations
In ling with its established policy, the Group made no political donations during
2008.

During the year, one of our LIS subsidiaries made a contribution towards the
runnirig expenses of a political action committee (PAC) organised by its
employees in an amount of U$523,700 (2007: U5522,440). PACS are a common
feature of the US pelitical systern and are governed by the Federal Election
Campaign Act. The Rolls-Royce PAC is independent of the Company and
independent of any political party. Its funds are contributed voluntarily by
employees and the Company cannat affect how they are applied. Such
conttibutions do not require authorisation by shareholders under the Companies
Act 2006.
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Payment to suppliers
The Company is guided by the Supply Chain Relationships in Acrospace (SCRIA)
initiative. It seeks the best possible terms from suppliers and, when entering inte
binding purchasing contracts, gives consideration to quality, delivery, price and
the terms of the payment. In the event of disputes, efforts are made to resolve
them quickly.

The Company had the equivalent of 51 days purchases outstanding at
December 31, 2008, based on the average daily ameunt invoiced by suppliers
during the year

Auditors
A resolution to reappeint the auditars, KPMG Audit Ple, and 1o authorise the
directors 1o determine their remuneration, will also be proposed at the AGM.




Other matters continued
Internal control and risk management

Directors’ responsibility for internal control

The directors are respansible for the Group's system of internal control and for
maintaining and reviewing its effectiveness from both a financial and an
operational perspective. The systern of internal controt is designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure 10 achieve business objectives and o
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstaternent or
loss. The Group's approach (o intemal control is based on the underlying principle
of line management’s accountabiity for control and risk management.

In reviewing the effectiveness of the systern of internal control, the Board has
taken account of the results of the work carried out 1o audit and review the
activities of the Group.

There is an ongoing process (o identify, assess and manage risk, including
thase risks affecting the Group's reputation, This process is subject to continuous
improvernent and has been in place throughout the financial year to which these
staternents apply and up o the date of their approval, In 2008, the effectiveness
and consistency of risk management at all fevels of the organisation has been
meastred, improved and reported via the sector and function assurance
framework,

Organisation structure

The Group has a clearly defined organisation structure within which operational
management has detailed responsibilities and levels of authorisation, supported
by written job descriptions and operating manuals.

The risk management system
The risk managernent systern is an integral part of management’s approach to
delivering business objectives and is a systernatic process designed to identify,

assess, treat, manage and communicale risks, .
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The risk management process

Risks are recorded in regularly updated risk registers operating at all levels of the
organisation and are continuously reviewed and rnonitored. The risk management
process places significant emphasis on learning from and sharing prior experience.
The system provides methods for escalation and delegation (o the appropriate
levels within the organisation and ensures that actions are owned, defined,
resourced and effective.
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Work package
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The risk escalation process

Risks may arise from a varlety of internal and external sources. They may be
associated with regulations, customer requirements and cornpetitor actions, or
could result fron the capability of the processes used to execute the business, or
from external and largely unpredictable events, such as terrorist activity or war, The
principal risks and uncertainties for the Group are shown on pages 12 and 13,

Risks, irrespective of source, are managed through processes operated by
business unit and functional teams, The corperate risk register is updated and
reviewed by tha risk cormmittee twice a year so that the Board may then consider
and review these risks in ternis of their patential impact.

Managerment has continued 1o perform comprehensive risk reviews for al
key projects, programimes and business change plans,

All the processes operated by the Group are subject to continuous
improvement, including the risk management process itsell. Developmeant and
deployment of the process is the responsibility of a dedicated Enterprise Risk
Managerment tearm. The tearn has created a comprehensive framework for the
assessrent of risk management maturity at all levels throughout the crganisation
that enables forused improvement actions and drives consistent application of
the risk management process throughout the Group.

The risk process is underpinned by an integrated range of wols and training
and etucation prograrnmes. Deployrment of an enterprise-wide risk managernernt
software appiication enables the analysis, rnanagement and communication of
risks across the business. A network of risk chamgions, mentors and facilitators
helps to develop, embed and share best practice throughout the organisation.

Systems of internal control

The general managers of individual businesses are aware of their responsibility (o
operate systems of internal control which provide reasonable assurance of
cffective and efficient operations, relisble finandial information and compliance
with laws and regulations, Financial managers are required to acknowledge in
writing that their routine financia! reporting is based on reliable data and that their
results are praperly stated in accordance with Group requirements.

The Group has a comprehensive budgeting system with an annua! budget
approved by the Board, Revised forecasts lor the year are reported at least
quarterly. Actual resuits are reparted menthly against budget and variances
reviewed,

The activities of the Group are subject to review by the Departrment of Risk,
including business assurance and product introduction and life cycle
management, and the assurance functions of Health, Safety and Environment,
Quiality and Engineering. These functions operate 0 work programmes agreed by
the appropriate Board member.

The business assurance function, which works closely with the external
auditors, undertakes a programime of financial and operational audits and reviews
agreed by the audit committee and covering all Group activities The programme
includes independent reviews of the systems of internal control and risk
management. The findings and the status of corrective actions taken to address
these ara reported in wiiting to both the Rolis-Royce Growp pic audit and risk
commitlees twice a year,
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Other matters continued

34

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual report and the Group and

parent comnpany finandial staternents, in accordance with applicable law and

regulations,

Company faw requices the directors to prepare Group and parent company
financial staternenits for each finandial year. Under that law the directors ae
required 1o prepare the Group financial staterments in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU §FRS} and have
elected o prepare the parent company financial staternents in accordance with
UK Accounting Standards.

The Group finandial statements are required by law and IFRS to present fairly
the financiat pasition and performance of the Group; the Companies Act 14385
{the ‘Act’} provides in relation to such financial statements that references in the
relevant part of the Act to financial staternents giving a true and fair view are
references Lo their achieving a fair presentation.

The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the parent company.

In preparing each of the Group and parent cempany financial staterments,
the directors are required (o:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply thern consistently;

~  mmake judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS;

- for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial
staternents; and

- prepare the financial staterments on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group and the parent company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company

and enable them o ensure that ils financial staternents comply with the Act.

They have genera! responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to

them to safequard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and

ather irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for
prepating a Direclors report that comply with 1hat law and those regulations. The
directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the Group's website. Legisiation in the UK
governing the preparation and dissernination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Going concem

Alfter making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources 1o continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adept the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Company and the exposure of the Company to price risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk is discussed on pages 29 and 30 of tha
business review.

Disdlosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report

confirms that,

i} sofar as the director is aware, there is no relevant information of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware;

il the director has taken all steps that he or she ought 1o have taken a5 a
director in order to make himsell or herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information,

This confirmation is givert and should be interpreted in accordance with the

provisions of Section 234ZA of the Act.

Responsibillty statement

Each of the persons wha is a director at the date of approval of this report

confirms 1hat to the best of his or her knowledge:

i) each of the Group and parent company financial statements, prepared in
accordance with IFRS and UK Accounting Standards respectively, gives a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
issuer and the undertakings included in the consclidation taken as a whole;
and

i)  the Directors report on pages 1 10 34 includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties

GeneralCounsel and Company S!c}t{ry\/

February 11,2009




Independent auditors’report

To the members of Rolls-Royce plc

We have audited the Group and parent Company financial staterments (the
financial staterments) of Rolls-Royce ple far the year ended Decemnber 31, 2008
which comprise the Group consolidated income statement, the Group and
parent Company balance sheets, the Group consolidated cash flow staterment,
the Group consofidated statement of recognised income and expense and the
related notes. These financial staternents have been prepared under the
accaunting policies set out therein,

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we rmight state o the Company’s members those
rnatiers we are required 1o state 10 them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. o the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors responsibifities for preparing the Annuat report and the Group
financial staternents in accordance with applicable law and Intemational
Financial Reporting Stanclards (IFRSs) as adapted by the EU, and for preparing the
parent Cornpany financial staterments in accordance with applicable law and UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in
the Staternent of directors' responsibilities on page 34.

Qur respensibility is 10 audit the financial staternents in accordance with
refevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and !reland).

We report 10 you our opinion as 1 whether the financial statemenits give a
true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation. We alsc report to you whether in our opinion the infermation given
in the Directors report is consistent with the financial staternents.

In addition we report to you if, in our apinion, the Company has not kept
proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual report and consider
whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the
implications for our report if we becormne aware of any apparent missiatemenits or
rnalerial inconsistencies with the finandal statements. Qur responsibilities do not
extend 1o any other information.
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Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards an Audiling
{UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit indludes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant 10 the amounts and disclosures
in the financial staterments, It also indudes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Groug's and Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit 5o as 1o obtain all Lhe information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order o provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial stalements are
free from rmaterial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irreguilasity or
rror. In forming owr opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the finandial staternents.

Opinion

In our opinion:

- the Group financial staternents give a true and falr view, in accordance with
IFRSs as adopled by the EU, of the state of the Group's affairs as at
December 31, 2008 and of its foss for the year then ended;

- the Group financial statements have been property prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regutation;

- the parent Compary financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of
the parent Cormpary's affairs as at ODecember 31, 2008,

- the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

- theinformatien given in the Directors repert is consistent with the financial

latements,
L - f,.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants, Registered Auditor

London
Fetwuary 11, 2006
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended December 31, 2008
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2008 2007
Nates im im
Revenue 2 9,082 7435
Cost of sales T ANy T(6003)
Gross profit 1,771 1,432
Other operating income 79 50
Commercial and administrative costs ) TTT O (666) (653)
Research and development costs o i {403) "~ (380)
Share of profit of joint ventures g 74 6
Operating profit 855 514
Profit/(loss) on sale of businesses ) " ) 24 7 {2
Profit before financing _ 2 862 512
Financing income 435 762
Financingcosts. ~ e D - 5L O 1
Nel financing {2,751) 266
{Loss)/profit before taxation 2 (1,889) 778
Taxation s 547 (133)
{Loss)/profit for the year {1,342) 645
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent - - T (1,337) 651
Minortyinterests ~ 7 T sy 6
{Lass)/profit for the year {1,342) 645




Consolidated balance sheet
At December 31, 2008
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Notes

2008
£m

x07
im

ASSETS
MNon-current assets

Property, plant and equipment | ’ B i i ' ST a T g
Investments - joinfventres ~ T Tt T e e e e e o
Deforred tax assets” . L e e e s e e e
Post-retirement scheme suspluses 17

T 2286
BREIE

e
345

g3

685
453

761

204
‘89
8i
210

Current assets

Inventory
Trade andl other receivables 7
Taxation recoverable T T T
Other financial assets
Shortterm investments.
Cash and cash equivalents ’ 12
Assels held for sale 3 ST 7 T o o i ’ ) .

5817

2,600

LB

.
390

S
. 1,890

4,238

2203

. 2%

o7
514
"1

7

9410

7,252

Total assets

15,227

11,490

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Borowings L L e e e e e e 2 B
Cther financial liabilities _ : 13
Trade and other payables e e e e e

Current tax liabilities ™

.23
(2,450)
"(5/500)

{4.738)

")

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings ’
Other financial liab
Trade and other p
Non-current tax liabilities
Oeferred Tax liabilities

Post-retirement scheme deficits

{8,738)

[1,325)
(391)

318

m

o

C 188"
(595)

(5,148)
" {1,030
{303)
(983)

345)
(140)
(333)

(4,125)

{3,156)

Total liabilities

{12,863)

(8,304)

Net assets

2,364

3,186

EQuity "
Capital and reserves

Caledwwpsharecapital © T e

Share premium account
Hedging reserves It

Tensktonreserve o ’ )
Retained earnings - R

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Minority interests 19

Total equity

The financial staterents on pages 36 to 83 were approved by the Board on February 11, 2009 and signed on its behatf by:

imon Robertson Andrew Shilston
hairman Finance Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement 38
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Notes fm fm

Recendiliation of cash flows from operating activities

(Loss)/profit before taxation 778
Share of profit of jeint ventures {60)
{Profit}Aioss on sale or terrminalicn of busme es ' 2
{Profitiloss on sale of property, plant ) - ) i
Net interest payable ' 5
Net post-retirement scheme financing {30}
Net other financing (241}
Taxavion paid 7n
Amartisation of intangible’ " 63
Deprociation of property, plant and equiprme - 170
Increase/{decrease) in pravisions (42
Increase in T I T (208) T T(359)
: 0,072 (125
I’h’c‘ﬁéaéé 1308 ST OheT Payllgs T e s ‘ - )
Decrease in other inancial assets and tabilities 144 358
Additional cash funding of post-retierment schemes — "7 0T o T o S mwT ey
;.harP-based paymen{s e R i ™ St
Divider:ds recsived frdﬂh joint ventures - oo e o N 59 42
Net cash inflow fram operating activities 824 640
Cash flows from investing activities
Addmon: of unlisted investments " M (5
; investments I
Addmonst"m tangible assets . ’ T (389) {204
oo Samtand bquiprigri T T e e e - 28) o
et pehichin glich e e e e e pe
Acquisitions of businesses ' ’ b2 {50} - ®
Cisosals o buigsias = = T R T At S

|nVEStH'IEnE5ijintVEﬂtUrﬁ'S e e e m (32) oy
Dmpomls of oint s e o+ e s o PO

Additions to parent company shares ™
Disposals of pirent cormpany shargs™ T T T T T T S A "
Net cash autflow from investing activities (689) {618}

Cash flows from financing activities

Borrowings due within aymenit of oans
Horiowings due after G yesr — repayrment of loans
Capital clement of fimance lease payments B
Net cash outilow from decrease in borrowmgs

Interest receli?ed

i }
Decrease/(increase) in government se and corp 39 ©
Net cash outflow from financing activities 10 (362)
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 145 (340)
Cash ad cash euivalents at January 1 e e e e e S, R R s
Fereign exchange o o 441 41
N cash o bus nesses Beciiadjaipased = T e s e e e R s
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2,460 1,371
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2008 2007
£m im
Reconciliation of movements in cash and cash equivalents to movements in net funds
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 145 (340
Cash (inflow)/outflow from {decreasel/increase in government securities and corporate Bonds T (39 &
Net cash outflow from decrease in borrowings 27 55
Change in net funds resulting from cash flows 133 21
Net funds of businésses acquired o @ —
Exchange adjusiments 439 41
Fair value adjusiments (319) (18}
Movement in net funds 250 44
Net funds at January 1 excluding the fair value of swaps 872 828
Net Tunds at Decernber 31 excluding the fair value of swaps 1,122 872
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings’ T334 L
Netfunds at December 31 1,456 887

The mavementt in net funds (defined by the Group as including the items shown below) is as follows:

Net funds of
At businesses
January 1, Funds acguired/ Exchange Fair value Reclassi- December 31
2008 flow dispused adjustments  adjustments fications
£m £m im £m £m Em
Cash at bank and in hand A 1,264 (551) 1 224 _ —_ 938
Overdrafts ) i S (28 i’ — (Vi —_— — ”
Short-term deposits 632 678 2 219 — — 1,531
Cash and cash equivalents o o 1871 145 3 a4 — - 2,460
ivsimens T s T e e = =T
Other borrowings dug within one year ) 1 (6] - - vl] {1
Borrowings due after one year (1,026) 22 - 3 319 2 (1,324)
Finance leases 9) 4 — 1 — — {4)
872 1313 (3) 439 (319} - 1,122
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 15 319 334
887 133+ {3} 439 —_ — 1,456
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the year ended December 31, 2008

2008
Notes £fm

Foreign exchange lation differences from loreign cperations 603
Net actuarial gains oo oo [ A~ - S
Movernenlin unrecognised post-reliement surplus.— — Coom T oo 7T {928)
Transfers frorn transition hedging reserve ) ’ T 15 (80)
Transfers to cash flow hedging seserve ] . I 1}
Moverment in fair vafue of available forsaleassets ~ = 7 7 ' e ]
Related tax movements - T ' B ‘ 4 15
Change in rates of corporation tax 4 —
Net income recognised directly in equity 505
{Lossi/profit for the year ) 0,342
Total recognised income and expense for the year {837}
Attributable to: )
Fquity holders of the parent ' ’ o T ' ) {834}
e o o
Total recognised Income and expense for the year {837}




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

The Company

Ralls-Royee ple (the'Company’) s a company dorniciled in the United Kingdorn.
The consofidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
Decerber 31, 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
10 as the ‘Group) and the Group's interest in jointly controlled entities. The financial
staternents were autherised for issue by the directors on February 11, 2009,

Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

In accordance with European Union (EL) regulations, these financial statements
have been prepared in accordance wilh International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as
adopted for use in the £EU effective at December 31, 2008 (Adopted IFRS). The
Company has elected to prepare its parent cornpany accounts under UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except where Adooted IFRS require an alternative treatment. The principal
variations frorn the historical cost basis relate to pensions (AS 19), monetary items
{IAS 21), financial instruments (AS 39) and share-based payments (FRS 2),

The Groupss significant accounting policies are set out below, together with
the judgements made by management in applying these policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements,
apart frorm those Involving estimations, which are dealt with separately below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these conselidated finandcial staternents and by all Group entities.

Basis of consclidation

The Group finandial staterments incdude the financial staterments of the Comparly
and all of its subsidiary undertakings rmade up to Decernber 31, logaether with the
Group's share of the results of joint ventures up to Decernber 31.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control exists when the
Company has the power, directly or indirectly, 1o govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity s as to derive benefits from its activities,

A joint venture s an entity in which the Group holds a long-term interest and
which is jointly controlted by the Group and one or mare other verturers under a
contraciual arrangement. The results of joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting,

Any subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures sold or acquired cluring the
year are included up to, or from, the dates of change of control.

Allintra-group ransactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

11

Significant accounting polictes and judgements applied

Revenue recognition
Revenues comprise sales 10 outside customers after discounts. excluding value
added tax,

Sales of products are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are transferred to the customner, the sales price agreed
and the receipt of payment can be assured, On occasion, the Group may
participate in the financing of engines in conjunction with airfrarme manufacturers.
In such circumstances, the contingent obligations arising under these
arrangements are faken into account in assessing whether significant risks and
rewards of swnership have been transferred Lo the custamer. Where it is judged
that sufficient risks and rewards are not transferred, the transaction is treated as a
leasing ansaction, resulting in an operating lease between the Group and the
cusiomer, No deliveries of engines were treated as operating leases during 2008.
Depending on the specific circumstances, where appticable, the financing
arrangements may result in the consolidation of the entity established to facilitate
the financing. Such spedial purpose entities will be consclidated as required by
1AS 27 Consofidated and Separate Financiaf Statements If it is considered that the
Group controls the entity. No such entities were consofidated at Decernber 31,
2008.

Sales of services are recognised by reference 1o the stage of completion based
on services perlonmed (o date. The assessment of the stage of completion is
dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on: costs
incurred to the extent these relate to services performed up o the reporting date;
achievernent of contractual milestones where appropriate; or flying hours or
equivalent for long-term aftermarket arrangements,

Linked sakes of products and services are treated as a single contract where
these components have been negotiated as a single commercial package and are
s closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and
are considerad to form e single project with an overall prefit margin, Revenue is
recognised on the same basis as for other sales of products and services as
described above.

Provided that the cutcome of construction coniracts can be assessed with
reasonable certainty, the revenues and costs on such contracts are recognised
based on stage of completion and the overall contract profitability.

Full provision is made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts
having regard (o the overall substance of the arrangements,

Frogress payments recelved, when greater than recorded revenug, are
deducted from the value of work in progress except to the extent that payments
on account exceed the value of work in progress on any contract where the
excess is included in trade and other payables The amount by which recorded
revenue cf long-term contracts is in excess of payments on account is cClassified as
amounts recoverable on contracts’and is separately disclosed within trade and
other receivables,

Risk ard reveriue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

From time o time, the Group enters into arrangements with partners who, in
return for a share in future programime revenues or profits, make cash payments
that are not refundable (excent under certain remote drcumstances). Casi sums
received, which reimburse the Group for past expenditure, are credited to other
cperating income. The arrangernents also require partners 10 undertake
development wark and/or supply components for use in the programime at their
own expense. No accounting entries are recorded where partners undertake such
development work or where pregramme cormponents are supplied by partners
because no obligation arises unless and until programme sales are made; instead,
payments 1o partners for their share in the programme are charged (o cost of sales
a5 Drogramme ravenues arise.

The Group has arrangerments with partners who do not undertake
development work or supply parts. Such arangements are considered to be
financial instruments as defined by I1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are accounted for using the amortised cost method,
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Notes to the consalidated financial statements continued

Government investment

Where a government or sirnilar body invests in a developrment programme, the:
Group treats such receipts as the sale of an interest in the programme.
Subsequent payments are royalty payrments and are rmatched (o related sales,

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the income staterment se as to maich thern
with the related expenses that they are Intended to cornpensate. Where grants are
received in advance of the related expenses, they are indluded in the balance
sheet as deferred income. Non-monetary grants are recognised at fair value.

Interest
Interest receiviable/payable is credited/charged to the incorme statement using the
effective interest method. The Group does not capitalise any berrowing costs.

Taxation
The tax charge on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred
Lax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment 1o tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liabifity method, providing
for ternporary differences between the canying amounts of the assets and
liabilicizs for finandial repordng purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes,

Deferred tax liabilties are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to conrol the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable fuiure. Deferred taxis
not recognised on taxable termporary differences arising on the initiaf recognition
of goodwilf or for ternporary differences arising from the initial recognition of
assels and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax is calculated using he enacted or substantively enacted rates
that are expected 1o apply when the asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement or statemient of recognised income
and expense as appropriate, excepl when it relates teitems credited or charged
directly 1© equily in which case the deferred wax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferrad tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the assets can be utilised.

Segmental reporting

A segment is a distinguishable compenent of the Greup that is engaged in
providing products and services. As the risks and rates of retum are predominantly
affected by differences in these products and services, the primary format for
reporting segment information is based on business segments.

Foreign currency transiation
Transactions in overseas currencies arc translated into local curency al the
exchange rates ruling on the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into local currency at the rate
ruling at the year-end, Exchange differences arising on foreign cxchange
transactions and the retranslation of assets and liabilities into sterling at the rate
ruling at the year-end are taken into account in determining profit before taxation,
The trading results of overseas undenakings are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. The assets and labilities of overseas undertakings,
including goodwill and fair value adjustrments arising on acquisition, are translated
at the exchange rates rufing at the year-end. Exchange adjustments arising from
the retranslation of the opening net investments, and frorn the translation of the
profits or losses at average rates, are taken to equity.

42

Financial instruments

1AS 39 Financiol Instrurments: Recognition and Measurerment requires the

dlassification of financial instruments into separate categories for which the

accounting requiremnent is different. The Group has classilied its financial
instrurnents as follows:

- Fixed deposits, principally comprising funds held with banks and other
financial institutions anc trade receivables, are classified as loans and
receivables,

- Investments (other than interests in jeint ventures and fixed deposits) and

shert-term deposits {other than fixed deposits) are classified as available for

sale.

Borrowings, trade payables and financial RRSPs are dassified as other

liabilities.

- Derivatives, camprising foreign exchange contracts, interast rate swaps and
commaodity swaps are classified as held for trading.

Financial instrumenits are recognised at the contract date and initally measured at

fair value, Thair subsequent measurerment depends on their dassification:

—  Loans and receivables and other liabilities are held at amortised cost and not

revalued lexcept for changes in exchange rates which are included in the

income staternent) unless they are included in a fair value hedge accounting
relationship. Where such a relationshipy exists, the instruments are revalued in
respect of the risk being hedged. if instrurnents held at amortised cost are
hedged, generally by interest rate swaps, and the hedges are effective, the
canrying values are adjusted for changes in fair valug, which are included in
the income staternent.

Available for sale assets are held at fair value. Changes in fair velue arising

from changes in exchange rates are included in the income statement, Al

other changes in fair value are taken o equity. On disposal, the accumulated
changes in value recorded in equity are included in the gain or loss recorded
in the income statement.

- Held for trading instruments are held at fair valie. Changes in fair value are
included in the income statement unless the instrument is induded in a cash
flow hedge.¥f the instrurnents are included in a cash flow hedging
relationship, which is effective, changes in value are taken 1 equity. When
the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in
equity are recognised in the income staternent.

Financial instruments are derecognised on expiry or when all contractual rights

and obligations are transferred.

Hedge cccounting

The Group does not apply hedge accounting in respect of forward foreign
exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast
transactions denormninated in foreign currencies.

The Group does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commodity
swaps held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast transactions in those
commoaxdities.

The Group applies hedge accounting in respect of transactions entered into
o manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its borrowings. Forward
foreign exchange contracts are held to rmanage the fair value exposures of
borrowings denominated in foreign curencies and are designated as fair vatue
hedges. Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are
designated as fair value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings
respectively.

Changes in the fair values of derivatives designated as fair value hedges and
changes in fair value of the related hedged item are recognised directly in the
income statement.

Changesin the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow
hedges and are effective are recognised directly inequity. Any ineffectiveness in
the hedging relationships is included in the income staterment. The amounts
deferred in equity are recognised in the income statermnent 1o match the
recognition: of the hedged item.




Hedge accouniing is discontinued when the hedging instrament expires or is
sold, terminated, exercised, or no Yonger qualifies for hedge accounting. At that
time, for cash flow hedges and if the forecast transaction remains probable, any
curmulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is
retained in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. If & hedged transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is transferred to the incorne staterment.

The portion of a gain or loss on an instrurnent used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation that is determined to be an effective hedge is
recognised directly in equity. The ineffeclive partien is recognised immediately in
the income statement.

Until December 31, 2004, and as allowed by IFRS 1 firsi~time Adoption of
international Financial Reporting Standards, the Group applied hedge accounting
for farecast foreign exchange transactions and commedity exposures in
accordance with UK GAAP On January 1, 20085, the fair values of dervatives used
far hedging these exposures were included in the transition hedging reserve. This
reserve is released to the income statement based an the designation of the
hedges on lanuary 1, 2005,

Purchased goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration for

shares in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures over the fair value to the

Group of the net of (he identifiable assets acquired and Lhe labilities assumed.

) ToDecerber 31,1997 Goodwill was written off to reserves in the year of
acquiisition,

i) From January 1, 1998: Goodwill was recognised within intangible assets in
the year in which it arose and amortised on a siraight line basis over its useful
economic lifg, up to a maximum of 20 years.

il From January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations,
goodwill is recognised as per {ii) above but is ne longer amortised.

Certification costs and participation fees

Costs incurred in respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new
civil aero-engine/aircraft combinations and payments rmade to airframe
manufacturers for this, and participation fees, are carried forward in intangible
assels 1o the extent that they can be recovered out of future sales and are charged
to the income statement over the prograrmme life, up to a maxirmum of 15 years
from the entry-into-service of the preduct,

Research and developrnent

In accordance with IAS 38 intangible Assets, cxpenditure incurred on research and
development, excluding known recoverable amounts on contracts, and
contributions 1o shared engineering prograrnmes, is distinguished as relating
either 10 a research phase or 1o a develepment phase.

All research phase expenditure is charged to the income statement. For
development expenditure, this is capitalised as an internally generated intangible
asset only if it meets strict ¢riteria, relating in particular to technical feasibility and
generation of future economic benefits,

Expenditure that cannot be classified into these two categories is treated as
being incurred in the research phase. The Group considers that, due to the
complex nature of new equipment programmes, it is not possible to distinguish
reliably between research and development activities until relatively late in the
programme.

Expenditure capitalised is amortised over its useful economic life, up to a
maxirmum of 15 years from the entry-into-service of the product.
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Recoverable engine costs

On accasion, the Group may sell original equipment to customers at a price below
its cost, on the basis that this deficit will be recovered from future aftermarket sales
to the original custorner. Where the Group has a contractual right to supply
aftermarket parts to the custormer and its inteftectual rights, warranty
arrangernents and statutory airwarthiness requirements provide reasonable
conirol aver this supply, these arrangements are considered to meet the definition
of an intangible asset. Such intangible assets are recognised to the extent of the
deficit and amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected period of
utilisation by the: original customer.

Software

The cost of acquiring software that is not specific 1o an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as an intangible asset and amortised over its useful
economic fife, up tor a maximum of five years.

Property, plant and equiprnent
Property, plant and equiprment assets are stated at cost less accurnutated
depreciation and any provision for impaimments in value.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost, less the
estimated residual value, of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives. No depreciation is provided on assets in the course of construction,
Estimated useful lives are as follows:

i Land and buildings, as advised by the Group's professional advisors:

a  Frechold buildings - five to 45 years (average 24 years).

b} Leasehold buldings — lower of advisors' estimates or period of lease.

¢)  Nodepreciation is provided on freehold land.
iy Plant and equipment - five 1o 25 years {average 14 years).
i} Aircraft and engines - five 16 20 years (average 17 years).

Leqases

i) Aslessee
Assels financed by leasing agreements that give rights approximating to
ownership (inance leases) are capitalised at their fair value and depreciation
is provided on the basis of the Group depreciation policy. The capital
elements of fulure cbligations under finance loases are included as labifities
in the balance sheet ancl the current year’s interest elernent, having been
allocated to accounting periods to give a constant periodic rate of charge on
the outstarcling liability, is charged 1o the income staterment.

The annual payments under all other lease arrangements, known as
openating leases, are charged to the income staterment on a straight-line
basis.

i) Aslessor
Amounts receivable under finance leases are included within receivables and
represent the total amount outstanding under the lease agreernents less
uneamned income, Finance lease incorme, having been allocated 10
accounting periods 1o give a constant periodic rate of return on the net
Investment, is inclucled in revenue

Rentals receivable under operating leases are included in revenue ona
straight-fine basis.

Impaitrent of non-current assets

Impairment of nor-current assets is considered in accordance with 1AS 36
Impairtrent of Assets. Where the asset does nol generate cash flows Lhat are
independent of other assets, impairment is considered for the cash-generating
unit 1o which the asset belongs.

Goodwill and intangible assets not yet available for use are 1ested for
impairment annually. Gther intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
are assessed for any indications of impairment anaually. If any indication of
irnpairment is identified, an impairment test is performed 1o estimate the
recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sel
- if this is readllly available. The value in use is the present value of future cash flows
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

if the recaverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)is estimated to be
below the carrying value, 1he carrying value is reduced to the recaverable amount
and the impairment loss recognised as an expense.

Irventory

Inventory and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
vatue on a first-in, fizst-out basis, Cost comprises direct materials and, where
applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, including depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories 1o their present location and condition, Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling prices less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inglude cash at bank and in hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months o less on inception. The Group
considers overdrafts (repayable on dermand) 10 be an integral part of its cash
management activities and these are included in cash and cash eguivalents for
the purposes of the cash flow statement,

Provisions

Prowvisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a resuftof a
past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation. Provisions are measured at the direciors best estimate of the
expenditure required 1o sautle the ebligation at the balance shoat date, and are
discounted to present value where the effect is material,

Post-retirernent benelits

Pensions and sirmilar benefits {principally healthcare) are accounted for under
IAS 19 Employee Benefits. For defined benefit plars, obligations are measured at
discounted present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value, The service
and financing costs of such plans are recognised separately in the income
stalement; current service costs are spread systematically over the lives of
ernployees and financing costs are recognised in the pericxds in which they arise.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the siatement of
recognised income and expense.

Surpluses in schermes are recognised as assets only if they represent
economic benefits available 10 the Group in the future. Movernents in
unrecognised surpluses are included in the staiement of recognised income
and expense,

Paymenis to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense a5
they fall due.

Share-based payments

The Group, on behalf of its parent company, provides share-based payment
arrangements to certain employees. These are principally equity-settled
arrangements and are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The fair value is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period. The amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares or options that will vest, except
where additional shares vest as a result of the Total Shareholder Return
performance condition in the Performance Share Plan. The costs of these
share-hased payments are treated as a capital contribution fiom the parent
comparyy. Any payments rmade by the Group 1o its parent company in respect of
these amangernents are treated as return of this capital contribution,

Cashsettled share options (grants in the Intermational ShareSave plan) are
measured at fair value ax the balance sheet date. The Group recognises a liability at
ihe balance sheet date based on thesea fair values, and taking into account the
estimated number of options that will actually vest and the relative completion of
the vesting period. Changes in the value of this liability are recognised in the
income statement for the year.

The fair values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as

follows:

i) ShareSave plans ~ using the binomial pricing model;

il Performance Share Plan - using a pricing model adjusted to rflect
non-entitlement o dividends {or equivalent} and the Total Sharcholder
Return market-based performance condition;

i) Annual Performance Related Award plan deferred shares and free shares
under the Share Incentive Plan — share price on the date of the award.

See note 20 for a further description of the share-based payrment plans.

Contingent liabilities
In connection with the sale of its products, the Group will, on occasion, provide
financing support for its customers. These arrangements fall into two categories;
credit-based guarantees and asset value quarantees. In accordance with the
requirements of1AS 3G and IFRS 4 fnsurance Contracts, credit-based guarantees are
treated as insurance contracts. The Group considers asset value guarantees to be
non-inancial liabilities and accordingly these are also treated as insurance
contracts, Provision is made as described above,

The Groups centingent liabilities relating to financing arrangements are
spread over many years and relate 1o a number of custorners and a broad product
portfolio, and are reported on a discounted basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the above accounting policies, management has made appropriate
estimates in many areas, and the actual outcorme may dilfer Fom those calculated,
The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, thiat have a
significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabifities within the next financial year are set out below. The estimation of
the relevant assets and liabiliies involves the combination of a number of
assumnptions. Where appropriate and practicable, sensitivities are disclosed in the
relevant notes.

Current economic environment .

The current economic environment could impact a number of estimales
nacessary Lo prepare the financial statements, in particular, the wecoverable
amount of assets and contingert liabilities, The Group bas taken these factors into
account in assessing the estimates set out below. These matters are discussed in
more detail inthe Finance Directors review,

Forecasts and discount rates

The carrying value of a number of ilems on the balance sheet are dependent on

the estimates of future cash flows arising from the Group's operations:

- Theimpairment tests for goadwill are dependent on forecasts of the cash
Mlows of the cash generating units that give rise to 1he goodwill and the
discount rate applied. (Carrying values at December 31,2008 £1,008m,
December 31, 2007 £801m)

- ifthe assessment of development, participation, certification and recoverable
engine costs fecognised as intangible assets indicates the possibility of
impairment, a detailed irmpairment test is undertaken. (Carrying values at
December 31, 2008 £1,072m, Decernber 31, 2007 £830m)

- The finandal liabilities arising from financial risk and revenue sharing
partnerships are valued at each reporting date using the amortised cost
method. (Carrying values at December 31, 2008 £455m, December 31, 2007
£315m). This invotves cakeulating the present vatue of the forecast cash llows
of the amangement using the internal rate of return at the inception of the
arrangement as the discount rate.

- The realisation of the deferred tax assets (carrying value at December 31,
2008 £685m, Decernber 31, 2007 £81m) recognised is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits. The Group recognises deferred
1ax assets where it is more likely than not that the Denefit will be reatised.




Assessment of long-term contraciual arrangements

The Group has long-terrm contracts that fall into different accounting periods. In
assessing the allocation of revenues and costs to individual accounting periods,
and the consequentiat assets and liabiities, the Group estimates the total revenues
and costs forecast 1o arise in respect of the contract and the stage of completion
based on an appropriate measure of performance as described under revenue
recognition above,

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar arrangernents are
assessed annually in accordance with 1AS 19. The accounting valuation, which was
based on assumptions determined with independent actuadial advice, resulted in
anet defict of £142m before deferred taxation being recognised on the balance
sheet at December 31, 2008 {December 31, 2007 £123m). The size of the net
deficitis sensitive to the market value of the assets held by the schernes and to
actuarial assumptions, which include price inflation, pension and salary increases,
the discount rate used in assessing actuariat liabilities, mortality and other
demographic assuniptions and the levels of contributions, Further details are
included in note 17.

Provisions

As described in the accounting pelicy above, the Group measures provisions
{carrying value at December 31, 2008 £368m, December 31, 2007 £301m) at the
directors' best estimate of the expenditure required 10 settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These estimates are made, taking account of inforrmation
available and different possible outcomes.

laxation

The tax payable on profits is determined based on tax laws and regulations that
apply in each of the numerous jurisdictions in which the Group operates, Where
the precise impact of these laws and regulations is unclear Lhen reasonable
estirmates may be used to determine the tax charge induded in the financial
statements. If the tax eventually payable or reclaimabile differs from the amounts
originally estimated then the difference will be charged or credited in the financial
staternents for the year in which it is determined.

Contingent kablities

As described in note 22, the Group has significant long-term contingent
chligations. The directors consider that, alter allowing for provisions already made,
the possibility that there will be any significant foss arising from these
contingencies as remote, in reaching this opinion, the directors have considered
the likelihood of the contingency crystallising and have taken account of forecast
aircraft values that generally provide securnity against the contingent labikity.
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Revisions to IFRS adopted in 2008
No standards or interpretations that became effective during 2008 had a
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Revisions to IFRS not applicable in 2008

IFRS 8 Qperating Segrents is applicable for 2009. This standard amends the
requirements for disclosure of segrmental performance and will not have any
effect on the Group’s overall reported rsults.

IFRIC 14 {45 19 Fhe Limit of & Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction is applicable for 2009, This interpretation applies
where regulatory funding requirerments will result in an unrecognisable surplus
arising in the future. Had it been applicable in 2008 an additional pansion deficit of
approximately £425m would have been recognised.

Amendment to IAS 23 Sorrowing Costs is applicable for 2009. The
arnendment generally eliminates the option to expense borowing costs
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as
incurred, and instead requires the capitalisation of such borrowing costs as part of
the cost of the spedific asset. The Group does not consider that the adoption of
this amendment will result in the capitalisation of a significant level of borrowing
cosls.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payments: Vesting Conditions and
Cancefiptions are applicable for 2009. These amendments concemn certain aspects
of the valuation of share-based payments and the impact of a cancellation by a
grantee. The Group does not consider that these amendments will have a
significant impact on the charges recognised to date for share-based payments,

Amendments 1o IAS 1 Aresentation of Finandial Staternenis are applicable for
2010.These amendments revise requirements for the presentation of the financial
statements and will not affect the Group's overall reported resuirs.

Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations and amendments to 1AS 27
Consofidated and Separate Financial Statements are applicable for 2010, if endorsed
by the EU. If endorsed, these standards will alfect the future accounting for
acquisitions and transactions with non-controlling interests. There will be no
retrospective irmpact.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements is applicable for 2009, if endorsed
by the EU.f endorsed, this will apply o the Group's investrments in the joint
ventures operating the Future Strategic Tanker Aircraft contract with the LUK
Ministry of Defence.

The Group does not consider that any other standards or interpretations
issued by the 1ASB, but not yet applicable, will have a significant impact on the
financial statements,
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents continued

2 Segmental analysis

The Group eperates in four segments which reflect the intermal crganisation and management structure accerding to the nature of the products and services provided:

Clvil aerospace - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of commercial aero engines and aftermarket services.

Defence aerospace - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of military aerc englnes and aftermarket services.

Marine - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of marine propulsion systems and aflermarket sences.

Energy - development, manufacture, marketing and szles of power systems for the offshore oil and gas indusiry and electrical power generation and
aftermarket saervicas.

Details for these primary reporting segments are shown below:

Civil Defence Central
aergspace aerospace Marine Energy items Eliminations Group
£m fm £m tm £m £m £m

Analysis by business segments for the year ended December 31, 2008
Revenue from sale of criginal equipment TAFel T FIRTTTTASET T T3s0T
Revenue from aftermarket services 2,676 950 712 367
Total revenue 4,437 1,688 2,200 757
Qther operaung income - RRSP receipts 79
Operating profit excluding share of profit of joint ventures 438 220 178 (4}
Share of profit of joint véntures -1 A b R T e
Profit/loss) on salé or termination of businesses 8 — B
Profit/{loss] before financing and taxation 501 232 176 4

Financing income
ancung costs o
Taxation

Loss for the year

(1,342)

Other information

Segment assets 807 = @77A 10931
Investments in joint veniures Y A 345
Cash and short-term investrnents i 2470
Fir value of swaps Fedging fixed rale borrowings 334
Income tax asscts 694
Post-rétirement scheme surpluses B T T 453
Total assels 7.543 1,037 2,339 834 {477} 1 5,2;7_'
Segrent liaoiites 7,297 (1,265] (1,886 @57 — 377 110,428
Borrowings (1,348) (1,348)
INCEMe tax liabilit T 1492)
Pastretiremant schéme dehdifs (595)
Total liabilities {7,297) {1,265} {1,886) (457) {2,435) 477 {12,863)
Net assets/{liabilities) 246 (228 FEE] 377 1,516 — 2,364
Expenditure on intangible assets and property, plant and eguipment 495 79 67 35 676
Depreciation and amortisation o P . - 315




2 Segmental analysis continued

47

Chwil Defonce Central
AROIPACE GeroSpace Marine Energy tems  Climinations Group
£m £m £m fm £m fm £in
Analysis by business segments for the year ended December 31, 2007
Revenue from sale of original equipment 1417 782 996 251 — — 3446
Revenue from aftermarket services 230 854 546 283 — — 3,989
Total revenue 3718 1636 1542 53% — — 7435
Operating profit excluding share of praht of joint ventures 263 159 90 {15 49 — 443
Share of prefit of joint ventures o 45 1 1 g 7 — - 66
Lass on sale of termination of businesses — — - o = L TP
Profit/lloss} before financing and taxation 308 170 91 8 {49) — 512
Financing incorme i 762
Financing costs - {456)
Taxalion S I Bkt
Profit for the year 645
Other Information
Segment assets 6,051 998 1698 644 — (461) 8930
Investments in joint ventures 214 34 s 31T — T 284
Cash anct short-term investments a N ' 1936 Co193%
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings - 42 42
Income Lax assets ) 88 ’ 83
Post-retirement scheme surpluses 210 ) 210
Total assets 6,265 1,032 1,703 675 2276 {461 11,490
Seqmen hebilties @ms) 0279 0,95 G0 - 361 6.347)
Serionings. " C A el > . 0 T (1069
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings (27 27
Income tax liabilities (533 ' {533}
Past-retitement scherne deficits (333) {333}
Total liabilities {4005) (1,279 (1,195) {329} {1957) 461 (8.304)
Net assets/(liabilities) 2,260 1287) 508 345 ELE] o= 3,186
Expenditure on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 479 73 33 15 600
Depreciation and amorisation ’ 164 28 21 20 233
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segmental analysis continued

Geographical segments

The Groug's revenue by destination is shown below:

2008 2004

£m fm

United Kingdom 1,462 1185
Rest of Europe 1,890 1478
Usa ) 214 2232
Canada 299 274
Ry T ~ tadie T 7S
Alfrica’ 143 108
Australasia o T - T 255 137
Other ~ 777 7 7 380 236
9,082 7435

The following analysis shows the carrying amounts of the Group's assets, and additions te intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, by the geographical area

in which the assets are located:

Additions to intangible

assets and property,

Assets plant and equipment

2008 207 2008 2000

£m m £m Im

United Kingdom 10,273 7768 517 517
North America 1,764 1465 78 39
Nordic countries 1,756 1280 28 18
Germany 893 645 40 20
Other™ ™~ - - T U662 T34 T3 7T 6
Eliminations 2 ey 0 =7 —
15,227 11,490 676 600
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2 Segmental analysis continued

Underlying performance

As discussed in the Finance Director’s review on page 26, the Group seeks 10 present a measure of underlying performance that excludes iterns considered 1o be

non-underlying in nature, The principles adopted are:

Undlerlying revenues - Where revenues are denominated in a cumrency other than the functional currency of the Group undertaking, these exclude the release of the

foreign exchange transition hedging reserve and reflect the achisved exchange rates arising on settled derivative contracts.

Underlying profit before fincincing ~ Where transactions are denominated in a currency cther than the functional currency of the Group undertaking, this exclucles the

refease of the foreign exchange transition hedging reserve and reflects the transactions at the achieved exchange rtes on setiled derivative coniracts. In 2007, this atso

excluded £130m of past service post-retirerment costs.

Underlying profit before taxation - I addition to those adjusiments in underlying profit before financing:

—  Includes amounts realised from settled derivative contracts and revaluation of relevant assets and labilities to exchange rates forecast 1o be achieved from
future settlement of derivative contracts.

~  Excludes unrealised amounts arising from revaluations required by 1AS 39 Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement, changes in value of financial
RRSP contracts arising from changes in forecast payments and the net impact of financing costs related te post-retirement scheme benefits.

Underlying profit adjustments:

2008 007
{Lass¥
Profit before profit  Poofir belore Proht
financing  before tax financing telore ax
£m £m im tm
Profit/(loss) per consolidated income statement 862 {1,889) 512 778
Release of transition hedging reserve - - . T ey B 4m  (149)

Fealised gains on seltled dertvative contracts’
Net Unrealised fair value changes 1o deriva

40
(357)

Effect of clrmency on contract accounting 76)
Revaluation of trading assets and liabilities 10
Financial RRSPs ~ foreign exchange differences and changes in forécast payments 13
Net post-retirement scheme financing ’ (30)
Post-retirement schemes - past service costs? 130
Total underlying adjustrnents 67
Underlying profit/{loss) 919 883 832 345

1 Lo biefore tax excludes E24m of realised losses (2007 nily on denvative contracts settled in respect of trading cash flows that will ccour after the year-end,

T includes £4m of unrealised gains (2007 £il) in raspect of derivative contracts held by joint venture cormparies fincluded in profit befare inancing).

3 During 2007, the Group, as pert of its ongoing discussions with the Trustess of its UK pension schemes, agreed to reffect changes in HM Revenue & Custorns practice and increase the size of the lump
surm payrnent retirees are abla 10 receive by commuting part of the pension. Like mary other amployers, the Group also increased the amount of the lump sum payment for the pension commuted.
Updating the commutation arrangements o 12flact these factors increased the post-retirernent liability by £100m. The Groug also agreed a 2 per cent discretionary increase applicable t pensions that
do not benetit from any quarantecd increase, which increased the liability by £30m,

SIUBUMNS [eTLIRUE

Underiying profit reconciliation:

2007 vodsi jenuuy | od sdAay-sioy

2008 2007
Undertying  Underlying Unelerlying Underlying
adjustments results adjustments rasulis
£m m £m m fm im
Profit before financing
Civilagrospace ~~ 7 T TTT T T T T T e T 51T T s T Tde6 T 3087 T TTas T T ipa
Defence aerospace o I » I ) DX S b - o
e " O Y96 T 7 iyt .22
Central iterns ' o T ‘ I R =)
862 57 919 512 320
et financing T o i C (2750 25 36 T %6 sy 13
Profit before taxation {1,889) 2,772 883 778 67
Taxation " T T om0 54777 T (7ed) T imy T T3y T T oy T

Profit for the year {1,342} 2,008 666 645 7
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3 Net financing

2008 007
Undeﬂymg Underiwnq
financing ! fnaning
£m £fm im [

Financing income
inost e vabie e - -
Fair value gains on foreign curmency contracts (note 152~ 7 7 ) o =T — -
Fair value gains on  commodity derivatives (ote 1592 7~ " ) ' T Tl
Expected return on post-relirement scheme assets (note 17— 373 = =
Fair value adjustments relating to parént company shares held undertrust ' T - D S ¢ T
Other financing income — — 1 1
435 62 762 127

Financihg costs

Intcrest payable " T R 1+ ST M TR
Fair value losses on foreugn curency confracis fnote 152 0 (2,383} - —
":mge difffences and changes in orecasi paymentstnoie 15 T Az T o =
R5Ps (note 15) (26}
s (note 1557 - e
Interest on post-retirement scheme liabilities (note 17) (354) —
Nef foreign exchange losses | o am .
Other financing charges ™™ ™ ™ T T = -
(3,186) {98) {496) {174}
Net financing (2,751} {36) 266 [E}

Analysed as:
Net inerest payable o
RNet post-rc,urcmcnt schcmo ﬁnan-:mg )

Net other financing '(26)

Net financing {2,751} (36)

1 See note 2

“Netganoniemsheld forwading T - 2 &2 T




4 Taxation
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UK Cverseas Total
2008 2007 2008 K007 2008 2007
£m Em Em Em fm fm
Current tax
Current tax charge for the year 7 47 88 72 95 119
Less double tax relief [¥4] m- = — {7) M
— 40 83 72 ET) 12
Adjustments in respect of prior years (9) 2n 14 21 5 6
{9) il 102 93 93 106
Deferred tax
Delerred tax (credit/charge for the year (578) 55 {50) 13 {624} 78
Adjustrnents in respect of prior years T T2 ® {18) @) ey T8
Deferred tax credit resulting from reduction in 1ax rates? ) — {23) — (12 - (35)
{572) 34 {68) 7 (640) 27
Recognised in the income statement {581) 47 34 86 {547) 133
Other tax charges/(credits)
2008 207
£m fm
Recognised in the staterment of recognised income and expense - deferred tax? 15) 95
Recognised directly in equity — current tax — {43}
- deferred tax! 11 23
6] 75

V In 2007, the deferred tax assets and liabilities reflected the reductions in the corporate tax rates in UK and Germarry which ware enacted during that year, The resultitg charges or credits wene

1ecognised in the income statement except 1o the extent that they related to items previously chavged of credited to the statement of recognised income and expense or aquity. Accordingly in 2007,

£35m was credit2d 10 the incorme starement, £5m was charged 10 the statement of recognised income and expense, and £5m was chaiged directly to equity.

Tax reconcillation

2008 2007

fm fm

{Loss)/profit before taxation (1,889} 778
Less share of profits of joint ventures (note 9} “‘ . {74y (86
{Lossi/profit before laxation cxcluding joint ventures (1.963) 712
Nominal tax charge at UX corporation tax rate 28.5% {2007 30%) (559) 214
UK R&D credit ’ ) oo (25) 22)
Rate differences 16 12
Other permanent differences -7 14 (17
Benefit to deferred tax from previously Unrecognised tax losses and temperary differences” 3 )
Tax kosses in year not recognised in deferred tax o T T T ) 21 7T T
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1) (22}
Reduction in opening deferred taxes resulting from reduction in tax raie — (35}

{547} 133
Analysis of taxation charge:
Underlying iterns (nole 2) T i - Tt e
Non-underlying items (764) B0

(547) 133
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Taxation continued

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities

52

2008 2007
£m Em
At fanuary 1 (264) [ARRE]
Amount credited/{charged) to income statement T 60 29
Amount charged 10 statement of recognised income and expense (SORIE) 15 {95)
Armount charged 10 equity ) (amn 23
On acquisition of business s =
Exchange movernents 3 ]
At December 31 378 (264)
Analysed as:
Deferred tax assets " " 685 81
Delerred tax liabititics (307) {345)
378 (264)
The analysis of the cleferred tax position is as follows:
At Recognised At
January 1, inincome Recognised Recognised On Exchange December 31,
2008 statement in SORIE inequity acquisition movements 1008
£m £m £m £m £m im £m
Intangible assets (140) (50) — - 4 ) (200}
Property, plant and equipment {143) 3 - = BT () {146)
Other temporary differences 627 {40 —_— (20 — (33} 21)
Armounts recoverable on contracts {(145) (50) {195)
Pensions and Gther post-retirement scherne benelits a5 T (6) - 49
Féreign exchange and commodity financial assets and labilities (120~ " T rsa T 655
Losses 7 ' - o 124 7 49 182
Advance corparation tax 64 0 — 64
{264) 640 378
2008 200/
£m £m
Advance corporation lax 118 18
Losses and other unrecognised deferred tax assets o ) T 67 42
Deferred tax not recogrised on unused tax [osses and other iterms on the basis that futlre économic benahtis Uncertain 185 160

In addition, there are ternporary differences of £946m (2007 £543m) relating 1o investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, No deferred 1ax has been provided in
respect of these differences, since the timing of the reversals can be controlled and it is probable that the teraporary differences will not reverse in the future.




5 Employee information
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2008 2007
Number Nurber
Average weekly number of Group employees during the year
United Kingdom™ o "225007 T
Overseas 16,500
39,000
Civil aerospace 22,700 ¥
Déferce aerospate Co o “s7o0 T 5
Marine T 8100
Enéray " ) T 2500
39,000
£m £m
Group employment costs '
Wages S aharies e e e e ot i e e s v
Socialsecunity costs B oo g T T2
Share-based payments inote 20) - %
Pensions and other postrétiernent scheme benefitsinote 177 7 AL )
2,087 1,990
T Rermuneration of kéy management personnel is shiawn in note 23.
6 Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates were as follows:
2008 2007
£m fm
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual financial staternents 1.6 17
Fees payable 10 the Comgany's auditors and its associates for other ser -
" The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries purstant t6 legislation 2077
" Other services pursuant to legislation T o T 02
Other services relating Lo taxation 0.4
4.2

Fees payable in respect oflhe Groups pension >Lhnmes
AuditT
Other services rel

2007 undar enuuy | 3id SX40Y-5ji08
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents continued

7 Intangible assets

54

Certtfication
costs and
participation Development Recavernble Software

fees expenditure enginecosts  and other Total

£m £m £m £m £m
Cost:
Al January 1, 2007 374 422 329 70 1930
Exchange adjustments 1 — = T 60
Additions © 7 T 129 3 37 9 T 2%
On acquisitions of businesses 77 = T - e g
Disposals =~ ’ o ) — — — (i B4
Al January 1, 2008 504 514 366 109 2,294
Exchange adjustrents” T T T T TR U T T OF T T 194
Additions’ ’ 55 113 97 128 393
On acquisitions of businesses — — = 7oAy 52
On disposals of businesses — — — — (2)
Dispasals ~ — — — Iy m
At December 31, 2008 568 632 463 254 2,930
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At January 1. 2007 cor 143 777 T o 176" 19 470
Provided during the year ! A ! 0 63
At January 1, 2008 150 150 204 29 533
Exchange adjusiments 3 — — 2 5
Provided during the year*  ~ 7 7 12 7726 18 107
Disposals T T T T AT Ty T
Al December 31, 2008 165 176 250 48 644
Net book value at December 31, 2008 403 456 213 206 2,286
Net book value at Decernber 31, 2007 354 364 162 80 1,761
Net book value at Janwary 1, 2007 231 290 153 51 1460

¥ Charged 1o cost of sales except development costs, which are charged to research and developrnent costs.
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7 Intangible assets continued

Goodwill
In accordance wilh the requirernents of 1AS 36 impairment of Assets, goodwill is allocated to the Group’ cash-generating units, of groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination that gave rise to the goodwill as follows:

Cash-generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs,

Primary reporting 2008 2007

segment £m fm

Rolls-Royce Beutschiand Ltd & Co KG Civil aerospace 266 203
Commercial rarine - arising from the acquisition of Vinters plc” - Marine S50 - 4
Commercial marine — arising from the acquisition of Scandinavian Electric Holdings AS ’ Marine 42 -
Energy - arising from the acquisition of Rolls-Royce Energy Systems IRc. - o ' i T Energy 73 © 5
P Al P SR . .. e o 8 %
1,008 301

Goodwill has been tested for impairment during 2008 on the following basis:

The carrying value of goodwill has been assessed by reference 1o value in use. These have been estimated using cash flows from the most recent forecasts
prepared by management, which are consistent with past experience and external sources of information on market conditions. Given the long-term and
established nature of many of the Group's products (product lives are often measured in decades), these typically forecast the next ten years. Growth rates for the
period not covered by the forecasts are based on a range of growih rates that reflect the products, industries and countries in which the relevant CGU or group of
CGUs operate.

The key assumptions on which the cash flow projections for the mast recent forecast are based are discount rates, growth rates and the impact of foreign
exchange rates on the relationship between seliing prices and costs.

The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 12.75 per cent, based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital.

The principal value in use assumptions for significant goodwill balances are:

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Lid & Co KG - volurne of engine deliveries, flying hours of installed MNeet and cost escalation, based on current and known future
programimes, estimates of customers fleet requirerments and long-term econcmic forecasts. For the purposes of the impairment test only, cash flows beyond the
terryear forecasts are assuimed to grow at 2.5 per cent, The directors do not consider that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would cause the
value in use of the goodwill Lo fall below its carrying value. A doubling of the discount rate would not lead to an impairment of this balance, ’

Vinters plc - volurme of equipment deliveries, capture of afterrarket and cost escalation, based on current and known future programmes, estirmates of customers
flect requirements and Jong-lerm economic forecasts. For the purposes of the impairmenit test anly, cash flows beyond the ten-year forecasts are assumed 1o grow
at 4 per cent. The directors do not consider that any reascnably possitle change in the key assumptions would cause the value in use of the goodwil to fall below
its carrying value. lt would require a doubling of the discount rate 1o cause an impairment af this balance.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Property, plant and equipment

56

Land and PMantand Aircraftand  In course of
buildings  equipment engines construction Total
£m fm tm im fm
Cost: . L . - e
At January 1, 2007 587 1,996 155 257 2995
Exchange adjustments v 0» = 2 &0
Additions - ) 22 83 9% 102 304

On acquisitions of businesses
On disposals of businesses
Reclassifications " 7
Transferred t0 assets held forsale™
Disposalsfwrite-offs o

A January 1, 2008
Exchange adjustrnents - -

Additions ~ T

On acquisitions of busingsses )

On'disposals of businesses T

Reclassifications 17 © 89 — (86) —
Transferred ta asséts held for sale 3T @ - - {35)
Disposalshwrite-offs ] B 7T TTan — (137)
At Decernber 31, 2008 787 2,350 17 245 3,553
Accumulated depreciation and impairments. 7

AtJanuary 1, 2007 0 T T T T TS0 T 096 B 5 T — 1289
Exchange adjustments A 24 — — k!
Provided during the year! - 23777 190 8 I 170
On disposals of businesses — 2 — — @
Transferred to assets held for sale . — — T — (5}
Disposals/write-offs T — {11 26 — (137
At January 1, 2008 180 1,146 20 —_ 1,346
Exchange adjustments 18 106 3 — 127
Provided during the year* T a4 155 9 — 208
On disposals of businesses - - — on - - L))
Transferred to assets held for sale (22) {3 - - {25)
Disposalshwrite-offs 2y (85) — — {a7)
At Decernber 31, 2008 218 1,308 32 — 1,558
Net book value at December 31, 2008 569 1,042 139 245 1,995
Net book value at Decernber 31, 2007 T19 964 154 176 1813
Net book value at January 1, 2007 437 900 112 257 1,706

! Depreciation provided during the year is charged 10 the income statement or included in the cost of inventory as appropriate.




8 Property, plant and equipment continued

Property, plant and equipment includes:

57

2008 2007
fm fm
Net book value of firance leased assets; .
Land and buildings T e 9
Plant and equipment 9 14
Assets held foruseinoperating leases: L
Cost o ) 141_ ) 141__
Deprediation 28 (18}
Net book value 113 123
Nen-depreciabla land 113 G4
Land and buildings at net book value corpriser . e e e e . : .
F(gehjo!d“ o ‘ ’ ' ’ i T ﬁ o - 533 M‘_wm:'"tiBB
hong leasehaid 2
Short leasehold 24 7
569 519
Capitat expenditure commitments — contracted but not provided for 122 a2
Cost of fully depreciated assets 475 382

8007 Hodas lenuly | Hd sdkcu-sioy

SIS [PIURLLY



_ Finandial statements

Rolls-Ravee pke | Annual repart 2008
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9 Investments

58

Joint ventures Other
Parent
Share of post Unlisted company
Shares  acquisition investments  shares held
atcost reserves Loans Total atcost'  under trust Total
im £m im fm £m £m £m
At January 1, 2007 110 116 14 240 51 74 125
Exchange adjustments 1 5 - 6 — — —
Additions ’ ) i3 — — 13 6 78 %
Taxation paid by the Group — 2 - 2 — — —
Fair value adjustments o T — — -7 T = — 15 15
Share of retained profit - — 24 — 24 — — —_
Disposals/amortisation ) — m T — - — Ty (135)
At Janwary 1, 2008 124 146 14 284 57 32 89
Exchange adjustments 14 " _ 85 1 —_ 1
Additions . 30 - T N 1 47 42
Taxation paid by the Group ~~ ~~ =~ 7 T 7 — 3 — T3 — — -
Fair value adjustments ~ s T T - e 15 {5)
Share of retained profit T — 25 - 25 . wnm -
Impairments oo (8 T - 2} S -7 - "
Transferred 15 Assets held for sale’™ - T — T = 7T - —
Disposals/amortisaion ~ ~~ (13) )] {8 (30) {6) (68} (74)
Cash flow hedging reserve movement? ) — @1 — 7@ — = _
At Decernber 31, 2008 147 193 5 345 53 —_ 53
) These primarily comprise flnating rate convertible koan stock.
2 One of the Group's joint ventures, Airtanker Holdings Limited, holds intarest rate and inflation swaps for which cash flow hedge accounting has been adepred.
investmenis in joint ventures are represented by:
2008 2007
£m f£m
Share of aggregate assets:
T NGRcurrent assets 3 ) 1,041 658
Current assels ’ 940 635
Share of aggregate liabilities:* ) ) i
" Turentiiabilities ™~ 77 i 8a1) (523
" TNon“current liabilities oo T T B v - R )]
345 284
3 Non-current assets include goodwill of 10 7
* Liabilities include borrowings of o o ) L _ (655) (372
2008 2007
£m £m
Share of income 104 94
Share of net financing s (20
Share of taxation {14) (7
Share of profit of joint ventures recognised in the incorme staterment 74 &6
Dividends received ~~ ~ ST ) {59) 42
Share of retained profit 15 24

The tax charge on joint venture profits represents an effective tax rate of 16 per cent (2007 10 per cent), an increase of 6 per cent. This results from a change i profit mix

between joint ventures taxed at different effective rates.

The principal joint ventures are listed on pages 105 and 106,




10 Inventory

59

2008 2007
£fm im
Raw rmaterials 328 B
Workin progress 1008 T2
Long-term contracls work in progress 34 93
Finished goods 1192 1,123
Payrments on account 38 32
2,600 2,203
Inventories stated at net realisable velue 144 154
Amount of inventory wiite-down B ‘8 79
Reversal of inventory write-down 15 8
11 Trade and other receivables
2008 2007
£m fm
Trade receivables 1,421 389
Arnounts recoverable on contracts 1,448 904
Amodints owed by Joint ventures o - 451 300
Other receivables 7 U 404 315
Prepayments and accrued income 205 ° 177
3,929 25857
Analysed as (note 15):
Finangial instrurnents: )
Trade receivables and simitar items ) 1,939 12110
Other non-derivative financial assets 369 T
Non-financial instruments ) 1,621 1,053
3,929 2,585
! Trade and other receivables expected 1o be recovered in more than one year:

" Trade receivables T a 24 6
Amounts recoverable on contracts 1,222 704
Amounts oweg by joint veniures 28 29
Other receivables 59 40
Prepayments and accrued income 38 28

1.3N 327

12 Cash and cash equivalents

2008 2007

fm im

Cash at bank and in hand 938 1264
Short-tenm depasits 1,531 632
2,469 1896
Overdrafts {note 13) 9 {25}
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statemient {page 38) 2,460 1871
Cash held as collateral against third party obligations 85 60
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13 Borrowings

60

Current Non-current
2008 00! 2008 2007
im im £m £m
Unsecured
Overdrafts ~ ~ 7 9 25 — —
Bank foans 1’ 3 '5 2
7 5496 Notes 2016 £200m RS — T T T 200777 T 200
5.84% Notes 2010 US$ 187m! - - 136 Co97
6.38% Notes 2013055 230m" - ] — — 1787 T 3
6.55% Notes 2015 US$83m? — — &7 46
4 /% Notes 2001 €750m2 -~ . - — 738 534
Other loan 2008 (interest rate nil) . -_ I — —
Secured - o= y - e = . — .
Bank loans? —_ — - 24
Obligations under finance leases: {note 21) B T -
Loss lhangneyear ' 3 5 — -
Between one and twoyears — 3
Botween Lwo and five years - — -
After fve years 7 T T - 1
23 1,030
Repayable
Between one and two years - by instalments 27 4
T T T Lotherwise Tt T T T T 36 —
Between (wo and five years - by instalments 1 1
- otherwise T 916 655
After five yoars — by instaiments T T T TT3T T
- otherwise i 267 369
1,325 1030

' These reates a2 the subject of inetest rate swap agreements under which e Group his underlaken 10 pay lloating rates of interest, and currency swaps wieh form a fair value bedlge.
2 These nates are the subject of swap agreements under which counterparties have undertaken o pay amounts at fixed rates of interest and exchange in consideration for amounts payable at variable

rates of inteiest and at fixedl exchange rates,
3 Secured on aircraft,

4 Obligations uncer finance leases are secured by ekated iased assets.

14 Trade and other payables

2008
im
Payments received on account _ 1,635
Trade payables . 1042
Amotints owed to joint ventures. o - 372
Arfiounts owed 16 parent indertaking T . o 165
Other 1axation and social security 55
Other payables i o i 1170
Accruals and deferred income 1,461
5,900
"includes payments received from joint ventures ) 209 195 107 5
Analysed as (note 13):
2008 2007
£im im
items o . o 2264 1872
-G ve financial liabilities 430 378
Non-financial instruments 4,524 3514

7,218 5,701




15 Financial instruments

This note shoudd be read in conjunction with the Finance Directors review on pages 26 to 30.

Carrying values and fair values of financial instruments
The carrying values of the Group's financial instruments (together with non-finandial instruments for reconciting purposes) are anatysed as follows:

61

2008 2007
Financial instruments Francal insnuments
Non- Non-financial Non-  Non-financial
Dervative derfvative  instruments Total Bervative dervative  instruments Total
Notes £m tm £m im fm im £m fm
Assets:
Unlisted non-current asset investments'? 9 - 53 — 53 — 57 — 57
Parent company shares held under trust? g - - — — — 32 — 32
Other non-current assets —_ — 5,764 5,764 — — 4,149 4,149
Trade and other receivables:
T Trade receivables and similar items? i) - 1,939 e 1,939 — 2 — 121
Other non-derivative financial assets’ B — 369 —_ 369 — A — N
" "Nen-financial instruments - n — — 1,621 1,621 — — 1053 ° 1,053
Other financial assets* 390 - - 390 514 — - 514
short-term investiments 13 — 1 — 1 - 40 — 40
Cash and cash equivalents:* ) .
" Cashatbankandinhand ~ 12 - 938 - T o938 - 1,264 - 1,264
" Shorttermdeposits 0 7 Tz - T153 — 5N - 637 = 612
Other current assets - — 2,621 2621 — — 2217 2217
390 4,831 10,006 15,227 514 3557 7419 11,490
Liabilities:
Borrowings - curtent’ 13 — (23) — (23) - (34) - (34)
' ' T —non-current® 137 — (1,325)" —_ 3280 T — {1,030) -7 T (1030
Gther financial ligbilites;s e o T ’ K oo
Financial ARSPs — (455) — (455) - (315 - {315
T Gther T i T (2388 7 - — {2,386) (57 — -
Trade and other payables? ~~~ oo o .
" Trade payables and sifmilar iterns 14 — (2,264) — {2,264) — (1872) — {1,872)
Other non-derivative financial liabilities 14 —_— 430) - (430) —_ (315 - (315)
T Non-fimancial instruments o 14 —_ - (4,524 {4,524) - — '(3,.‘514)M ‘(3,5'\4)
Ctherfiabilities — —_ (1,456) {1,456) — - (1,167) (1,167}
(2,386) {4,497} (5,980} (12,863 {57) (3,566) (45681) (8,304
Net assets/(liabilities) (1,996) 334 4,026 2,364 457 Q) 2,738 3,186

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing partes in an arm's length
transaction. Fair values have been determined with reference 1o avallable market informaticn at the balance sheet date, using the methodologies described below.

1 Loans and recenables.

2 These pumardy comprise flaating rate convertibile loan stock, The conversion conditions are such that fair value approximates o the book value,

3 Fair valug is delermined using the market value bid price.

* Fair valugs are assumed to approximate 1o cost either due 1o the short-term maturity of the instrmeits of because tha interest rate of the investments is reset afier periods not exceeding six months.
¥ Where available, market values have been used 10 detammine fair values. Whoee market values are not readily available {principalty in respect of derivatives, borowings and financial RRSPs), fair values
have been estimated by discounting expectad future cash flows using prevailing mterest rate curves. Amounts dendmmated i foreign currencies are valued at the exchange tate prevailing at the

balance sheet date,
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15 Financial instruments continued

Fair values equate to book values for both 2008 and 2007, with the following exceptions:

62

208 207
Book value Fair value Book valug Fair value
£m fm Hyl fm
Borrowings — current {23) (23) {34) {34)
e e e e e e e e (122577 29T .0 1,058
Finincials RGPS ~ e e e e o ; - e - e e (487) 315) 3401
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities by category, as defined by IAS 39 financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement, are as follows:
2008 2007
£m £
Held for trading " ~ 390 514
Loams ard recevables?” — ~ =~ 7 ° oo ot Tt mennomme T T 3807 2.3
? 1 72
T 938 1,264
tiabilities o
Held for trading® 77 T (2386) " 57
Financial lizbilities at amortised €o: T ) T (4,497 T (3566)
{1.662) 448
1 AllGnancial assets and liabities dlassified as held for rading are teated as curent.
2 |n the comparative figures, £592m has bean reclassified from available for sale 1o loans and receivatles,
Carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities
Foreign
exchange Commodity Interestrate Financial
contracts contracts contracts RRSPs Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2008
Assets 12 278 — 390
Liabilites™ ™ "7 (2293 @455 (2,841}
(2,181} {89) 274 {455) {2451}
Al Decemnber 31, 2007
Assels R - A -1
Liabilities e ey 372)
379 39 39 {315) 142
Other financial liabilities are analysed as foliows:
2008 07
£m fm
Current fiabilities {2,450) 69
Non-currentifabiliies™™ ™~~~ 7 7 T o oo 391 go3
{2,841) (372)
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15 Financial instruments continued

Foreign exchange and commaodity financial instruments

The Group uses various financial instruments 1O manage its exposure to moverments in foreign exchange rates, The Group uses commedity swaps 1o manage its
exposure 1o movements in the price of commadities {jet fuel and base metals). From January 1, 2005, the Group has not included foreign exchange or commaodity
financial instruments in any cash flow hedging relationships for accounting purposes. Te hedge the currency risk associated with a borrowing dencminated in US dollars,
the Group has currency derivatives designated as part of fair value hedges.

Movements in the fair values of foreign exchange and comimodity instruments were as follows:

Foreign exchange instruments Commodity instruments
Included in Included in
transition  Indudedin transition  Indudedin
hedging income hedging income
Total reserve statement Total reserve  statement
£fm fm fm £m £m fm
At January 1, 2007 554 254 39 —_
Fair value changes to derivative conlracts not in accounting hedging relationships 25 7T 0T TAsT T e -3
Fair value changes to fair value heclges 12 o ' ' @) - & _ — —
Fair valuie of contracts settled {384) — — (36) — -
Transferred to revenue ) o T - L R I LT —
At January 1, 2008 379 105 39 —_
Fair value changes 1o derivalive contracts not in accounting hedging relationships ! (2,383) - (2.383) (96) — (96)
Fair valug changes to fair value hedges 2 ' o ) ’ 83 - 83 — — —
Fair value of contracts settled e T T e (236 - T =TT 3y - -
Fair value of derivative coniracts assumed on formation of joint venture {24) — — — — —
Transferzed to revenue ) — {80) 80 — — —
At December 31, 2008 2,181) 25 (89) —

! Included in financing.
2 Lo on related hedged items £83m (2007 £6m gain).

Interest rate financial instruments

The Group uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreernents and interest rate caps to manage its exposure 1o movermnents in interest rates. Where the effectiveness of
the hedge relationship in a cash llaw hedge is demonstratad, changes in the fals value that are deemed effective are included in the hedging reserve and released 1o
match actual payments on the hedged item,

Maovernents in the fair values of interest rate financial instruments were as follows:

Induded in Other
fair value interestrate  Includedin
hedging financial income
Total relationships instruments statement
£m £m £m fm
Al January 1, 2007 3 ] ] _ 15 18 ] {3)
Fair value changes 2 ] 24 24 — 24
AL Janviary 1, 2008 i ] 39 42 (3)
Fair value changes ™2 235 236 () 235
At Decernber 31, 2008 274 278 (4)

1 Inchuded in financing.
T Lenss on related hedged itemns £236m (2007 £24m).
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15 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs}

The Gioup has financial liabilitics arising frorm financial RRSPs, These financial lisbilities are valued at each reporting date using the amortised cost method, This involves
calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the anrangements using the internal rate of retum at the inception of the arrangaiments as the discount rate,

Movernents in the amortised cost values of financial RRSPs were as follows:

2007

fmn

AL January | 324

Cash paid to partners o i o (55)

Addiion 7 T —_

Exchange adjustments direct (o reserves - e e = e e e - e

Financing charge '~ B i ) - - o 26
Excluded from underlying profit i

Exchange adjustments® G

“Restructuring of financial RRSP agreements and changes in forecast payments’ T i ST T 20

At December 31 315

U included in financing,
Risk management policies and hedging activities

The principat finandiat risks to which the Group is exposed are: foreign currency exchange rate nisk; interest rate risk; and commadity price risk. The Board has approved
policics for the management of these risks.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk — The Group has signihicant cash flows {mast significantty US dollars, followed by the Euro) denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant trading entity. To manage its exposures to changes in values of future forgign currency cash flows, 5o as 1o maintain relatively stable
long-term foreign exchange rates on settled transactions, the Group enters inta derivative forward foreign currency ransactions. For accounting purposes, these
derivative contracls are not designated as hedging instrurnents,

The Group alse has exposures ta the fair values of non-derivative financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies. To manage the risk of changes in these
fair values, the Group enters into derivative forward forgign exchange contracts, which are designated as fair value hedges for accounting purposes,

The Group regards its interests in overseas subsidiary companies as long-term investments, The Group aitns 1o miatch its translational exposures by rmatching the
currencies of assets and liabilities. Where approprate, foreign currency financial liabilities ray be designated as hedges of the net investrent.

Liquidity risk — The Group's policy is to hold financial investments and rmaintain undrawn committed fadilities at 2 level sufficient to ensure that the Group has available
funds to meet its medium-term capital and funding obfigations and to meet any unfareseen obligations and opportunities. The Group holds cash and short-term
investments, which together with the undrawn cornmitted facilities, enable the Group Lo manage its liquidity risk. The profile of the maturity of the Group's cornmitted
facilities is shown in the Finance Directors review.

Crediit risk — The Group is exposed to credit risk Lo the extent of non-payment by either its customers or the counterparties of its inancial instruments. The effective
monitoring and contralling of credit risk is 3 key component of the Groups risk managernent activities. The Group has credit policies covering both trading and finanial
exposures, Credit risks arising from treasury activitios are managed by a centrat trieasury function in actordance with the Group credit policy. The objective of the policy is
to diversify and minimise the Groups expasure 1o credit risk from its treasury activities by ensuring the Group transacts strictly with single A or higher rated financial
institutions based on pre-established limits per financial institution. At the balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk to individual
customers or counterparties. The maxirurn exposure ta credit risk at the batance sheet date is represented by the carrying value of each financiat asset, including
derivative finandial instrurments.

inferest rate risk - The Group's interest rate risk is primarily in relation ta its fixed rate borrowings (fair value risk), floating rate borrowings, cash and cash equivalents (cash
flow risk). Interest rate derivatives are used 16 manage the overall interest rate profite within the Group policy, which is to maintain a higher proportion of debt at
foating fixed rates of interest as a natural hedge to the net cash position. These are designated as either fair value or cash flow hedges as appropriate.

Commodity risk - The Group has exposures to the price of jet fuel and base metals arising fiom business operations. To minimise its casty flow exposures to changes in
commaodity prices, the Group enters inte derivative commodity transactions. For accounting purposes, these derivative contracts are not designated as hedging
instruments.

QOther price risk - The Groug's cash equivalent balances represent investrents in money market instrumnents, with a tenn of up to one month, The Group dees not
consider that these are subject to significant price risk.




15 Financial instruments continued

Derivative financial instruments

The norminal armounts and fair values of derivative finandial instruments are as follows, analysed by year of expected maturity:

65

2008
Expected maturity Fair value
Nominal Within Between one Between two After
amount one year and two years and five years five years Assets Liabilities
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
Foreign exchange contracts:

Fair value hadges {280)" — o) (128) a6 56 0 =

Non-hedge accounted 9,653 1,760 2,080 5711 102 56 {2,293)
Interest rate contracts: ’ ’

Fair value hedges 848 — 130 660 58 278 —

Non-hedge accounted 65 25 22 - 18 — (4)
Commodity contracts: ' ) ‘

Non-hedge accounted 27 T 106 73 9 T =" = 7 7 (89

10,557 1,891 2,199 6,335 132 350 (2,386}
xoe?
Expected matuiity Fair valug
Nominal Within  Cetweencne  Between two After
amount oneyear and two years  and five years five years Assets Liabilivies
fin im fm m im fm m
Foreign exchange contracts:
" Fair valug hedges (280) — — {105) s - 7
T Non-hedge accounted T T T 7T T TTTUTsae8” T 2135 Tagie 0 12177 T DT T 4337 T
interest rate contracts: )

Fair value hedges s — — T o594 157 42 7 —
= “Non-fedge atcauted - e o s S . =)
Commodity convacts: )

Non-hedge accounted B 166 91 55 20 — 39 =

5.879 2246 1,889 1,742 2 514 (57)

As described above, all derivative financial instruments are entered into for risk management purposes, although these may not be designated into hedging

relationships for accounting purposes.
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15 Financial instruments continued

Derivative financial instruments relaied 1o foreign exchange risks are denominated in the following curendies:

2008
Currencies purchased forward
Sterling Us dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £fm

Currencies sold forward:
Steding — — 43 323
Usdollarr = 7 77 R o T S ' " 10,096 1,180 1,097 12382
Furo™ " oo ‘ o ) ) ' o T """ 614 614
Other ™~ 166 o T 303

2007
Currencies puichased forward

Sterling US dollar furo Orher Total
£m £m im £m Em

Currencies sold forwand:
Stefling b B e gy e g
ol e e e G R A

e 497

Other derivative financial instruments are denominated in the following curencies: ]
2008 007
£m £m
Sterting 18 20
Usdellar ™ "7 " N " 470
fuc o T 7 T ” 5007 7 500
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15 Financial instruments continued

Non-derivative financial instruments
Mon-derivative financial instruments are denominated in the following currercies:

2008
Sterling US dollar Euro Other Total
im £m £m £m £m
Assets:
et invesiiaaritg " e e e e i o 5 - s
Trade réCéivables and similar jigms T T T T e T 249 T 1,228 251777 TM1,939
Other non-derivativa financial assets 91 10 83 369
prols A e T PR T o 5 ]
Cash at bank and in Rang ™ T T T T T T T g T T T es T T T 29T T e 938
Shorttermdeposts 7 T o T Y - . 21 1,58
962 2178 1173 518 4,831
Liabilities:
Borrowings - current {2y (4 23
- non-current T T (zadyTT T e T (1,325)
Firancial RRSPs T (as8)
Trade payables and similar items ST ) oo C7e3) T 919y T (2500 (272) (2,264}
Other non-derivative financial lizbilities {144) {151) {58) {77) (430}
{1,710} {1,970 (1,054) [363) {4,497)
{148) 208 119 155 334
2007
Sterling US dollar Cure Other Total
fm im fm fm im
Assats:
Unlisted non-current investments
Parent company shares held under trust’
Trade receivables and sirnilar iterms
Other non-Gerivative financial assets ) )

Shortterm investments
Cash at bank and in hand

Short-term deposits 17

980 1,463 786 328 3557
Liabilities:

Boffowings - cufrent T ITIIIT T e e e ey TR TR
"7 ~nen-current T S e oo {203) — {1030
Frscial RS - . e o B T . )
Trade payables and similar items ) {959} (495) {248) (170 11872
Other non-clerivative financial liabilities  ~ ~ 7 7 o I VT2 @) " @y @ (315)
{1,319) {1,188) 821) (242) {3,566)

(335) 275 (35) 86 9}
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15 Financial instruments continued

Currency exposures
The Group’s actual currency exposures afler taking account of derivative foreign currency contracts, which are nel designated as hedging instruments for accounting
purposes are as follows:

2008
. Sterling US dollar Euro Other Total
Functional currency of Group operation £m £m im £m £m
SCIG e e e ; _ T oA 1 8
Other — 5 3
2007
. i Sterling U3 dollar Euro Other total
Functional curmency of Group operation m m im £m £m
Sterling N . ] 3 — bl 5
o o o - ) B o ] — 5 = — 5
Other — 4 9 12 25
The ageing beyond contractual due date of the Group's financial assets is;
2008
Between
Upto three months  More than
Within three months and one year one year
terms overdue overdue averdue Total
£m im £m fm £m
ASSEUS: e et e e - S :
Unlisted non-current asset investments 33 - =
Trade receivables and similar items 1,516 322 93
Other non-derivative financial assets 354 g Y U

Cash at bank and in han
Short-lerm deposits

2007
Between

Upo  thee rmonths Maote than

Within  throe months — and one year one yoar
lerms overdue averdue averdue Totat
fim £ tm m im

Assets:

Unlisted non-¢ 57
Parent company shares held under 32

Trade feceivables and similar iterns o - T
Other non-derivative financial a
Other financial assets ~
Short-term investments
Cash at bankand in hand
Short-term deposits

4071




15 Financial instruments continued

Contractual maturity analysis

69

2008

Gross cash Rows
Within  Between ane  Between two After Carrying
ane year and two years and five yvears five years  Discounting value
£m fm £m £m £m £fm

Borrowings:
Unsecured bank loans ]
Unsecured bond issues

ey T T (00

L R

g g
(3,008 (309)

"2637T1,319)

Cther secured ™ ™ @E 7 = e L e,
192) (202) 11,005) 313 264 11,348)

Qther:

Trade payables and similar iterns @255 @m0 T @ = — (2,264

Derivative financial fiabilities - - - ] '

Financial RRSPs

(252~ (225)
— o

L@ e (2% (2.386)
Tl e T 103 (488)

Other non-derivative financial liabilides {408) ) m — — (430)
(2,971) (428) (945} {1,161) {26} (5,535)
(3,063) {630) (1,954} {1,474) 238 (6,883)

2007

Gross cash flows

Within ~ Between one
ongyear  and lwo years
im £m

Between 1wo Alter Carryirky

ancd five years five years  Discounting value
fm fin Em fm

Borrowings:

Secured bank loans
Other secured

1)

i1.064)

Cther;

Trade payablesand sirmilaritems e e e

Derivative financial liabilities ™

(1862 Q)

Ay

] 0 — Qg

R o &)

Financial BRSPs (38 G477 oy T ey 77 o997 (3i%)
Other non-derivative financial liabilities G IR I <. I O N N S 4
(2184) (39) (247} 1136) sl {2,555}
(2,276) (100) {1,041} (569) 163 13625
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15 Financial instruments continued

Interest rate risk

70

in respect of incorne garning financial assets and interest bearing financial liabilities, he following table indicates their effective interest zates and the periods in which

they reprice. The value shawn is the carrying amount,

2008
Period in which interest rate reprices
Effective 6 months More than
interest rate Total of less 612 months 1-2 years 2-5years 5 years
% £m £m £m £m £m £m
Short-term investrnents?! 9.6769% 1 1 —
Cashatbarkandinhand* -~ ~° &~ e ooom o ' 93 =~ 938 —
Shart-term deposits? I, - | ‘1,531 —
Unsecured bank loans
€25m Andting rate idan ™ - T EURIBOR 412 T — = — —
€5m floating rate loan EURIBOR +0.5 (5) (5) — — = —
Cverdrafts* (9 (9) — — - —
55m Indian Rupee Fixed Rate Loan ' 13,5455% m — - —
70.4rn Norwegian Kroner Floating Rateloan” ' T NIBOR+1.Y | Tl = — —
Effect of interest rate §wap§ e 3as1w T =7 A — {18}
Unsecured bond Issues
7 406 Notes 2016 £200m ™ ~ T T T o T i 3is0% T T (2000 T T T — — — - {200}
584% Notes 2010 US5187m 5.8400% {136} — — {136) — —
Effect of interast rate swaps T USDLIBOR +1.158 T T TTT(136) T = 136 — -
6.38% Notes 2013 US5230m 6.3800% (178) - — — (178) -
Effect of interest rate swaps T T T TUSDILIBOR 4126 — (irgy T — - 178 —
6.55% Notes 2015 US383m 6,5500% (67) — — — e {67)
Effect of interest rate swaps USDLIBORF1.247 ~ 7" " eny T = T T e
4 V8 Notes 2011 €750m 4.5000% {738} — —_ (738) —
Effect Of interést rate swaps GBPUBOR+0911 """ gy — — 738" —
Other secured
Obligations under finance leases ~ 7 55226% @ @3y T = —_ — (i)
1,122 1,364 (1) {22) — {219)
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Interest rate risk continued
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2007
Paniod inwhich interast rate reprices
Effective 6 months Maore than
interest rate Total orfess  6-12 months 1-2 years 25 years 5 years
5 £ fim fin fin fm im
Short-term investments ! 55913% 40 14 6 - 12 8
Cash at bank and in hand 2 1,264 1,264 — — — —
SR OTE G ooty T e e e Ry T gga T e e
Unsecured bank loans R )
€4 Tloating rate loan o o " T EURBOR 127 KE) L3 - - — —
Overdrafts* (25) 25 — — — -
Fffect of interest rate swaps T T T gy T T S T g T 8T e )
Other unsecured
South Korean Won flssting ate oai =~ 7 7T T T T T KRWLBORTIOY T T T T3 T T T L e e e
Other loan 2008 (interest rate nily 0.0000% n {1} — — — —
Unsecured bond issues
7 % Notes 2016 £200m - 7 7.3750% T - 7 = = = 1200)
5.84% Notes 2070 US5187m 5.8400% 97) — — —_ 197) —
Effectof interestrate swaps T T UsSDUBOR TS T o7 - — T g7 -
6.38% Notes 2013 US5230m 6.380096 (123} — — — — 1123
Effect of interest rate sw.ibs T T T SO LBOR i s T L FAFE) D oo BbE]
£.55% Notes 2015 US583m 65500056 (45} — - = — {46)
Effect of interest rate swaps 7 T SDUBOR +1.24 7 7 = L " 46
4 V5% Notes 2011 €750m 4.5000% (534) — - — 534) -
Effect of interest rate swaps B T T R LBOR T LT sy T T T — T 534 =
Secured bank loans
USS flodting rake (G377 "7 T e R0 53 Ty I e s
Other secured
Obligations under finance leases ~~ =~ 7 70 T 60183% ] 2) e e - 0]
B72 1,107 3 213 {4) {213)

T Interest an the short-term investiments are at fixed rates.,

2 Cash at bank ancl in hand comprises bank batances and demand deposits and earns interest at raes based on daily bank deposit rates.

3 short-term deposits are deposits placed on Imoney markets for periads up 1o thise mariths aned ear intefest at the respeclive shor-tenm deposit rates.
* Owverdrafts bear interest at rates linked 1o applicabie L IBOR rates that fluctuate in accordance with local practice.

Some of the Group's borrowings are subject to the Group meeting certain obligations, including customary financial covenants If the Group fails to meet its obligations
these arrangements give rights to the lenders, upon agreement, to accelerate repayment of the facilities. There are no rating triggers contained in any of the Group's

facilities that could require the Group to accelerate or repay any facility for a given movernent in the Group's credit rating.

In addition, the Group has undrawn committed borrowing flacilities available as follows:

2008 2007

m im

Expiring within one year — —_
Expiring in one to" ar o T e s s s s e e e e e -
650 450

8007 uoda Enuuy | 3d 5240y-5104
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15 Financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis
The Gioup is exposed Lo a number of foreign cunencies. The most significant transaclional currency expasures are US dollar with sterling and US dollar with euro,

At December 31, 2008 if sterling had weakened ten per cent against the US dollar with afl cther variables held constant, profit after tax for the year and equity
would have been £890m lower (2007 £329m). If sterling had strengthened ten per cent against the US dollar with all other variables beld constant, profit after tax for the
year and equity would have been £728m higher (2007 £269m). There would have been no change to the underlying resulls that exclude uniealised gains and losses on
foreign exchange derivatives.

At Decernber 31, 2008 if the euro had weakened ten per cent against the US dollar wilh all other variables held constant, profit after 1ax and equity for the year
would have been £102m lower (2007 £73m). If the euro had strengthened ten per cent against the US dollar with all other variables held constant, profit afier tax for the
year and equity would have been £84m higher (2007 £60m). There would have been no change to the underlying results that exclude unrealised gains and losses on
foreign exchange derivatives.

At December 31, 2008 if the price of commadities had been ten per cent lower, with all other variables remaining constant, profit after tax for the year and equity
woutld have been £13m lower (2007 £16m}, arising mainly as the result of lower fair value gains on derivative contracts. If the price of commoxdities had been
ten per cent higher, with all other variables remaining constant, profit after tax and equity would have been £13m higher (2007 £16m), arising mainty as the resuilt of
higher fair value gains on derivatives. There would have been no change to the underlying results that exclude unrealised gains and losses on commadity derivatives,

At Decernber 31, 2008 the Group had no material sensitivity to changes in interestiates on that date. The main interest rate sensithvity for the Group arises as a
result of the gross up of net cash and this is mitigated as described under the interest rate risk management policies on page 3C.
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16 Provisions

At Acguisitions/ Unused  Chargedto At

Decernber 31, Exchange disposals of amounts income December 31,

2007 adjustments  businesses reversed statement Utilised 2008

£m £m £m £m £m £m im

Warranties and guarantees 165 19 1 & 39 (36) 182

Contract loss

5 e oo T
Custorer financing ™~~~ T T - - T B |
insurance ‘ o ) T - T 4 @ 7 38
Restuctuing " T e e M= s e e 16
e . i et e R s S Iy
301 30 (1) {11} 118 {68) 369

Analysed as:
2008 207
£m [m
Current lisbilites = = ] ) S e A
Non-current liabilities 188 180
369 301

Provisions for warranties and guarantees prirmarily relate 1o products sold and generally cover a period of up 1o three years.

Provisions for contract doss and restructuring are generally expected to be utilised within two years.

The Group’s captive insurance company retains a portion of the exposures it insures on bahalf of the remainder of the Group. Significant delays occur in the notification
and settlernant of claims and judgement is involved in assessing outstanding liabilities, the ultimate cost and timing of which cannot be known with certainty at the
balance sheet date. The insurance provisions are based on information currently available, however itis inherent in the nature of the business that ultimate kabilities may
vary, Provisions for outstanding claims are established to cover the outstanding expected liability as well as claims incurred but not yet reported,

Other provisions comprise a number of abilites with varying expected uglisation rates.

Customer linancing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset value and/or inancing. These guarantees are considered 10 be insurance contracts in nature and
provision is made in accordance with IFRS 4 insurance Contracts and 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabiiities and Contingent Assets. These guarantees, the risks a:ising and
the process used to assess the extent of the risk are described under the heading ‘Sales financing'in the Finance Director's review on page 30, The related contingent
liabilities arising from these guarantees and the sensitivity to movernents in the value of the underlying security are discussedin note 22. Based on the assurmptions used
10 estimate the customer finance provision, it is estimated that the provision will be utilised as follows:

2008 2007
fm £m

Potential clairms with spedific claim dates:
Inoréyearoriess” 7T

in'more than one year but less than five years ™~
in mare than five years T

5

Up'ic five years
Thereafter

® 0\':—:
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17 Post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution schemes.

74

For the UK defined benefit schemes, the assels are held in separate truslee administered funds and employees are entitled o retierment benefits based on either

their firal or career salaries and length of service.

Overseas defined banefit schemes are a mixture of funded and unfunded plans. Additionaly in the US, and to a esser extent in some other countries, the Groups
amployment practices include the provision of healthcare and life insurance benefits for retired employees. These schemes are unfunded.
The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuaries to December 3t, 2008. The

mast recent funding valuations of the main UK schemes were:

Scheme Valuation date
Ralls-Royce Pension Fund March 31,2006
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scherme ~ ceme s o e T T T T T A Bl'S, 2007
Vickers Group Pension Scherne ] March 31, 2007
Amouns recognised in the income staternent
2008 2007
UK Overseas UK Oreiisess
schemnes schernes Total schemes schermey Tenal
£m tm im fm fm fin
Dehned benefit schemes:
Current senviicecost - o R 27 154 00 25 125
Pt sarvice ot e e e e - s it DR 5 i3
Ex-gratia payment paid directly by the Group ™ T T8 e T T8 _ T —
140 30 V70 23 27 258
Defined contribution schemes ~ T T T I 20 T2 3 i7 20
Operating cosl 146 50 196 234 44 278
Financing (income)/costs in respect of defined beneht schemes:
Expected return on assets T {352) 21y (373 (367) an- (384)
Interost o laGiliies e s 3777 398 T T a4 Tt af Yo
6 16 22 a3 14 {30
Total income stalernent charge 152 [ 218 190 58 248
The operating cost is charged as follows:
Defined benefit Defined contribution Total
2008 o7 2008 2007 2008 2007
£m fm £m fin im ['m
Cost of sales N 124 223 19 15 143 238
Commercial and adiministrative costs S B % L T | I
Research and development 13 B 20 T L “10
170 258 26 20 196 278
Amounts recognised in the statemertt of recognised income and expense
2008 2007
£m £
Actuarial gain on scherme assets 178 161
Experience gains on scheme lizbilities o o i 766 350
Moverment in unrecognised surplus T ] s T (9281 " 7T (112
16 399

In December 2007, PaySave was introduced in the UK. This a salary sacrifiice scherne under which emplayees elect to stop making employee contributions and the
Group makes additional contributions in retum for a reduciion in gross contractual pay. As a result, there has been a decrease in wages and salaries and a

corresponding increase in pension costs of £38m (2007 £3m) in the year,




17 Post-retirement benefits continued
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Defined benefit schemes
Assumpiions
The principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows:
2008 007
V.4 Overseas UK Cverseas
schemes schemes schernes sthemes
% % % %
Rate of increase in salaries 45 39 50 38
Rate of increase of pensions in payment ! ) 29 05 35 04
Discount rate i 64 6.1 58 60
Expected rate of retum on scheme assets T - 4.1 6.9 54 15
Inflation assumption’ ] B " 3.0 2.6 35 25

' Benefits accruing after apnl 5, 2005 are assumed to increase in payment at a rate of 21 per cent.

The discount rates are determined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds. For the main UK schemes, the rate is determined by using the profile

of forecast benefit payments to derive a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve. For less significant UK schernes and overseas schernes, the rate is

determined as the market yield at the average duration of the forecast benefit payments. The discount rates above are the weighted average of those for each scherme,

Based on the value of their respective liabilities.

The overall expected rate of retuin is calcutated by weighting the individual returns expected frorm each asset class (see below) in accordance wilh the actual asset

talance in the schemes'investment peitfolios,

The mortality assurnptions adopted for the UK pension schemes are derived from the PA9? actuarial tables, with medium cohort, published by the Institute of
Actuaries, projected forward and, where appropriate, adjusted to take account of the relevant scheme’s sctual experience, The resulting range of life expectancies in the

principal UK schemes are as follows:

Life expectancy from age 65
Current pensicner j 175 years to 22.2 years
Future pensioner 19.5 years 10 239 years

Other demographic assurmptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scheme experience and other relevant data.
The assumptions are reviewed and wixdated as necessary as pant of the periodic actuarial valuation of the schemes.

Assumptions in respect of overseas schemes are also set in accordance with advice from local actuaries.

The future costs of healthcare benefits are based on an assumed healthcare costs trend rate of 8.9 per cent grading down (0 5.0 per cent over seven years.

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2008 2007

UK Overseas UK Overscas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £m £m fm fm im
Present value of funded cbligations {5,719) {390) {6,109) (6,335) (293) (6,628)
Fair value of scheme assets ) o 7.163 283 7,446 6626 w7~ 693
1444 {307} 1,337 291 (18) 275
Present value of unfunded obligations o - (437) {43n — {284) (284)
Unrecognised surplus! {1,036) {6} {1,042) (110) (4) (114)
Net assel/fiability) recognised in the balance sheet 408 (550} {142) 181 (304) (123}

Analysed as; i

Post-retirement scheme suipluses o 453 — 453 2G0T - 210
Post-retirernent scherne deficits ~ T T T B ) (550} (595) (9 (W) (333
408 (550) ~{142) 181 (304) (123)

' Whera a surplus has arisen on a scheme, in accordance with 145 19, the surplus is recogrised a5 an assat only if it repeesents an economic benefit available 10 the Group in the future.

Any surplus in excess of this benefit s not recognised in the batance sheet

2007 Lodas [enuly | HHd sDADY-SI0Y
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17 Post-retirement benefits continued

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

76

2008 2007
UK Oversgas UK Qveryeas
schemes schemes Total schemes schermes Total
fm Em £m fm £m m
At January 1 (6,335) {577 {6,912) (6,338) {561) 6899
Exchange adjustrnents - (196) {196) — {i5) (15)
Curréng service cost (27 27 (154 (100 @ o)
Past service cost {5) (3) ) {EL) I ¥ (133
Financecost - ) 358 (3 (395 B3 7 4n (354)
Contributions by employees (4) {2) (8} (38) vJ] (40)
Netbenefits paidout ~~ ~ ~~ 7 77 777 . T 33 25 7T 3% 7 0 286 87 7 304
Actuarial gains/(losses) 776 B AT I /-7 S Y > B | " 450
Transfers ' 3 — 73 = — e
At December 31 (5.719) 827) {6,546} {65,335) (577) 6912)
Funded schemes {5.718) (390) {6,108} i6.339) (293} {6,028
Unfunded schermes " o - T T o= (413}'}'?“'(437)w i _‘—“ﬁ' (84 7 28w
Changes in fair value of scheme assets
2008 2007
UK Cverseas UK Cherseas
schemnes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £m £m £m im im
At January 1 6,626 277 6,903 5673 233 5906
Exchange adjustrents T ST T T — 637 7 63 T T T 9 9
Expected return on assets i " as52 ]| 373 367 17 384
Contributions by employer ~ o © 248 LI - N A 30 707
Contrititions by employees e T Y S T- R 40
Benefits paidout ~ T @I @k T (356l ng” (3o
Actuarial gains/{losses) T 264 86) 178 4 161
At Decernber 33 7,163 283 7,446 6,626 277 6,903
Actual return on scheme assets - 551 ) 545
The fair value of the scheme assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return at December 31, were a5 follows;
2008 2007
Expected Market Expected Market
ate of retum value rate of relumn value
% £m % £m
UK schemes:
LOH portfolio? o B ) 35 5833 47 4595
Equiies ~ T -7 T2 1,141 B F T 3
Savereign deby 39 110 46 48
Corporate bonds 5.5 110 51 83
Other "~ o 19 @t 4 244
4.1 7163 54 6,626
Overseas schemes: B ) ) o B T }
Equities T T Tt m T T T I T: N 138 7 99 Y
Corporate bonds 49 130~ 48 86
other DY J0T T TR T T
6.9 283 75 P

¥ A portfolio of swap contracts, backed by short-term rmoney masket depesits, that is designed to hedge, on an ecanomic basis. the majority of the interest rate and inflation risks associated with the

schemes obligations.

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Group.
The expected rate of return for LDI portfotios is determined by the implicit vield on the portfalio at the balance sheet date.
The expecled rates of returmn on other individual calegories of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields. In the UK, equities and corporate bonds are

assumed to generate returns that exceed the return from gilts by 3.25 per cent and 1.75 per cent per annuim respactively.
The expected rates of rewrn above are the weighted average of the rates for cach scherme.




17 Post-retirement benefits continued

Future contributions
The Group expects to contribute approximately £292m 1o its defined benefit schernes in 2009,

Sensitivities

77

The revised investment strategies are designed 1o hedge the risks from interest rates and inflation on an economic basis. A reduction 6f 0.25 per cent in the discount rate
would increase the obligations of the principal UK defined benefit schemes by approximately £220m. An equivalent movement in interest rates would increase the fair
value of the assets by approximately £320rm. The difference arises largely due to differences in the methods used to value the obligations for accounting and econormic
purposes. On an economic basis the correlation is in excess of 85 per cent. The principal remaining risks relate 1o the assurnptions for mortality and increases in salaries.

If the age ratings in respect of the principal UK defined benefit schemes were increased by one year, the scheme liabilities would increase by £118m. [ the rate of

increase in salaries were 0.5 per cent higher, scheme liabilities would increase by £100m.

The defined benefit obligation relating to post-retirement medical benefits would increase by £50m if the healthcare trend rate increases by one per cent, and
reduce by £41m if It decreases by one per cent. The pension expense relating to post-retirement medical benefits, comprising service cost and interest cost, would

increase by £5m if the healthcare trend increases by one per cent, and reduce by £4m if it decreases by one per cent.

History of defined benefit schemes
The history of the schemes for the current and prior years is as follows:

2008 2007 2006 2005 204
Em £in fm fm fm
bolancesheer . . . .
Present value of defined benefit obligations BNy (oEY

Fair value of scheme assets 6303

Unrecognised surplus g
Deficit {142) {123) {995) {1,659) 11,409)
Experience g
Acianial gains on schemne assels (11— 126
Experience gains/llosses) on scheme liabitities 766 350 (868) {133)
Mowernini in Unrecogmised surpls. | T S s s g (e Sy
Total amount recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense 16 399 602 {282) 7)
Cumulative since January 1, 2004 728 712 EIE (289) 7
18 Share capital
Equity
ordinary
shares Morninal
of 20p each value
Millions m
Authorised
AU January 1, 2007 and Decernber 31,2008~ 2,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At January 1, 2007 and Deé | 2008 S 1,631 0 326

807 wodar enuuy | ojd adkoy-syoy
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19 Movements in capital and reserves

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share Share Hedging  Translation Retained Minority Total

capital premium reserves ! reserve earnings Total interests equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m

AL Sanuary 1, 2007 326 631 177 8 114 2230 7 2337
Total recognised income and expense for the year — — (100) 17 878 895 ® &d9
Share-based payments adjustrment — — — — 29 29 — 29
Transactions with mingrity interests — — — - — = o n
Related tax maovernents — curient tax R — — - 437 437 T = a3

— deferred tax — — - — 778 {18} — na

Change in rate of UK corporation tax — deferred tax — — — — (5) (5) -— &)
Al January 1, 2008 631 77 59 2,081 3,174 12 3,186

Total recognised income and expense for the year — {99) T 1,336 (834} 3 @7
Share-based payrments adjustment o — —_ 6 26 — 26

Related tax moverents - deférred tax — = - — LU — A
At Decemnber 31, 2008 326 631 {22) 660 760 2,355 9 2,364

1 See accounting policies note 1 - hedge accounting.

20 Share-based payments

Share-based payment plans in operation during the year
The Greup had the following share-based payment plans, in respect of shares in its parent company, Rolls-Royce Group plc, in operation during the year:

Perfarrnance Share Plan (PSP}
This plan invohas the award of shares 1o participants subject to performance conditions, Vesting of the performance shares is based on the achievement of both non-
market based conditions (EPS and Cash Flow Per Share) and a market based performance condition (Total Shareholder Returm - TSR).

ShereSave share option plan

Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, eligitle employees are granted share opticns with an exercise price of up to 20 per cent below the share price
when the contract is entered into. Vesting of the eptions is not subject to the achievernent of a performance target. In the UK, the plan is HM Revenue & Customs
approved, Overseas, employees in 33 countries participate in ShareSave plans through arrangements which provide boadly comparable benefiis to the UK plan. From
2007 onwards, the overseas plans are cash-settled schemes.

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOF)

This plan involves the grant of market value shane options to participants. The options are subject to a non-market based performance condition (growth in EPS). The
options have a maximum contractual ife of ten years. Following the introduction of the PSR it is not intended to grant any further executive share options, The plan
terminates in 2009.

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

Delerred shares are awarded as part of the APRA plan, Cne third of the value of any annuial bonus is delivered in Lhe form of a deferred share award. The release of
deferred share awards is not dependent on the achievernent of any further performance conditions gther than that participants remain employed by the Group for two
years from the date of the award in order 1o retain the full nurmber of shares. During the two year deferal peried, participants are entitled to receive dividends, or
equivalent, on the deferred shares.

Share incentive Plan (31F)

This is a‘Free Share' element of the UK Share Incentive Plan. Eligible employees may receive shares with a value of up to one and a half weeks' salary as part of any bonus
paid. There are no conditions attached to the shares.
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20 Share-based payments continued

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, the Group has recognised an expense in respect of all grants under these plans made after
Novernber 7, 2002 and unvested at January 1, 2005,

During the year the Grou recognised a total expense of £40m (2007 £36m), of which £0.4m (2007 £0.1rm) refated to cash-settled arrangements. At
December 31, 2008, the Group had a Hability of £0.6m (2007 £0.2m relating 1o cash-settled arrangements.

The movernents in awards under the Grour's varicus share plans are shown in the tables below,

Number of shares awarded

2008 2007

PSP Millions Millons
OustandingatJanuary 1 e e e L 10 157
Awarded duringthe year —~ ] ] ) ) ) 51 46
Forfeited during the year L T B L ©7 08)
Additional entitlements arising fom TSR performance 13 3
Vested during the year {6.5) (6.8)
Outstanding at December 31 13.2 140
2008 2007

Number Weighted Number Wnghited

of share average of share average

options exercise price options  exercive price

Shara5ave Millians Pence ilhans Pence:
Outstanding at January 1 B 433  260p 547 160p
- 130 _Aop

_ SRR 08 = "0755
Exércised diring he year - i e @36 T iep
Outstanding al Decermber 31 297 433 260p
Exercisable at December 31 1.6 — —
2008 2007

Number Weighted Hurmber Weighled

of share average of share ARrage

- options exercise price options.  e<ercise price
ESOP Millions Pence Millions Pence
Quistanding at January 1 23 175p 190 183p
Exércised during theyear T T e A I T e T 15ep {16) 189p
Outstanding at Decernber 37 21 177p 2.3 175p
Exercisable at December 31 21 177p 23 175p
Number of shares awarded

2008 2007

Deferred shares under APRA Millions Millions
QOutstanding at January 1 34 48
Awaded duringtheyear  — 77 70 T T T o o B Y- S
Forfeffed dufing theyear -~~~ T T T Coorm e m T .17 on
Adldlitional shares accrued from conversion of B Shares T o ' T 01 02
lasted Cuing thi yedr " T S S e e e e i e e e gl ey
Quistanding at Decornber 31 2.8 34
Number of shares awarded

2008 2007

Free Shares under SIP Millions Millicns
Awarded during the year 1.2 07

Cptions were exercised on a regular basis during the year. The average share price during the year was 382p (2007 510p).

2067 Moda: jenuuy | 3fd 33Moy-sicy
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20 Share-based payments continued

Fair values
The weighted average fair values per share for PSP awards, SharsSave grants, APRA deferred share awards, and SIP Free Share awards included in the expense for the year
were as follows:

2008 007 2006 2005 2004

Pence Pence Perce Pence Pence

PSP awards 458p 557p 494p 28p 249
oSt - 3 yéar Grants” e e e e e e e e C Jap : i "

5 year grants | 264p 154p o

AT deler el s e 5 o 220
SIP Frée Share awards a T e T ' T C T T a39p T 489 A62p 257p 237p

Details of the assumptions used in the calcuation of these fair values are set out balow, Expected volatiity was based on the historical volatility of Rells-Royce Group plc's
share price over the seven years prior Lo the grant or award date. Until 2007, expected dividends were based on Rolls-Royce Group ple’s payments to shareholders aver
the five years prior to the grant or award date. From 2008, expected dividends were based on the paymenits to sharcholders in respect of 2007,

PSP cpwards
The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP are calculated using the market value of shares at the time of the award adjusted to take into account nerrentitement 1o
dividends {or equivalent) during the vesting period and the TSR performance condition. The PSP fair values were calculated using the following assumptions:

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Weighted average share price 430p 501p A44p 262p 233p
Expected dividends — 7 7 T e o T9300p 7 B3O J%zp T 78Ip T 76lp
volatity : S e e e - o B i R
Conelation i L
Expected life Jyears  3years | 3years
Risk free interest rate T ) 436 TTA9% T T 5%

The PSP has a TSR market-based performance condition, such that the Rolls-Royce Group pIc's TSR over the performance period will be compared with the TSR of the
cormpianics constituting the FTSE 100 index on the date of grant. If the Rolls-Royce Group plc’s TSR exceeds the rradian TSR of the FTSE 100, the nurmber of shares that
vest will be increased by 25 per cent. The fair value of an award of shares under the PSP has been adjusied 10 take into account this market-based perfonmance
condition using a pricing model based on expectations about volatility and the corelation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 comparties and which
incorporates into the valuation the interdependency between share price perfarmance and TSR vesting This acjustment increases the fair value relative o the share
price at the date of grant.

ShareSave awaids
The fair value of options granted under the ShareSave plan are calculated using a binomial pricing mode! with the following assumptions:

007
. 233p

2003
173p
_ldzp

Weighted average shae price
Exercise price '
Volatility ~ © 7
Expected dividends 8%
Expected lifet - 3 ydar SharéSave” 3338 years . 33-38 years 3237 years
T TGyearShareSave T 53-58years T 5383yeas 5257 years

Risk freé ineradt rate o 5% §% F5%

! The binomial pricing model assurmes that partizipants will exercise their options at the beginning of the siz month windaw if the share price i greater than the exerdise price. Otherwise it assumes that
options are held until the expiration of their contraciual term. This resulis i an 2pecied e that falls sormewhera between the start and end of the exertise window,

Deferred shares under APRA and Free Shares under SIP
The fair value of shares awarded under these plans is calculated as the share price on the date of the award.
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21 Operating and finance leases

Operating leases
Leases as lassee
2008 2007
£m fm
Rentaks paid - hire of plant and machinery 64 58
~ hire of other assets 25 18
Non-cancellable operating Tease rentals are payable as follows:
Within oneyear ) ) ’ T ) 104 77
Between one and five years T T e C B T T
After five years 205 9
472 355
Leases as lessor
2008 2007
£m fin
Remals received - credited within revenue from aftermarket sepices 26 27
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are receivable as follows:
Within one year o - ' o 6 5
Between one and five years o T T o T o 13 13
After five years i o i 3 ) 3
22 21

The Group acts as lessee and lessor for both land and buildings and gas turbine engines, and acts as lessee for some plant and equipment.

- Sublease payrnerts of £15m (2007 £15m) and sublease receipts of £11m (2007 £8m) were recognised in the income statement in the year,

~  Purchase options exist on aere engines, land and buildings and planit and equipment with the periad to the purchase option date varying between one 1o five years.

- Renewal options exist on aero engines, land and buildings and plant and equipment with the period to the renewal option varying between one 1o 21 years at terms
1o be negotiated upon renewal,

- Escalation clauses exist on sorme teases and are linked 10 UBOR.

- The total future minimum sublease payments expecied to be made is £88m {2007 £13m) and sublease receipts expected to be received is £6m (2007 £3m).

Finance leases

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:
2008 2007
Payments Interest Principal Payments Principal
£m £m £m £m im
Within one year 4 1 3 5 5
Between one and five years T ' R = - - El 3
After live yoars ~ ) T ) T e T T
5 1 4 10 1 9

There were no contingent rents recognisad as an expense in the year (2007 £nil) and no future minimum sublease receipts are expected under non-cancellable
subleases (2007 £nil).

nmm‘
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22 Contingent liabilities

In connection with the sale of its products the Group will, on some occasions, provide financing support for its custorners, The Group's contingent liabilities relating o
financing arrangerments are spread over many years and relate 1o a number of customers and a broad product porticlio.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on a discounted basis. As the directors consider the likelihood of these contingent liabilities crystallising to be remote, this
arnount does not a represent a present vatue that is expected to crystallise. However, the amounts are discounted at the Groug's borrowing rate 16 reflect better the ime
span aver which these exposures coukd arise, The contingent liabitities are denominated in US dollars. As the Group does not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for
forecast foreign exchange transactions, this amount is reported, together with the steding equivatent at the reporting date spot rate.

The discounted values of contingent liabilities relating to delivered aircraft and other arrangements where financing is in place, less insurance arrangemenis and
relevant provisions, were:

2008 00/

£m $m im Sm

Gross contingent liabilities 755 1,086 616 1227
Contingent liabilities net of relevant security ) ' o 155 222 140 27
Contingent liabilities net of relevanit security reduced by 2082 ) T 246 354 218 434
¥ Security includes unrestricted cash collateral of: 85 123 50 120

7 Although sensitivity calculations are complex, the reduction of relevant security by 20 per cent illustrates Lhe sensitivity of the contingent liaklity 10'¢hanges in this
assumption.

There are also net contingent liabilities in respect of undelivered aircraft, but it is not considered practicable to estimate these as deliveries can be many years in the
future, and the refevant financing will only be put in place at the appropriate time,

Contingent liatilities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and reliability. The
Group has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements in respect of export finance, perfermance bonds, countertrade obligatiens and minor
miscellaneous iterns, Various Group undertakings are parties 1o legal actions and daims which arise in the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial
amounts. As a consequence of Lhe insolvency of an insurer as previously reported, the Group is no longer fully insured against known and potential claims from
employees who worked for certain of the Group’s UK based businesses for a period prior to the acquisition of those businesses by the Group. While the outcome of
some of these matters cannot precisely be (oreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after allowing for provisions already
made, to result in significant loss 10 the Group.

23 Related party transactions

2008 2007

£m fin

Sales of goods and services to joint ventures 1,555 1289
Puichases of goods and services from joint ventures  ~ 7 7 A T ’ T T 4820 T (00
Operating lgase payrments 1o joint ventures e S ' o (36} (4
Guarantees of joint ventures borrowings T o - o e 137 T
Dividends received from joint ventures T ' o oo T 59 A4
RRSP receipts from joint ventures ) o 19 29
Interest received from joint ventures 2 2
Qtherincome received from joint ventures ‘ o o T 102 75

The aggregated balances with Rolls-Rayce Group ple and joint ventures aie shown in notes 11 and 14. Transactions with Group pension schemes are shown in note 17,

In the course of normal cperations, related party transactions entered into by the Group have been contracted on an arms-length basis,
Rolls-Royre Group plc is a non-trading holding company for Rolls-Royce plc

Key management personnel are deerned to be the directors and the members of the Group Executive as set out in the Annual report of Rells-Royce Group ple
Remuneration far key management personnel is shown below:

2008 007

£m £in

Salaries and short-term benefits [-] 9
Post-retirement schemes. i ' ) 2 2
Share-based paymenits ) ’ ' -

17 16




24 Acquisitions and disposals

During the year the Group acquired a number of small businesses as summarised below,

83

Total
m
Intangible assels - software and other 1
Property, plant and equipment ) T 18
Inventory 16
Trade and other receivables 16
Short-term deposits i 2
Cash at bank andin hand’ i ) D T i S 1
Trade and other payables ) 43)
Borrowings — current liabilities T N ) i {6)
Deferred 1ax liabilities ’ - (5)
Provisions ()
Nel assets aceui 9
Goodwill arising’ 41
50
Additions to investments in joint ventures! | i 1
81
Reprasented by:
Met cash outflow per cash flow statement i i ' 82
Netnon-cash consideraion ™~~~ 7 i} ) T T B m
81

1 As part of the ransaction 1o coendude the joint venwire with Goodiich Comaration to develop end menufacture engine controls, the Group alse paid US$100m in cish and assumed a liability of
£24rm in respect of foreign exchange contraces. These amaunts, totalling £93rm, have been induded inintangible asset additions in the year (note 7.

There were ne significant fair value adjustments in respect of the net assets acquired,

During the year the Group disposed of its interests in a number of small businesses, as surnmarised below.,

Total

£m

Intangible assets — goodwill 2
Property, plant and equipment - 2
Ienentony o - - ST ) o -0 T 5
Trade and other receivables 1
Trade and other payables ) o i i {9
Provisions T ) o - i @
9

Disposals of investments in joint ventures ) ) ) T 30
Net assets 39
Profit on sale or termination of businesses 7
36

Analysed as:
Receipts outstanding al December 31, 2008
Net cash inflow per cash flow statemnent
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Company balance sheet
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At December 31, 2008
2008 07
Notes £m Im
Fixed assets
Intangible assets ) 3 546 410
Tangible assets - i 41,029 1041
Investments - subsidiary undertakings 5 1,647 1,807
investments — joint ventures 3 71 78
Invesiments —cther ~ 5 a6 79
3,339 3415
Current assets
Stocks 6 1,328 1302
Debtors — amounts falfing due within one year 7 2,476 1997
Debrors - armounts fafling due alter one year 7 1,433 353
Otherfinancial assets =~ Tin T 6937 530
Post-retirernent scheme surpluses T " TN T eed” T 149
Short-lerm deposits - 1,456 316
Cash at bark and in hand i . ° 554 To47
Assets held lor resale g —
B,613 5,589
Creditors - amounts falling due withtn one year T o
Borowings S oneyeer . 8 @
Other financial lisbilities’ 0 7 (2,535) (i72)
Other creditors ) B 9 (5.896) (5061
Net current assets {455) 4
Tg;al assets less current Iiabllitfe;‘ o 2,884 3419
Creditors -~ amounts falling due after one year
Borrowings a8 (1,319 (1,003)
Giher financial liabilities 0o (310) (301)
Ciher creditors 9 {792 (422)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 11 (100) {60)
Post-retirement scheme deficts ~ [ E RN ) B P
EE]] 1,612
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 14 326 326
Share premium account 15 631 631
Revaluation reserve 15 ] 71
Transition hedging reserve T T 50 T T T200 T 76
Other reserves 15 167 167
Profit and loss account” B 15 (864) uy
EET] 1612

The financial statements on pages 85 to 103 were approved by the Board on February 11, 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Simon Robertson
Chairman

Andrew Shilston
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended December 31, 2008
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2008 2007

£m im

Profit attributable to the shareholders of Rolls-Royce pic {1,656) 293

Netactuarial gains o S 040 Tase

Movement in unrecognised post-retiement surplus ) ) - i o T (453) (113)

Movement in fair value of available for sale assets (8) 28

Related tax movernents e ) (163) ~ " (104

Total recognised gains relating to the year {1,240) 514

e g . ’
Reconciliation of movements in shareholders'funds
For the year ended December 31, 2008

2008 2007

£m fm

Al January 1 1,612 1,84

Total recognised gains for the year otTmT/ o T/ rmermm e Tt T 2400 T T4

Transfer from transition hedging reserve (78) (149)

snare-based payment adjustments ™ " Ms B V1

Related tax movernents 22 47

Al Decermber 31 3N 1612




Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial staterents have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK
Accounting Standards on the histarical cost basis, modified o include the
revaluation of land and buildings.

As permitted by section 230 of the Companics Act 1985, a separate profit
and loss account for the Comparty has not been included in these financial
staterments.

As permitied by the audit fee disclosure regulations, disclesure of non-audit
fee information is not inciuded in respect of the Company., As permitted by FRS |
Cash flow staternents, na cash flaw staternent for the Cormpany has been
included..

Revenue recognition
Revenues comprise sales 1o external customers after discounts, and exciuding
value added tax.

Sales of products are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are transferred to the customer, the sales price agreed
and the receipt of payment can be assured.

Sales of services and fong-term contracts are recognised when the cutcome of
the transaction can be reliably estimated. Revenue is recognised by reference to
the stage of cornpletion based on services performed (o date as & percentage of
the total contractual obligation, The assessment of the stage of cormpletion is
dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generatly be based on: costs
incurred to the extent these relate o services perfarmed up 1o the reperting date;
achievernant of contractual milestones where appropriate; or flying hours or
equivalent (or long-term aftormarket arrangements.

Linked safes of product and services are treated as a single long-term contract
where these comyponents have been negotiated as a single commercial package
and are so closely interretated that they do not operate independently of each
other and are considerad to form a single project with an overall profit margin.
Revenue is recognised on the same basis as for other sales of products and
services as described above,

Full provision is made far any estimated lasses to completion of contracts
having regardl to the averall substance of the arrangerments.

Progress payments recetvad on long-term contracts, when greater than
recorded wrnover, are deducted from the value of work in progress except to the
extent that payrnents on account exceed the value of work in progress oh any
centract where the excess is included in creditors, The amount by which recorded
turnover of long-term contracts is in excess of payments on account is dassified as
‘amounts recoverable on contracts and is separately disclosed within debtors.

Governiment investment

Where a government or similar body invests in a development programme, the
Company treats such receipts as the sale of an interest in the programme:
Subsequent payments are royalty payments and are matched to related sales.

Governrent granis

Government grants are recognised in the income statement so as to match them
with the related expenses that they are intended to compensate, Where grants are
received in advance of the related expenses, they are included in the balance
sheet as deferred incorme. Non-rmonetary grants are recognised at fair value.

87

Hisk and revenue sharing parinerships (RASPs)
From time-to-time, the Company enters into arrangernents with pariners who, in
return for a share in future programme revenues or profits, make cash payments
that are not refundable (except under certain remote circumstances). Cash sums
received, which reirmburse the Cornpany for past expenditure, are credited 1o
other operating income. The arrangernents also require partners to undertake
development work and/or supply components for use in the programme at their
own expense, No acgounting entries are recarded where pariners undertake such
development work or where programme companents are suppled by partners
because no obligation arises unfess snd until programme sales are made; instead,
payments o partners for their share in the programmie are charged to cost of sales
a5 Programime revenues arise

The Company has arrangements with partners who do not undenake
developrnent work or supply parts. Such arrangements are considered to be
financial instruments as defined by FRS 25 Financial instrurments: Disclosure and
Presentation and are accounted for using the amorntised cost method.

Research and developmernt

The charge to the profit and loss account consists of research and developrment
expenditure incurred in the year, excluding known recoverable costs on contracts,
contributions 1o shared engineering programmes and application engineering.
No research and developrnent expenditure is capitalised.

Interest
Interest receivable/payable is cradited/charged 10 the profit and loss account
using the effective interest method.

fewation
Provision for taxation is made at the current rate and far deferred taxation at the
projected rate on all timing differences that have originated, but not reversed at
the balance sheel date.

Deferred tax is calculated using the enacied or substantively enacted rates
Lhat are expected to apply when the asset or liability is scttled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the assets can be wtlised,

Foreign currency transkation

Transactions in overseas currencies are translated inle local currency at the
exchange rate ruling on the date of the transaction, Monglary assets and liabilities
denorinated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling

at the year-end. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions
and the retranslation of assets and liabilities into stering at the rate nuling at the
year-end are taken into accouni in determining profit on ordinary activities befare
1axation.
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Financial instruments

FRS 26 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement requires the

classification of financial instrurnents into separate categaories for which the

accounting requirernent is different. Rolls-Royce has classified its financial
instruments as follows:

- Fixed depacsits, principally comprising funds beld with bianks and other
financial institutions, are classified as koans and receivables,

- investments (other than interests in joint ventures and fixed deposits) and
short-tenm deposits (other than fixed deposits) are normally classified as
available for sale.

- Borrowings, trade creditors and financial RRSPs are generally classified as
other liabilities.

- Derivarives, comprising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and
commodity swaps are classified as held for trading,

Financial insiruments are recognised al the contract date and initially measured at

fair value, Their subsequent measurement depends on their classification:

- Leans and receivables and cther labilities are generally held at armortised
cost and not revalued (except for changes in exchange rates which are
included in the income statement) unless they are included in a fair value
hedge accounting relationship, Where such a relationship exists, the
instruments are revalued in respect of the risk being hedged. If instruments
held at amortised cost are hedged, generally by interest rate swaps, and the
hedges are effective, the carrying values are adjusted for changes in fair
valug, which are included in the profit and loss account.

- Available for sale assets are held at fair value. Changes in fair value arising
from changes in exchange rates are included in the profit and loss account.
Alt other changes in fair value are taken 10 reserves. On disposal of the related
asset, the accumulated changes in value recordad in reserves are included in
the gain or loss recorded in the profit and loss account.

- Held for trading instruments are held at {air value. Changes in fair value are
included in the profit and loss account unless the instrument is included in 2
cash flow hedge. If the instruments are included in a cash flow hedging
telationship, which is effective, changes in value are taken o reserves, When
the hedged forecast transaction occuirs, amounts previoushy recorded in
reserves are recognised in the profit and loss account

Financial instruments are derecognised on expiry of when all contractual rights
and obligations are transferred,

Hedge accounting

The Company does not apply bedge accounting in respect of forward foreign
exchange contracts held te manage the cash flow exposures of farecast future
transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Cormpany does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commodity
swaps held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future transactions in
those commoditics.

The Company applies hedge accounting in respect of transactions entered
intg 1o manage the falr value and cash flow exposures of its barrowings. Forward
foreign exchange contracts are held Lo manage the lair value exposures of
barrowings denominated in foreign currencies and are designated as fair value
hedges. Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are
designated as fair value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings
respectively.

Changes in the fair values of derivatives designated as fair value hedges and
changes in fair value of the related hedged item are recognised ditectly in the
profit and loss account.
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Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedgas
and are effective are recognised directly in reserves. Any ineffectiveness in the
hedging relationships is included in the profit and loss account, The amourits
deferred in 1eserves are recognised in the profit and loss account to match the
recognition of the hedged item.

Hedge accouniting is discontinued when the hadging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. AL
that time, for cash flow hedges and if the forecast transaction remains probable,
any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity, is
retained in equity untit the forecast transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is
ng lkonger expected 1o occur, the net cumulative gain or koss recognised in equity
is transferred 1o the income staternent,

The portion of a gain or loss on an instrument used o hedge a net
investrment in a foreign operation that is determined to he an effective hedgeis
recognised directly in reserves. The ineffective partion is recognised immediately
in the prefit and foss account.

Until December 31, 2004 the Company applicd hedge accounting for
forecast foreign exchange transactions and commodity exposures in accordance
with UK Accounting Standards. On fanuary 1, 200, the fair values of derivatives
used for hedging these exposues were included in the transition hedging reserve,
This reserve is released to the profit and loss account based on the designation of
the hedges on January 1, 2005,

Certification costs and participation fees

Costs incurred in respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new
civil engine/aircraft combinations and payments made to airframe manufacturers
for this, and participation fees, are carried forward in intangible assets to the extent
thal they can be recovered out of future sales and are charged 10 the profit and
loss account over the programme life, up to a maximum of 15 years.

Software

The cost of acquiring software that is not specific to anitem of tangible fixed
assets is classified as an intangible asset and amortised over its useflul ceconomic
life, up 1& @ rnaxirmum of five years.

Tangibile fixed assets and depretiation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation
and any provision for impairments in value.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write-off the cost or
valuation, less the estimated residual value, aver the estimated useful life.
Estimated useful fives are as follows:

i) Land and buildings, as advised by the Company's professional valuers:

a)  Frechold buildings ~ five to 45 years (average 24 years).

b)  Leaschold land and buildings - lower of valuers' estimates or period

of lease.

¢)  Nedeprediation is provided in respect of freehold land,

il Plant and equipiment - five 1o 25 years {average 15 years),
iy Aircraft and engines — five 10 20 years (average 17 years).
V) No depreciation is provided on assets in the course of construction,




impairrment of fixed assets

Impairment of lixed assets is considered in accordance with FRS 11 Impairment of
fixed assets and goodwill. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent of other assets, impairment is considered for the income-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Intanglle assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.,
Cther fixed assets are assessed for any indications of impairment annually. IF any
indication of impairment is identified, an impairment test is performed to estimate
the recoverable amount,

Recoverable ameunt is the higher of value in use or fair value less costs 10
sell - if this is readily available. The value in use is the present value of future cash
flows using a pre-tex discount rate that reflects the tme vatue of money and the
risk specific (o the asset,

if the recoverable amount of an asset {or income-generating unit} is
estimated 10 be below the carrying value, the carrying value is reduced 1o the
recoverable amount and the impairment Joss recognised as an expense.

Accounting for leases

i) Aslessee
Assets financed by leasing agreements that give rights approximating to
ownership {finance leases) have been capitalised at amounts equal to the
original cost of the assets to the lessors and depreciation provided on the
basis of the Company depreciation policy. The capital elernents of future
obligations under finance leases are inclucled as fabilzies in the balance
sheet and the current year's interest element, having been allocated 10
accounting periods to give a constant periodic rate of charge on the
cutstanding balance, is charged to the profit and loss account.

The annual payrments under all other lease arrangernents, known as
operating leases, are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis.

i) AsLessor
Amounts receivable under finance leases are included under debiors and
represent the total amount outstanding under lease agreements less
unearmed incorme. Finance lease income, having been allocated to
accounting periods to give a constant periodic rate of return on the net cash
investment, is included in turmover.

Rentals receivable under operating leases are included in turnover on a
straight-fine basis.

Stock
Stock and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and nel realisable value.

Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the Company has & present obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that the Company will be required 1o settle that
cbligation, Provisions are measured at the directors' best estirnate of the
expenditure required to settte the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are
discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Post-retirernent benefits
Pensions and similar benefits are accounted for under FRS 17 Post-retirement
benefits. For defined benefit plans, cbligations are measured at discounted present
value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value. The service and financing costs
of such plans are recognised separately in the profit and loss account; service costs
are spread systematically over the lives of employees and finanging costs are
recognised in the periods inwhich they arise, Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the statement of 1otal recognised gains and losses.
Surphases are recognised only if they represent future economic benefits available
10 the Company.

Payments to defined contribution schermes are charged as an expense as
they fali due,

89

Share-based payments

The Company, on behalf of its parent company, provides share-based payment

arrangements to certain employees. These are equity-settled arrangements and

are measured at fair value {excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) at the date of grant. The fair value is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Cornpany’s estimate of shares or opiions

that will eventually vest. The costs of these share-biased payments are treated as a

capital contribution from the parent company. Any payments made by the

Company to its parent company, in respect of these arrangements, are treated as a

return of this capital contribution.

The fair values of the share-based payment arcangernents are measured as
followes:

) ShareSave - using the binomial pricing rmethod;

i) Performance Share Plan - using a pricing model adjusted to reflect non-
entitlement to dividends (or equivalent}) and the Total Shareholder Return
market basad condition;

i) Annual performance Related Award plan and free shares under the Share
Incentive plan — share price on the date of the award.

See nate 17 for further description of the share-based payrment plans.
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Naotes to the Company financial statemenits continued 9 0

2 Emoluments of directors

2008 2007

Highest paid Other  Highest pad Other

director'  directors director ' directors

£000 £000 £000 FO0

Aggregate emoluments excluding deferred share plans 1,125 3,526 1109 3412

Aggregale amounts refating 1o deferred share plans2 ™~ 7 7 T TrTmOTTT T T 497 T U 18817 1865 348

Aggregale value of Company cantributions Lo Company defined contribution pensions schemes ' - 558 — 7 oan
Accrued pension of highest paid directar o ' T ' T a49 ) 555

Galns realised on exercise of share options? B o o B ) - 9 7 3339 7 7035

2008 2007

Number Number

Nurnber of disectors with aceruing retirement benefits:

Defined contribution schemes 2 2
Defined benefit schermes* 2 3
Nurnver of directors regisiered for enhanced protection wilhin defined benefit schemes® ™ 2 3
Number of directors exercising share options 1 5
Number of directors receiving shares as part of long-term incentive schermnes ) o 5 5
! Member of defined benefit schece started 1o receive pension an February 1, 2008,
? 2007 restated form £153k and £314k 1 include shares vesting under the Rolls-Royce Group plc Performance Shate Plan - see nate 17.
3 Includes gains under the ShareSave plan,
4 Tiwo directors were contributing members of both defined contribution and defined benefit schemes (2007 two directors).
5 In 2007, this was ncluded within the number of ditectors accruing fetnerment benefits in defined benefit schemmes.
3 Intangibie assets
Certification
costs and
. participation Software
! fees. and other Total
| im fm £m
' Cost:
% Atlanuary 12008 ) o o ) ) L...483 92 " 7575
Additions 43 119 162
E Al December 31, 2008 526 21 737
.-
1% Accumulated amartisation:
(8 Adenueyroos T T Tt T ot Tt T w0 T 25 e
&  Provided during the year 12 14 26
. € AtDecember 31,2008 152 39 191
‘2 Netbook value at Docember 31, 2008 374 172 546
_'g g g’\ Netbook valug at January 1, 2008 343 67 410
%
£ g
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4 Tangible assets

Land and Plantand Aircraftand  Incourse of

buildings  equipment engines construction Total
£m £m £m fm im
Cost or valuation:
At January 1, 2008 ' oo To422 1,264 24 12 1,831
Additions 5 a1 55 64 165
Aoclassfications . S e e e T s - GE
Transferred to ‘Assets held for sale’ ’ ‘ (31 - — - (31
Disposals/writa-offs ] T - - (38} — (108)
At December 31, 2008 407 1,282 41 127 1,857
Accumulated depreciation:
AtJanuary 17,2008 7 7 ’ T ' 109 7 680 1 — 790
Provided during the year . T [ (A 5 - 124
Transferred to Assets held for sale’ o (22) - — — 22
Disposalsiwrite-offs @ (60) {2) - {64)
At December 31, 2008 116 708 4 — 828
Net book value at December 31, 2008 293 574 37 127 1,029
Net book value at January 1, 2008 313 584 23 [Pl 1,041
2008 2007
Tangible fixed assets include: £m im
Net book value of finance leased assets 17 22
Non-depreciable land 57 57
Land and buildings at cost or valuation comprise.
Cost 248 232
Valuation at December 31,1996 e ' ) ) T T T 159 190
407 422
g
Land and buildings at net bhook value comprise: 2 g
Fré"éhad" mmen rTommemmmemomnom ot omome T T TTTTTTT OTT T n T T T Tmmenenannamasmosas gt - v - o T e - N 284 - 30"5 § 3
longleasehold ~ L - L 5 6 3
chort lsssehold - ror e . . 5 ‘ ; F
291 33 %
&
On an historical cost basis the net book value of fand and buildings would have been asfollows: o g
Cost 330 00 3
Depreciation i ’ ) ) {139} 059 B
251 241
Capital expenditure commitments - contracted but not provided for 86 67

The Company has followed the transitional provisions of FRS 15 Tangible fixed assets, to retain the book value of tand and buildings, certain of which were revalued in
1996 as set out below.

Group progerties were revalued at December 31, 1996 as follows;

i) Specialised properties, including certain of the Cornpany's major manufacturing sites, were revalued on a depreciated 1eplacement cost basis,
i) Non-spedialised properties were revalued by reference to their existing use value,

i) Properties surplus 1o the Cormpany’s requirements were revalued on an open market value basis.

In the United Kingdom the revaluation was carried out by Gerald Eve, Chartered Surveyors, Fuller Peiser, Chartered Surveyors and Storey Sons & Parker, Chartered
Surveyors, in accordance with the appraisal and valuation manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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5 Investments

Subsidiary undertakings ' Joint veritures 2 Other

Parent

Unlisted company

Shares Shares investments  shares held
atcost at cost Loans Total Acost undertrust Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m3 £m
At January 1, 2008 1,807 65 13 78 a7 32 79
Additions — ril —_ 2 - 4 .
Fair value adjustments - ] - o~ - — = 5 _____ 18
Disposals/write-offs {160) {20 (8) (28} {1 (68) (69)
At Decernber 31, 2008 1,647 * 66 5 7 46 — 46

7 The principal subsicliary unriertakings are listed on page 104,

2 The principal joint ventures are listed on pages 105 and 106,

3 Shares in the parent company wera held at fair value in a trust, Duting 2008, all the shares were transferred to an equivalent trust of which Rolls-Royce Group pk: is the sponsor. At December 31, 2007
5,838,501 shares with a fair value of £32m were held.

* The Comgpany has guaraneed the uncalled share capital of Nightingule Insurance Limited, one of its subsidianes. At December 31, 2008, this guarantes was £25m {2007 £25mm).

6 Stocks
2008 2007
£m ftn
Raw materials 44 52
Work in progress 368 349
Long-term contracts work in progress - - A "
Finished goods - a1 " 880
Payments on account ) o o o TS TR
1,328 1,302

7 Debtors
Falling due within one year  Falling due after one year
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Trade debiors 408 241 3 16
Amounts recoverable on conuracts ) ’ - 9 7 578 7 189
Amounts owed by - subsidiary undertakings 1,392 1,112 — —
Amounts owed by - joint ventures. T T ) T T T 394 % s 713
Deferred tax assets {note 12} o ’ ‘ B - 794 102
Other debtors ' i o ) ) - o ’ 202 17 s T 6
Prepayments and accrued income ) ) o e 7707 T w7
2476 1597 1,433 353
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Falling due within one year

Falling due after one year

2008 2007 2008 007
m fm fm Im
Unsecured
Cverdralts 634 347 — -
7 6 Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200
5.84% Motes 2010 US$187m* - — — 136 97
6.33% Notes 2013 U55230m? —_ —_— 178 123
6.55% Notes 2015 US583m! —_ — 67 46
4 Y9 Notes 2011 £750m? — —_ 738 534
Secured o ‘
Obligations under finance leases:
Less than oncyear - T T3 5 - -~
Between ene and two years - — - 3
Between two and five years — — — —
637 352 1,319 1,003
Repayable
Between one and two years - by instalments - 3
) ’ - otherwise 136 —
Between two and five years - otherwise o - 96 6l
After five years ~ olherwise ) 267 369
1,319 1,003

! These notes are subject of interest rate swap agieernents under which the Company has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest, and cumrency swaps which form a fair value hedge.
2 These notes are the subject of swap agreements under which counterpariies have undertaken to pav amounis at fixed rates of interest and exchange in conskdertion for arnounts payable at variable

rates of intersst and at fixed eachange rates.

* Obligations under finance leasas are sacured by related leased assets

9 Other creditors

Falllng due within one year  Falling due after ane year

2008 2007 2008 2007

im tm £m im

Payrnents received on account” 383 34 547 33t
Trade creditors o o an 385 — —
Amounts owed Lo subsidiary undertakings 2,995 2,245 — —
Amounts owed Lo joint ventures i 265 4 4
Amounts owed to parent and s subsidiaries 168 407 — —
Corporate taxation 1M 106 — —
Other taxation and social sacurity 18 20 — —
Othercreditors 905 616 190 a7
Accruals and deferred income 574 623 51 —
5896 5061 792 422

*Includes payments received from joint ventures 209 195 107 25

§007 uodas enuuy | it 33404510y
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10 Other financial assets and liabilities

Details of the Company's policies an the use of financial instrurments are given in the accounting pelicies on page 88.
The Company adopied FRS 25 and FRS 26 Financial instrurments prospeclively frorm January 1, 2005.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments held by the Company are as follows:

exif\r:r:g: Commodity Interest rate Financial
contracts contracts contracts RRSPs Total
£fm £m £m £m £m
Al December 31, 2008
heets A AN L R L Lo . Ca1E = s — 7 ee3
Liabiliies ™~ " oo oo T S (z3671 7 (88 @) T (385)  T(2845)
{1,952) (89) 274 (385} {2,152)
At December 31, 2007 o
Assels N T - - Tas0 39 [ < 1)
Liabilities =~~~ ‘ ’ o (153 - (3 (317 {473)
297 39 39 (317) 58
Other financial liabilities are analysed as follows:
2008 2007
£m £mn
Current liabiliies {2,535) {172)
Non-current fiabilities ’ ) ) o (310} {301)
{2,845} 473)

Foreign exchange and cormmadity financial instruments
The Comparty uses various financial instrurenis to manage ils exposwre 1o movements in foreign exchange rates. The Company wses commaodity swaps 1o manage its
exposure to mavernents in the price of commadities (jet fuel and base metals). From January 1, 2005, the Company has not included foreign exchange or commadity

financial instruments in any cash flow hedging relationships for accounting purposes. To hedge the currency risk associated with a borrowing denominalad in US dollars,
the Company has currency derivatives designated as part of afair value hedge.

Movernents in the fair values of foreign exchange and commodity financial instruments were as follows:

Foreign exchange instruments. Commodity instruments

Includedin  Indludedin Included in Inctuded
transition profit transition in profit
hedging and loss hedging and loss
Total reserve account Total reserve agcount

fm £m £m £m fm

At January 1, 2007 508 39 —
Fair vallie changes 10 derivative contracts not in accounting hedging relationships — " 55 36 — 6
Fair valué changés 16 fair value todges™ 77— T oo rm T o T N = - _—
Fair value of contracts settled (260) (36~ — —
Transferred to wmover — — - T

At January 1, 2008 297 39

Fair value changes to derivalive contracts not in accounting hedging relaticnships (2,044) — (2,044 (96) - (96)
Fair valug changes to fair value hedges? o oo 83 - 783" - - =
Fair value of derivative contracis assurned on formation of joint venture o 29 = 77 LT T T T2
Fair value of contracts settled ’ - (264) —. — (32) — -
Transferred to tmover | B T e, ¢ I

At December 31, 2008 (1,952) 25 (89) —

1 Loss an related hedged items £83m {2007 £6m gain)
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10 QOther financial assets and liabilities continued

Interest rate financlal instruments

The Company uses interest rate swaps, farward rate agreements and inlerest rale caps 10 manage iLs exposure 1o moverments in interest rates. Where the effectiveness
of the hedge relationship in a cash flow hedge is demonstrated, changes in the fair value that are deemed effective are induded in the hedging reserve and releaseg
to match actual payments on the hedged item.

Movernents In the fair values of interest rate financial instruments were as follows:

Induded in COther included

fair value  interest rate in profit

hedging financial and loss.

Total relaﬁonsglips instruments account

m £m im £m
At January 1, 2007 16 18 (3

Changes during the year 73 24 —_ 24
Al January 1, 2008 _ 39 42 3}

Changes during the year 235 236 n 235
At December 31,2008 274 278 4

Where applicable, market values have been used to determine falr values. Where market vatues are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting
expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and transfating at prevailing exchange rates.

Financial risk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

The Company has financial liabiities arising from financial RRSPs. These financial liabilities are valued at each reporting date using the amortised cost method. This
involves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the intemal rate of return at the inception of the arrangernents as the
discount rate.

Movernents in the amortised cost values of financial RRSPs are as follows:

2008 2007

£m fm

Al January 1 N7 354
Coih P 0 partiers ) ) e L. e IRy SRy A

Financing charge ST o - T - T ) - T T

Exchange adjustments 16 T

At Decernber 31 385 317

2007 1003 |enuuy | 3d 32A0y-510Y

|
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11 Provisions for liabilities and charges
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At Chargedio At
Decemnber 31, t and 31,
2007 rloss accoynt Utilised 2008
fm fm £m £m
Warranties and guarantees 31 3 )] 27
Custtomer fancing ‘ e . ST, PR, IE 30t T 8
Restcturing ) B oot T T o = 7 a5 " = " 15
60 48 (8 100
Provisions for warrenties and quarantees primarily relate to products sold and gencrally cover a periad of up to three years,
Customer financing provisions cover guaraniees provided for asser values and/or financing as described in note 18. Timing of utilisation is uncertain.
Provisions for restructuring are generally expectad 1o be used within two years.
12 Deferred taxation
£m
At January 1, 2008 52
AmoUnt charged to profit and loss account” 637
Amount charged 1o statemnent of total recognised gains and losses B oo - 1163)
Amount credited 10 equity” ) T 22
At Decernber 31, 2008 548
There are other deferred tax assets lotalling £102m (2007 £102m) that have nat been recognised on the basis that their future economic benefit is uncertain.
The undistributed profits of overseas subsidiary undertzkings and joint ventures may be liable 1o overseas taxes and/or United Kingdorn tax (after allowing for
double tax relief) if remitted as dividends Lo the UK. No deferred 1ax has been provided as there are currently no commitments to pay such dividends.
The analysis of the deferred iax position is as follows:
2003 07
£m £t
Fixed asset timing differences 119} M7
Other timing differences ] 17 156
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefis i B {246) (50)
Feraign éxchange and commodity financial assets and liabfities B ) T T 655 T {(121)
Losses e T o e o e T 180 123
Advance corporation Liax 61 61
548 52
Included within:
Debtars — amounts falling due after one year - T794 102
Post-ratiremnent scheme surpluses - - i - {259y T (58)
Post-retirernent scheme deficits 13 8
548 52

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which might arise from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are stated in the Company's

balance sheel.
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13 Post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit schemes
For the defined benefit schernes Lhe assets are held in separate trustee adrninistered funds and employees are entitled (o retirement benefits based on either their
final or career averages salaries and length of service.

The vatuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuaries to December 31, 2008. The
most recent funding valuations of the main schemes were:

Scheme Valuation date
Ralls-Royce Pension Fund . March 31, 2006
Ralls-Royce Group Pension Scheme April §, 2007

Vickers Groug Pension Scheme March 31, 2007

The principal actuarnial assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follkows:

2008 2007

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 4.5 50
Rate of increase of pensions in payment ! o ’ ) o ) | R ©35
Discount rate . T e o T T o T T "ea T T 38
Expected rate of return an scherne assets ' 4.1 54
Inflaticn assumption ) oo ) o ’ ) R ¥ ‘35

! Benafits acaruing after Apil 5, 2008 are assurmed 1o increase in payment at a rate of 23 per cent,

The discount rates are determined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds, For the main schemes, the rate is determined by using the profile of
lorecast benedit payments to derive a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve, For less significant schemes the rate is determined as the market yictd at
the average duration of the forecast benefit payments. The discount rates above are the weighted average of those for each scheme, based on the value of their
respective fiabitities.

The overall expected rate of return is calculated by weighting the individual returns expected from each asset class (see below) in accordance with the actual
asset balance in the schemes’investment portfolios.

The mortality assurnptions adopted for the pension schemes are derived lrorn the PA92 actuarial tables, with medium cohort, published by the Institute of
Actuaries, projected forward and, where appropriate, adjusted 1o take account of the relevant scheme’s actual experience. The resulting range of life expectandies in
the principal schemes are as follows:

Life expectancy from age 65

Current pensioner ] . ] ] 175 yearsto 222 yeory
Future pensioner 195 years to 23.9 years

Ciher dernographic assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scheme experience and other relevant data.
The assurnptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the periodic actuarial valuation of the schemes.

8007 LoO) fenuiry | i 04045
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13 Post-retirement benefits continued

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

98

2008 2007
£m fm
Present vatue of funded obligations (5,719) {6,335
Fair value of scheme assets - B - T U763 T 6626
Unrecognised surplus {566) {113)
SurplusAdeficii) i 878 178
Related deferred tax (labiity)/asset {246) (501
Nel asset/fiability) recognised in the balance sheet 632 128
Analysed as;
Post-retirement schéme surphuses” ™ N " 664 TTidg
Post-ratirement scheme deficits o (32) {21)
632 128

T Where 3 surplus has arisen on a scheme, in accordance with FRS 17 Retirement benefits, the surplus is recognised as an asset only if it represents a furuie economic benefit available to the Company.
Any surplus in excess of this benefit is not recognised in the balance sheet Surpluses hove arisen largety as a result of differences between the actuarial and FR5 17 valuation assumptions.

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

2008 00
im im
At January 1 A (6,335) (5,785}
Transfer from subsidiary company -7 — (553
Curreni servica cost! - S 2/ B L
Pasiservicecost 7 } oo - o ) S {5} (130
Finance cost (358) (323
Contributions by e T ) B o ) ’ (ﬂ)“.- T Ee
Net benefits paid ou 331 286
Actuarial gains 776 309
Transfers 3 —
At December 31 (5.719) {6,335)
1 The Company 2lso made ex-glatia payments directy to scheme members of £8mm (2007 nil
Changes in fair value of scheme assets
2008 2007
£m im
A January 6,626 5101
Transfer fror subsidiary company ) - ) i = 572
Expected return on assets . T T T T oTm e ST e e T 352 367
Contributions by employer ‘248 677
Contributions by employees T T 4 " 18
Benefits paid out (331) (286)
Actuarial gains B i e 264 157
At Decermnber 31 7,163 6,626
Actual return on plan assets _ ~ _ 616 54
The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rates of return at December 31 were as follows:
2008 2007
Expected Market Expected Market
rate of retum value  rate of retum value
% im % £im
LDI portfolio? 35 5,813 47 4595
Equities B o ' ’ R 1,141 78 1,651
Sovereigndebt ~  © T T T T 7 oo T T T o T390 1w TTagm T T a8
Corporate bonds e e e - e C e e - . - S 6T TSR el
Gther ' ’ Tt ' 19 {31) 49 244
4.1 7.163 54 6,626

1 A portfolic of swap contracts, backed Dy short-term money market deposits, that is designed 1@ hedge, on an economic basis, the majonity of the interest rate and nflation risks assaciated with the

schemes’ obligations.




29

13 Post-retirement benefits continued

The scheme assets do not include any financial instruments of the Rolls-Royce Group ple group, nor any property accupied by, or other assets used by, the group.
The expected rate of return for L0 portfolios is determined by the implicit yiekd on the portfolio at the balance sheet date.
The expected rates of return on individual categories of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields, Equities and corporate bonds ere assumed to
generate returns that exceed the return from gilts by 3.25 per cent and 1.75 per cent per annum respectively,
The expected rates of return above are the weighted average of the rates for each scheme.

future contributions
The Company expects to contribute approximately £237m to its defined benefit schemes in 2009,

Sensitivitios

The revised investment strategies are designed to hedge the risks from interest rates and inflation on an economic basis. A reduction of 0.25 per cent in the discount
rate would increase the obligations of the principal defned benefit schemes by approximately £220m, An equivalent movement in interest rates would increase the
fair value of the assets by approximately £320m. The difference arises largely due to differences in the methods used to vilue the obligations for accounting and
eccnomic purposes. On an ecenomic basis the correlation is in excess of 85 per cent, The principal remaining risks relate to the assumptions for mortality and
increases in salaries. If the age ratings in respect of the principal UK defined benefit schermes wore increased by one year, the scherme liabilities would increase by
£118m. If the rate of increase in salaries were 0.5 per cent higher, scheme liabilities would increase by £100m.

History of defined benefit schernes
The history of the schernes for the current and prior years is as follows:

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
£m fm £m fm fm

Balance sheet . . e
Bn9 {6,102} {8,321)

of scheme assets

a of scheme asse AL
Unrecognised surplus

U R ]

Asset/{dehcit} {1,203} {1,038)
Experience gains/(tosses) on scheme liabilities T A7 T (s T (113
Movement in unrecognised surplus - - =
Total amount recegnised in the statement of total 1ecognised gains and fosses 59) (242} 2y
Cumulative amount recognised in the statement of total recogrised gains and losses™ 192 (393 @Ay (33 (194 2 é‘

EY
' Since Janwary 1, 2002 % é

B
Defined contribution schemes =

2

=2
The Comparty operates a nurnber of defined contribution schemes, The total expense recognised in the profit and loss account was £6m (2007 £3m). %

)

-

L)

2

14 Share capital

Equity
ordinary shares Nominal
of 20p each value
Millions £m
et —— "
At January 1, and December 31, 2008 o o T T 20007 7T 400
Issued and fully paid

At January 1, and December 31,2008 ' o T o T 1631 326
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15 Movements in capital and reserves

Non-distributable reserves
Transition Profit
Share Share Revaluation hedging Other and loss Total
capital premium reserve reserve ! reserves account equity
£m Em £m £m £m im £m
At January 1, 2008 326 631 Fal 76 167 ELY] 1,612
Total recognised gains relating 1o the year — - — - — (1,240} (1,240}
Transiors betwedn reservds T e e e o e T gy T 25
Transfer from transition Reddaing reserve T T T T Tl - T =TT sy - T ﬁ T 7 T (78)
Share-based payments adjustment 0 i ’ =T - - - - 15 15
Related tax movernents 7 T 77 ' T = — = T - =" "
At Decernber 31, 2008 326 631 51 20 167 (864) 331
! Sew accounting policies note | - hedge accounting.
16 Operating lease annual commitments
2008 007
im £m
Leases of land and buildings which expire:
Botween one and five years T ‘ oo ’ ' B T3 T g
After five years ’ ' ’ N ' T T .
Other leases which expirer ~ - T T T/ rrm ot T T Tmrmr T/ T
Within one year h ' ) ’ — !
Between one and five years T o oo o mm ’ -

17 Share-based payments

Share-based payment plans in operation during the year
The Cornpany participated in the following share-based payment plans of Rolls-Royce Group ple in operation during the year:

Performarice Share Plan (PSP)
This plan involves the award of shares to participants subject Lo performance conditions. Vesting of the perfarmance shares is based on the achievernent of both non-
market based conditions (EPS and Cash Flow Per Share) and a market based performance condition (Total Shareholder Return —TSR).

ShareSave share option plan
Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, eligible employees are granted share options with an exercise price of up to 20 per cent below the share price
when the contract is entered into, Vesting of the options is not subject t2 the achievenent of a performance target. The plan is HM Revenug & Customs approved,

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP)

This plan involves the grant of market value share options to participants, The options are subject 10 a non-market based performance condition (growth in EPS),
The options have a maxirmum contractua) life of ten years. Following the introduction of the PSP it is not intended to grant any further executive share options.
The plan terminates in 2009.

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

Deferred shares awarded as part of the APRA plan. One third of the value of any annual bonus is delivered in the form of a deferred share award, The release of
deferred share awards is not deperdent on the achievement of any further perfarmance conditions ather than that participanis remain an ermployee of the Group for
two years from the date of the award in order to retain the full numiber of shares. During the two year deferral period, participants are entitled to receive dividends, or
equivalent, on the deferred shares.

Share Incentive Plan (SIP}
This is & Free Share’ clement of the Share Incentive Plan, Eligitle ernployees may receive shares with a value of up 1o one and a half weeks'salary 25 part of any bonus
paid. There are no conditions attached 1o the shares.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 20 Share-based payment, the Cempany has recognised an expense in respect of all grants under these plans made
after November 7, 2002 and unvested at January 1, 2005,
The Company recogniscd o total expense of £24m (2007 [22m).




17 Share-based payments continued

The movements in awarcls under the various share plans are shown in the tables below:

101

Number of shares awarded

2008 2007

PSP Millions Millions
Qutstanding at January | 8.7 98
Awarded duning the year ~ ~ T . o287 T 27

Forfeited during the year {0.5) 04
Additional entitlernents arising from TSR performance 09 09

Vested during the year (4.1) 4.3)
Outstanding at Cecember 31 7.8 87
2008 2007

Number Weighted MNuanber Weighted

of share average of share average

options exercise price oplions  exerese price

ShareSave Millions Pence Milhons Pence
Qutstanding at January 1 295 241p 421 i53p
Grantad during the year — 7 =777 74" " 4p
Forfeited during the year 08" 33p " 7T g T 21
Exercised during the year (9.8} 143p (i56.1) 116p
Qutstanding at December 31 18.9 288p 295 241D
Exercisable at December 31 11 141p — —
2008 2007

Number Welghted Nurober Weighted

of share average of shire avelage

options exerclse price oplions  execise price

ESQP Millions Pence Miflions Perce
Cutstanding at January 1 1.0 177p 121 191p
Exercised during the year 0.1} i94p T M) 193p
Outstanding at December 31 0.9 176p 1.0 177p
Exercisable at Decemnber 31 09 176p 10 1770
Number of shares awarded

2008 2007

Deferred shares under APRA Millions Millions
Quitstanding at January 1 1.8 27
Awarded during the year’ 08 10
Adgditional shares accrued from conversion of B Shares ™ T B A

Vested during the year ) na (20
Quitstanding ai December 31 1.4 [F
Number of shares awarded

2008 2007

Free Shares under SIP Millions Millions
Awarded during the year 1.0 06

Options were exercised on a regular basis during the year, The average share price during the year was 382p (2007 510p).

Fair values

The weighted average fair values per share for PSP awards, ShareSave grants, APRA deferred share awards, and SIP Free Share awards included in the expense for the

year were as follows:

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence

PSP awards 458p 557p 494p 282p 24%
SharsSave - 3 year grants To— 200 0 o~ T 1yp T 7=
ShareSave — 5 year grants — Wwap 0 — T isap [
APRA deferred share awards 440p S2p  448p T 260p 220p
SIP Free Share awards 439p 4% - 462p 257 23ip

8007 Ledal enuay | 318 S240u-S(10H
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Details of the assumptions used in the calculation of these fair values are set out below. Expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Rolls-Royce
Group plc share price over the seven years prior Lo the grant or award date. Until 2007, expected dividends were based on payments to shareholders over the five

years prior to the grant or award date. From 2008, expected dividends were based on payrents to sharehalders in respect of 2007.

PSP awaitds

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP are calculated using the market value of shares at the time of the award, adjusted te take into account

nor-entitlement to dividends (or equivatent) during the vesting period and the TSR performance condition. The PSP fair values were cafcutated using the following

assumptions:

2008 2004
Weighted average shara price 430p 233p
Expecied dividends ’ o ' T ’ 13.00p 761p
Volagity e e e e - e 156
Conclation ~— 7 T T T T T 29% 9% 22%
Expected life 3 years 3years
Risk free interest rate ) o T ToA1% 5.2%

The PSP has a TSR market-based performance condition, such that the Rolls-Royce Group plc TSR over the performance period will be compared with the TSR of the
companies constituting the FTSE 100 index on the date of grant If the Rolls-Royce Group pic TSR exceeds the median TSR of the FTSE 100, the number of shares that
vest will be increased by 25 per cent. The fair value of an award of shares under the PSP has been adjusted 10 take into account this market-based performance
cenditien using a pricing model based on expectations about volatility and the correfation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which
incorporates into the valuation the interdependency between share price performance and TSR vesting. This adjustment increases the fair value relative to the share

price al the date of grant,

ShareSave awards
The fair vatue of options granted under the ShareSave plan are calculated using 2 binomial pricing model with the fallowing assumptions:
2007 2003

Weighted average share price 553p 173p
Eeorcise price : e . e * iep 142
Volatility o T i o T 3™ 3%
Expecied dividends o o T 7T Tssp 761p
Expected life! — 3 yaar ShareSave | 33-38 yeors 32-37 years

- 5 year ShareSave , 5.3-58 years 5.2-5.7 ynars
Cosspariods = e e, e 2
From january 1 B ) ’ ’ & weeks " Bwecks
From July 1 o ’ ’ ’ ' " “vmonth I month
Risk free interest rate ] T o T 5% T 6%

T The bingmial pricing madel assumas that participants will exercise their options at the beginning of the six ronth windaw if the share price i greater than the exercise prce. OTherwse it assurmes that

options are held until the expiration of thelr comeactual rerm. This results in an expected life that falls somewhere betwesn the start and end of the exercise window,

Deferred shares under APRA and free Shares under SIP
The fair vatue of shares awarded under these plans is calculated as the share price on the date of the award.
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18 Contingent liabilities

In connection with the sale of its products the Company will, on some occasions, provide financing support for its, or its subsidiaries, customers. The Company’s
contingent liabilities relating to financing arrangerments are spread over many years and relate to a number of custormers and a broad product portfalio,

Contingenit liabilities are disclosed on 2 discounted basis. As the directors consider the likelihood of these contingent liabilities crystallising to be remote, this
arnount does not represent a value that is expected to crystallise. However, the amounts are discounted at the Company’s borrowing rate to reflect better the time span
over which these exposures could arise. The contingent liabilitios are denominated in US dollars. As the Company does not adopt cash low hedge aceounting for
forecast foreign exchange transactions, this amount is reported, together with the sterfing equivalent at the reporting date spot rate.

The discounted values of contingent liabilities relating 1o delivered aircralt and other arrangements where financing is in places less insurance arrangements and
relevanit provisions, were:

2008 2007

£im sm £m Sm

Gross contingant liabilities 755 1,086 616 1227
Contingent iabilities net of relevant security! 155 222 140 279
Contingent liabilities net of relevant security reduced by 20%? T o248 354 218 434
¥ Security unrestricted cash collateral of: 85 123 60 120

1 Although sensitivity calculations are complex, the reduction of relevant security by 20 per cent illusirates the sensitivity of the contingent liability 1o changes in this
assumption,

There are alse net contingent liabilities in respect of undelivered aircraft, but it is not considerad practicable 1o estimate these as deliveries can be many years in the
future, and the relevant financing will only be put in place at the appropriate time.

Contingent liabifities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Company in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, perforrnance and refiability.
The Company has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements in respect of export finance, performance bends, countertrade obligations and minor
miscellaneous iterns. The Company is party ¢ legal actions and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amcunts. As a
consequence of the insalvency of an insurer as previously feported, the Company is no longer fully insured againsi known and potential claims from employees who
worked for certain of the Company’s UK based businesses for a period prior to the acquisition of those businesses by the Company. While the outcome of some of these
matters cannol predisely ba forescen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after allowing for provisions already made, to result
in significant loss ta the Company.

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group, the Company considers these to
be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent fiability until such time as it
hecomes probable that the Companiy will be required 10 make a payment under the guarantee, At Oecember 31, 2008, there were Company guarantees in respect of
Jjoint ventures amounting 1 £13m (2007 £11m),

The Company panticipates in a Cash Pooling Arangerment. Under the Pooling Arrangernent the Company benefits from more lavourable interest rates than would
be available outside of the Pooling Arrangement as well as more streamlined treasury functions. As part of the Pooling Arrangement, the Company cross-guarantees the
borrowings of other pocling participants, Al Decernber 31, 2008 these guarantegs amounted to £24m (2007 £19m)

19 Related party transactions
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rolls-Royce Group plc and therefore has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 Related pearty disclosures, not to

disclose related party transactions with its parent company and other group campanies.
The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown in notes 7 and 9.

20 Ultimate holding company

The ulimate holding company is Rolls-Royce Group ple, incorporated in Great Britain. The financial statements for Rolls-Royee Group ple may be abtained from the
Company Secretary, Rolls-Royce Group plc, 65 Buckingham Gate, London SWIE 6AT.
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Principal subsidiary undertakings
At December 31, 2008

Incorporated within the UK — directly held unless marked *

104

Optimized Systerns and Solutions Limited*
Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systerns Limited
Rolls-Royce International Limited
Rolls-Royee Leasing Limited
Rolls-Royc Electrical Systerns Limi
Rolls-Roye > Power QOperations Lim
Rolls-Royce Power Development Limited
Rolls-Royce Power Engineering plc
Rolls-Royce Total Care Services Limited

Advanced contiols and prediciive data management
Development of fuel cell systems

International support and cammercial informiation serwces
Engine leasing

Marine electical systems
Nuclear mbmanne propufs.'on
Generation of eleciricity from independent power pm,'ecrs
Energy and marine systems B

Aero engineaftermarket support services

The above companies operate principally in the UK and the effective Grow interest is 100 per cent, other than Rolls-Royee Fuel Cell Systems Limited in which it is

B0 per cent.

Incorporated overseas — directly held untess marked *

Brazl Rolis-Royce Brasil Limitada  _ _ _ _ _ Aem enging repair and overhauf
Canada Rolls-Royce Conada Limited* Industrial gas turbines and dero-engine sales, service and averhaul
China Rolls-Royce Marine (Shanghai) Limited” i Manufacture and supply of marine equiprment
Finland ~~Rolls-Royce OY AB®  Manufacture of marine winches and propelier systems
France Data Systenis & Solutions SAS* instrumentation and control systeris and iife cycle management
) for nuclear power plants
France.  RolisFioyce Technical Support SARL* Aeto engine pROjeCt SUpport B .
Germany —  Rolls-Royce Deutschland Lld §Co kG __ Aecenginedesign, development and manufacture
Guernsey _ Nightingale Insurance Limited* Insurance services
Incfia . Rolls-Royce Encrgy 5 Syslerns Irclia Privale urmlc_d' Diesel eryg gine project managernml and customer supporf
india” 'RolisRoyce Operations (India) Private Limhed® ™ 7 77 " Engineering suppo _
Staty _ Eurapea Microfisioni Aerospaziali SpA. Manutacture of gas turbine engme casnngs
Norway Rolls-Royce Marine AS* B . Desxgn and manufacture of ship equipment ___ "
Norway Scandinavian Electric Holding AS* Maring electrical systems _ -
Singapore Rolls- Royco 5mqapom Pte Llrmted' ‘FrnPrgy and myirine aftermufker support servws
Sweden Rolls-Royce AB Manufacture of marine propeller Systers
us Data Systerms & Solutions LLC* Advanced conirofs and prediciive data management _
us Rolls-Royce Commercial Manne Inc* Marine aftermarket support services
us Rolls-Royce Corporation® - Design, deve.'opmegrand manufacture of gas turbine engines
us Rolis-Royce Crosspointe LLCT o Manvlocreofgero-engineports |
us Rolis-Royce Eneigy Systems Inc.* U Energylubinegenertorpackages T T T |
us Rolls-Royce Engine Services - Oakland inc Aero engine repair and overhatl ) |
us _ Rolls-Royce Defense Services Inc o Aero engingrepairand overhaul - o ‘
us Rolls-Royce Naval Marine Inc.* Design and manufacture of marine equipment |
us Seaworthy Systems Inc.* Marine support services |

The above companies operate principally in the country of their ingorporation.

The effective Group interest is 100 per cent, other than Europea Microfusioni Aerospazali S.oA in which it is 51 per cent.

Alist of all subsidiary undertakings will be included in the Company’s annual returr to Companies House,




Principal joint ventures
At Decernber 31, 2008

Incorporated within the UK - directly held unless marked *
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9 of class % of 10tal

Class hetd  equay held

Airtanker Holdings Limited Ordinary 20 20
Steategic tanker aicralt PR project
Airtanker Services Limited - . T Ordinary 2 TR
Provision of afterrarket services for strategic ianker aircraft
Alpha Partners Leasing Limited ' A Ordinary 100 50
Aera engine leasing B Ordinary —
Composite Technelogy & Applications Limited A Ordinary 100 51
Developrment of aero-engine fan bludes B Crdinary —
Genistics Haldings Limited o ) " ACrdinary 60" _50
Trailer-mounted fietld mobile generator sets B Crdinary — }
Rolls-Royce Goodrich Engine Control Systems Limited™ ) "7 Ordinary 50 50
Developrment and manufacture of aero-engine controls
Rells-Royce Snecma Limited (UK & France) A Shares — 50
Aeroengine colaboration B Shares 100 }
Rolis-Royce Turbomeca Limited (UK & France) “AShares - ] ' 5(;
Aero engine collaboration B Shares 100
Rolls Wood Group {Repair and Overhauts) Limited A Ordinary 100 50
Industiial gas turbipe repair and overhaul B Ordinary — }
Tidal Generation Limited ~ = 777 T 7 B ) . ) T “AOrdinary T =" '
Developrenit of tidal generation systems B Ordinary 100 ] 42

C Ordinary —
THT Limited T - T T AOrdinary - } h 45 s
Aero-enging turbine blade repair services B Ordinary 100 ’
Turbine Surface Technologies Limited N B ) A Ocdinary I o 50
Aerc-engine turbine surface coatings B Ordinary 100 ]
Turbo-Union Limited (UK, Germany & Italy) Ordinary 4o ’ 40
B engine colioboration A Shares 375 }
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Principal joint ventures continued

Incorporated overseas - directly held unless marked *

106

% Of Class 96 of 1otal
Class heled aquily helcd
China Xian XR Aero Cornponents Co Limited Ordinary 49 49
Manufacturing facility for aero-engine parts
Germany EP! Europrop Intermational GmbH (effective interest 35.5%) ~ - Ordinary ~ ~ 28 28
AG00M engine collaboration
Germany EURQJET Turbo GmbH (UK, Gerrnany, ltaly & Spain) (effective intefest 39%) Ordirary 7" 7733 B
£/200 engine coilaboration
Germany MTU, Turbormeca, Rolls-Royee GmbH (UK, France & Germany) " Ordinary 333 333
MIR30 engine collaboration
Germany ~~ ~ N3 Engine Overhadl Services Verwallungsgeselischaft mbh* T Ordinary T S0 T 7 so
Aero engine repair and overhaul
Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong Aero Engine Services Limited® o ) T Odinary’ T 7 45 T4
Aeroengine repair and overhaul
Israel Techlet Aerofoils Limited* ) A Ordinary 50 50
Manufacture of compressor aercfoils for gas turbines B Ordinary 0
Malaysia — Advanced Gas Turbine Solutions SdnBhar 77 " Oddinary 49 49
Industricd gas turbine aftermarket services
Singapore international Engine Component Overhaul Pie Limited* " Ordinary To50 50
Aero engine repair and overhaul
Singapere “Singapore Aero Engine Services Private Limited* (effective interest 39%) TOdinary T T 3007 7T 30
Aerty engine repair and overhaul
Spain Inclustria de Turbo Propulsores SA Ordinary 469 469
Aero engine component manulacture and maintenance
Switzerland IAE International Aero Engines AG (UK, Germany, Japan &US) A Shares 100
V2500 enggine collaboration B Shares - 325
. )
C Shares —
D Shares —
us Alpha Leasing (US) LLC, Alpha Leasing {US) {No. 2) LLC, Alpha Leasing {US} (No. 4) LLC, Partnerships 50 —
Alpha Leasing (US) {No. S) LLC, Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance (US) LLC
Aero engine leasing
ust oo Excstar LLC T Partnership i76 -
Business 1 business internel exchange
US 77 T 7 7 GERolls-Royce Fighter Engine Team LLC* T o Partrership  ~ 400 =
F136 development engine for the Joint Strike Fighter (JSF) Programme
e Tewis Adro Engine Semvices LLC? ~ . oddebhie P T T —
Aero engine repair and overhaul
us Williams-Roils Inc. (UK & US)* Common 15 15

Small aero engine collaboration

Unincorporated overseas — held by subsidiary undertakings

uUs

Light Helicepter Turbine Engine Company {LHTEC)
Rolls-Royce Corporation has a 50 per cent interest in this unincorporated partnership which was lormed to develop and markel jointly the T800 engine

The countries of principal operations are stated in brackets after the name of the company, if not the country of incorporation.




